
Attachment BOB 1

RESOLUTION
2017/2018 AUDIT

WHEREAS, the firm ofLerch, Vinci & Higgins has prepared an audit for the Wall
Township School District from July 1, 2017 through June 30, 2018;and

WHEREAS, the audit and a list of recommendations have been distributed to each
Board member for review; and

WHEREAS, Mr. Ralph Piccone of the firm ofLerch, Vinci & Higgins was present at the
Regular meeting of the Board of Education of the Township of Wall on February 19, 2019, to
present the audit and answer questions of the Board members and public concerning fhe audit
and recommendations.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Wall Township Board of Education
accepts the 2017/2018 audit as presented, along with the list of recommendations.
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2017/2018 AUDIT SUMMARY

I. Administrative Practices and Procedures:

1, Insurance: No recommendation

2. Official Bonds: No recommendation

3. Tuition. Charges; No recommendation

II. Financial Planning, Accounting and Reporting:

1. Examination of Claims: No recommendation

2. Payroll/Personnel: No recommendation

3. Employee Position Control Roster: No recommendation

4. Reserve for Encumbrances and Accounts Payable: No recommendation

5. Classification of Expenditures: No recommendation

6. Board Secretary's Records: No recommendation

7. Treasurer's Records: No recommendation

8. Unemployment Compensation Insurance Trust Fund: No recommendation

9. NCLB/IDEIA: No recommendation

10. Other Special Federal and/or State Projects: No recommendation

1.1. T.P.A.P. Reimbursements: No recommendation

12, T.P.A.F. Reimbursements to the State for Federal Salary Expenditures: No recommendation

13. Nonpublic State Aid: No recommendation

III. School Purchasing Programs:

1. Contracts and Agreements Requiring Advertisement for Bids: It is recommended that Political

Contribution Disclosure Forms be obtained when required.

IV. School Food Service: No recommendation

V. Before and After School Programs: No recommendation

VI. Student Body Activities: No recommendation

VII. Application for State School Aid: No recommendation

VIII. Pupil Transportation: It is recommended that internal controls be enhanced to ensure the District

Report of Transported Resident Students fDRTRS) is in agreement with supportmg documents.

IX. Facilities and Capital Assets: No recommendation

X. Miscellaneous: No recommendation

XI. Status of Prior Years' Audit Findings/Recommendations: No recommendation

A review was performed on all prior years' recommendations and corrective action was taken on all.
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AUDIT RESPONSE
2017/2018

WHEREAS, the firm ofLerch, Vinci & Higgins has prepared an audit for the Wall
Township Board of Education from July 1, 2017 through June 30, 2018; and

WHEREAS, the audit has been distributed to each Board member, there has been a
presentation and review of the audit, and the audit has been formally accepted by the Wall
Township Board of Education; and

WHEREAS, the Business Administrator has prepared a Corrective Action Plan which
has been presented to the Board of Education.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Wall Township Board of Education
approves the Corrective Action Plan as presented.
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EOE Meeting Date: February 19, 2019

CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN 2017-2018

NAME OF SCHOOL:
TYPE OF AUDIT:
DATE OF BOARD MEETING:
CONTACT PERSON:
TELEPHONE NUMBER:

WALL TOWNSHIP
Regular

February 19, 2019
Brian J. Smyth
(732) 556-2016

COUNTY: MONMOUTH

RECOMMENDATION
NUMBER

CORRECTIVE
ACTION APPROVED
BY THE BOARD

METHOD OF
IMPLEMENTATION

PERSON
RESPONSIBLE FOR
IMPLEMENTATION

COMPLETION
DATE OF
IMPLEMENTATION

in. i. When required, obtain Political
Contribution Disclosure forms.

The Accounts Payable Coordinator
will obtain a Political Contribution
Disclosure form for all non-competitive
contracts over $17,499.00.

Brian S my th 1/31/2019

VIII- Enhance internal controls to

ensure the District Report of
Transported Resident Students
(DRTRS) is in agreement with
supporting documents.

The Transportation Supervisor
will maintain documentation
from Special Services that verifies
that the students being reported as requiring
special transportation on the DRTRS
require special transportation in their IEP

Judy White 1/31/2019

Cheryl Dye^E,
CHIEF SCHOOL ADMINISTRATOR

February 19, 2019
DATE

Brian J. Smyt.
SCHOOL BUSINESS ADMINISTRATOR/
BOARD SECRETARY

February 19, 2019

DATE

Cc: County Superintendent
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WATL TOTOfSBIP PUBLIC SCHOOLS
OmOS (W THE BUSINESS ADMENISTRATORffiOARD SECRETARY

PO Box 1199
Wall, New Jersey 07719-1199

Brian J. Smyth Phone: 732-SS6-2016
Business Administrat&r/Board Secretary E1AX: 732-556-2102

January 18,2019 .,.

Hoaorabls Presideat and
Members of the Board of Education
Wall To-wnslup School Disfrict
County ofMoimiou-tii
Wall, ?w Jersey, 07719

Dear Board Members and Constitaents of Wall Township:

TJi& Comprehensive AmmaL Fmsncial Keporfc oftiie 'W^atl Township Scho.bl Distdot for the fiscal year
ended !vns 30,2018 is hereby subnutted. Respousibilify for botii tiie accQracy of fli© data aud
completeness and fairness offtie pr&senfation, iucludrag ^U disclosures, rests wifix&emaaageiuent oftiie
Board of Education (Board), To tike l>est of our Ikncwledge and belief, fhe data presented m fhis report is
accurate m all material respects aad is reported m a manner designed to present fairly ftie fmaaoiajl
position, goveromenfal activities, && busmess-type aotivities and fhe aggregate remajiuag fond
mformation at June 30, 2018 aadltiie respective cha&ges ia feiaticial posrtion a&d cash flows. Afl
disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of the Distdct^s financial activities
have been included.

The comprehefisive annyal finaaoial report is presented in four sections: mtroductory, fiiLauclal,
statistical and single audit The aitroduotory section includes tins transmittal letter designed to
complement Management's Discussion aad. Analysis and slionld b& read m coiLJuQction wrfii it, tiie

Districfs orgamzational chart and a Hst of principal oflScials and. consultants and advisors. The financial
section includes the managemeafs disctission £tnd anaJtysis (immediately follo'wmg thQ report of
independent auditors), basic fmancial statements, required supplementary, information and ofher
supplemeafaiy informafion, as well as fbs auditors' report tiLereoa. The statistical section uioludes
selected fhiaacial and demographic information, generally pregen.ted on :a'muld-year basis aa.d is

umudited,

The Disfiiot is required to undergo an annual single audit in conformity wilh fhe provisions of Title 2 U.S.
Code of Federal K.egulatbas (CTR) Part 200, Uaifonn Admimsteative K-eqiurements, Cost Principles, aud
Audit Requirejnente for Federal Awards (Unifom Guidanc&) and New Jersey's 0MB Circular 15-08,
"Single Audit Policy for recipients of jFedsrcd Grants, State Grants and Stale Aid Payments",

Information related to fhis siugle audil, moluding the auditor's report 0x1 fhe mte.mal oontt'ol and
compliance with applicable major prograiBLS, are mclud&d m file single audit section of this report,

1. REPORTING ENTFTY AND CTS SERVICES:
The Wall TcwnsHp Scliool District is an mdepend.ent reportmg entity wi&in. fhe criteria adopted Tiy the
Govermnental Accoimtuig Standards Board (GASB) as estalilish.ed ly GASB 14. All fuxi4s of the
District are included in. this report. The Wall Towasliip Board ofBducafion and all its schools cotistitute
the District's reportmg entity.



1. REPORTING ENTnYA]SfBrrS SERVICES fcoutinued^
The Distdct provides a full range of educational services appropriate to grade levels K through 12. These
inctude regular and special education stodents. la a.d.dition, s&rvices are also provided for pre-school

haadicapped special needs students. The District's eurollment for th.e 20J 7/201 8 school year, as of
October 15, 2018, was 3,400 students on rolls which is 60 students 'belQV^ tlie previous year's enroUmeat,
and. 3,351 resideat students which is 78 students less tfafln tiie pre.vions'year.

2. ECONOMIC CONjmTONS:
ThQ Wall Township area continues to experience limited, residential dey^lpprtient and. turnover wiuch
results in enrolhisnt decUmng on a consistent basis. However, enrollment bas mcreased at fh& lower

grades at the elementary scliools which is attributed to fhe district offering faU-day kmdergarten as well as
a. before and after school program.

3. MAJORINimTIVES:
The 2017-2018 budget was an increase of 1.87% over the prior year budget with the Operating Budget
totaling $ 69,624,654. The budget included, capital project funds for replacement of visitor bleachers at
fhe atliletio stadium at WaJEl High School and replace of the emergency generator at Wall Hlgli Sclzool.

4. INTERNAL ACCOUNTING CONTROLS:
Management offhs District is responsible for establishing and mamtaiflfiig 'an intemal control designed to
ensure that fhe assets oftiie- District are protected from loss, •Sieft or misuse and to ensure that adeqaate
accounting data is compiled to allow for fee preparation offuiaacial sta-teoiefftg ia cou&rmi'ty with
accoimting prmciples generally accepted in fhe Uoited States ofAmerieai; (GAAP). Intemal control is
designed, to provide r&a^onable, but not absolute, assurance that fhese q^jectives are mef. The cottcept of
reasonable assurance recogaizes that (1) fbe cost of a control should, not exceed the benefits likely to be
derived; and (2) 1he valuation. of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by managettten.t

As a recipient of federal and state fmancial assistance, &a District alsq^ responsible for ©nsurmg tbiat an
adequate internal control structure is in place to ensure compliance witibt:applicable ia.'ws and regulations
related, to those prograjcns. This internal oontrol structure is also subject to periodic evaluation by t1xe
District management.

As part offhs Districfs single audit, desoribed earliea-', tests are made to detenmne'fee adequacy offhe
mternal control strucfcare, mcludiag tiiat portion reMte^ to Federal and State fiDLancial assistance programs,
as well as to determine whether fhe District has complied witti applicable laws and regalatiorus relating to
its major programs.

5. BUDGETARY CONTROLS:
la addition to internal aocountmg controls, tiie District maiittams budg6fary corrtrols. The obj ective of
these budgetary controls is to ensure compliance with legal provisions em.bodied in the aanual
appropriated budget. Annual appropriated budgets are adopted for fhe general fimd, fh.e special revenue
fund, and fee debt service Simd. Projeot-length budgets are approved f^pthe capital miprovemeuts and
accounted for in fhe capital projects fend. The fmal budget aEnount as Stnended for die fiscal year is
r&flected in the fmancial sec.tion.

An en.oumbrance accouatmg system is used to record outstanding puroK&e commitments on a line item
basis. Open encumbiaaces at year-end are either canceled or are mcbded'as reappropriations of fund
balance in the subsequent year. Those amouats to be reappropriated are'reported as reservations offun-d
balance at June 30,2018,

6. ACCprmiNG SYSTEM A3SD REPORTS:
The District's financial statements are presented in confomuty wifh accous.tmg principles generally
accepted ia the United States, as promulgated by fho Oovernmenfal AccouG.tmg Standards Board.
(GASB). The acconatmg system of ide District is organized on the basis of funds and these funds are
explained in '"Notes to tEie Basic Fmancial Statements"; Note 1.



7, DEBT ADMINISTRATION:
Under the provisions of New Jersey stafaites, scliool distdcts may not indur mdebtedness greater thw. 4% ,

of the average equalized'valuation of taxable property. At June 30,201^ fhe Distdct's outstanding d-ebt
issues are below ths legal debt margin and are summarized in the 'TStotes to th.e Basic Financial
Statements"; Note 4.

It is noted thatthe Wall Township Public School District con.tmned to m'amtaia its Moody*s Investors
Services Aa3 rating, Moody^s most recent rating report states "The affirmation incorporates tile District's

improved fmancial condition fotlowmg fhree years of stmcturaUy balanced operations despite a statutory
two percent tax. levy cap and state aid reductions." Moody's believes the District will maintain its
satisfactory fmanoial position given the trend of stracturaUy balanced operations thai improved liquidity
and reserves due to conservative b-udgetmg practices.

The district refunded 2005,2006, and 2007 Series Bonds m March of 2015. The 2015 Re&nding Bonds
(2015 Series Bonds) were priced on March 25,2015. The par amount of the bonds is $17,515,000 and
the net interest rate of tiie bonds is 1.9 8%. The total debt service savings will be approximately
$1,838,000 translatmgto an average savings of $200,000 annually through June 30,2024. Standard &
Poor's Ratings Service assigned its 'AA* long-term ratmg and stable outlook to the 2015 bonds and
affmned its 'AA1 rating and stable outlook on the district's existing debt;

The district will start to reduce its annual debt obligations in the year ending June 3 0,2022, with. a
significaot amount of debt as die maturity date of the 2015 Series Bond& mentioned above will reach their
maturity date at the end of-fce 2023-24 solLOol year. The district will st^rt plannmg to identify programs
and capital improvement projects best suited for debt service funding. ''

S. CASH MANAGEMENT:
The iflvestment policy of the District is guided m- large part by state statute, as detailed in "Notes to tie
Basic Financial Statements"; Note 4. The District utilizes a cash management plan, whichrequires itto
deposit public funds in public depositories protected from loss under the provisions offhe Governmental
Unit Deposit IProtectioa Act ("GUDPA") . GUDPA was enacted, in 1970 to protect govemmetit units
fcom a loss of funds on deposit wifh a failed banking institution in New Jersey. The law requires
governmental units to deposit public funds only in public depositories located u\ New Jorseyi where the
funds are secured m accordance with the Act,

9. RISKMANAGEMENT:
The Board carries various forms of msuraace, mcludisig but not limited:f6.fire, general liability,

automobile liability and comprehensive/collision, hazard and. theft insyrance on propeaty and couteti.ts,
and fidelity bonds.

10. OTBER INFORMATION:
A. Independent Audit - State statutes reqwte an annual audit by inde^Sh4ent certified public accoutitauts
or registered municipal accouGLtants. The accounting firm ofLeroh, Vihoi & Higgias, LLP was selected
by the Board. In addition to meeting tihe requirements set forth, in state; statutes, the audit also was
designed to meet the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR.) Part 200, Uniform
Admmistratrve ReqTiirements, Cost Prmciples, afld Audit Requtremerits for Federal Awards (Umfoym
Cruidancs) a-ud New Jersey 0MB Circular 15-08,. The auditor's report on the basic fman.oial statements

required supplementary mformatioa and. other supplementary itifonnation are included in fh.e finanoial
section of tins report. The auditor's reports related specifically to fhe single audit are mcluded in the
single audit section of this report.



11. SIGNmCAOT BUDGET VAEIA.TIONS OR MODIP'rcATIONS BISCUSSION TOR NEXT
YEAR

Legislative reforms and mandates will continue to have a sigmficaat impaot on developnieat of future
budgets. The imcertamty of state aid and restrictions on tax levy Mcreases will contmue to mipact fhe
Districts ability to enhance programs and facilities wx&ui ftie annual budget The district will be required
to use available reserve accounts to fund a budget that meets tiie goals of-fhe district while staying wi&in
fhe coRstrain.ts of tiie 2% fax levy cap.

12. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS:
We would like to express our appreciation to &e m.em.bers offhe Wall -Townsliip Scliool Board for ttieir
concern m providing fiscal accounta.bHity to the oifciz&ns and taxpayers of'fhe scliool district and feereby
contributing &eir fuU support to fhe developm.ent and msmfenauce of o-ar finaa.oial operation. The

preparation of Ais report could not have been accomplished without tiie, efficient and dedicated services
of our financial and a.ccountiag staff.

Cheiyl Dyer;
Sup&rinf&ndent of Sch.ools
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Honorable President and Members
of the Board of Education

Wall Township Board of Education
Wall Township, New Jersey

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited fhe accompanymg financial statements of the govermnental activities, the busmess-type activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund mformation offhe Wall Township Board of Education, as of and for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2018 and the related notes to fhe financial statements, which collectively comprise the Board of
Education's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Managements Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of fhese financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design^ implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of fmancial statements tiiat are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with auditmg standards generally accepted in &e United States of America, the standards applicable to
financial audits contained in the GovenmientAuditme Standards, issued by fhe Comptroller General of the United States
and audit requirements as prescribed by the Of&ce of School Finance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey.
Those standards require that we plan and perform fhe audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whetiier the fmancial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including fhe assessment offhe risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether duo to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation offhe financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in tibie circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordmgly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accoimtmg estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that tbe audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinions.
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Opinions

In our opinion, fhe financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial
position of the governmental activities, the busmess-type activities, each major fimcL, and fhe aggregate remaining fund
information of tiie Wall Township Board of Education as of June 30, 2018, and the respective changes m financial
position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for fhe fiscal year then ended m accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Emphasis of Matter

Adoption of New Accounting Pronouncement

As discussed in Note 1 to fh.e fmancial statements, in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018 the Wall Township Board of
Education adopted new accounting guidance, Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 75, Accountme
and Financial Reporting for Postemplovment Benefits Other Than Pensions. Our opinion is not modified with respect to
this matter.

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accountmg principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's discussion and
analysis, budgetary comparison information, pension information and oftier postemployment benefits mformatioQ be
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such mformation, although not a part of fhe basic financial
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of
financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical
context. We have applied certain limited procedures to fhe required supplementary information in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about
the methods of preparing the mformation and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to
our inqumes, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic fmancial
statements. We do not express an opmion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do
not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance,

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the fmancial statements that collectively comprise the
Wall Township Board of Education's basic financial statements. The introductory section, combining and mdividual
nonmajor fund financial statements, financial schedules, statistical section, schedule of expenditures of federal awards as
required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200. Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles,
and Audit Rsquirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) and schedule of expenditures of state financial
assistance as required by New Jersey 0MB Circular 15-08, Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants. State
Grants and State Aid, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial
statements of the Wall Township Board of Education.

The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements, schedule of expenditures of federal awards and
schedule of expenditures of state financial assistance are the responsibility of management and were derived from and
relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic fmancial statements. Such
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to fhe underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic fmancial statements or to the basic financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America. In our opinion, the combming and individual nonmajor ftmd financial statements, schedules of expenditures
of federal awards and state financial assistance are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial

statements as a whole.



The introductory section, fmancial schedules and statistical section have not been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of fhe basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on them.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordaace with Government Auditme Standards, we have also issued our report dated January 18, 2019 on our
consideration, of the Wall Township Board of Education's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose

of that report is to describe Die scope of our testing of internal control over financial reportmg and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Wall Township Board of Education's
Internal control over fmancial reporting or .on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditine Standards in coasldermg the Wall Township Board of Education^ internal
control over financial reporting and compliance.

C&ick ^ nQ ^ ^f'^/l€ , LLf
LERCH, VINCI & fflGGINS, LLP
Certified Public Accountants
public School Accountants

Donna L. Japhet
Public School Accountant
PSA Number CS002314

Fair Lawn, New Jersey
January 18,2019
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WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION
TOWNSHIP OF WALL, NEW JERSEY

Management^ Discussion and Analysis

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2018

This section of the WaU Township Board of Education's comprehensive annual financial report presents
our discussion and analysis offhe District's financial performance during the fiscal year that ended on June
30,2018. The intent of this discussion and analysis is to look at tiie School District's financial performartce
as a whole; it should be read m conjunction with fhe transmittal letter at the front of this report and the
District's financial statements, .which immediately follows this section.

The Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is an element of Required Supplementary
Information specified in fhe Governmental Accounting Standard Board's (GASB) Statement No. 34
Basic Financial Statements - and Management's Discussion and Analysis - for State and Local

Governments. Certam comparative infomation. between file curren.t year (2017-2018) and the prior year
(2016-2017) is required to be presented in the MD&A.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Key fmancial highlights for the 2017-2018 fiscal year include the followmg:

• The assets and deferred outflows of resources of the Wall Township Board of Education exceeded its
liabilities and deferred inflows of resources at fhe close of the fiscal year by $2,434,216 (net position).

• OveraU revenues were $103,424,468. General revenues accounted for $67,841,560 or 66% of all
revenues. Program specific revenues ia fce form of charges for services and grants and contributions
acco-unted for $35,582,908 or 34% of total revenues.

• The school district had $97,538,355 m expenses for governmental activities; only $33,644,579 offhese
expenses were offset by program specific charges, grants or contributions. General revenues
(predominantly property taxes) of $67,841,560 were adequate to provide for Hiese programs.

• As of the close offhe current fiscal year, &e District's governmental funds reported a combined ending
fund balance of $10,306,400.

• The General Fund fund balance at June 30, 2018 was $10,110,070, an increase of $2,901,217 wlien
compared with. the begummg balance at July 1,2017 of $7,208,853.
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WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION
TOWNSHIP OF WALL, NEW JERSEY

Management's Discussion and Analysis

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2018

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial section of the annual report consists of four parts - Independent Auditor's Report, required
supplementary information which includes the management's discussion and analysis (this section), the
basic financial statements, and supplemental information. The basic financial statements include two kinds
of statements that present different views of the District:

• The first two statements are district -wide financial statements that provide both short-term
and long-term information about the District's overall financial status.

• The remaining statements are jund financial statements that focus on individual parts of the
District, reporting fhe District's operations in more detail than the district-wids statements.

The Governmental funds statements tell how basic semces were financed m the
short term as well as what remains for future spending.

Proprietary funds statements offer short-tenn and long-term financial mformation
abo-ut the activities the district operated like businesses.

Fiduciary junds statements provide information about the financial relationships in
which the District acts solely as a. trustee or agent for the benefit of others to whom
the resources belong.

The basic financial statements also include notes that explam some of die information m the statements and
provide more detailed data. Figure A-l shows how the various parts of this annual report are arranged and
related to one another.

Figure A-l
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WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION
TOWNSHIP OF WALL, NEW JERSEY

Management's Discussion and Analysis

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2018

The table below summarizes the major features of the Disb-ict's financial statements, including tlie portion
of the District's activities they cover and the types of information they contain. The remainder of this
overview section of management's discussion and analysis highlights &e structure and contents of each of
fhe statements,

Major Features of fee District-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

Scope

required financial

itatements

A.ccounting Basis and

VIeasurement focus

Fype of asset, deferred

3utflows/inflows of

resources, and liability

mforma.tioa

Type ofinfLow/outflow

iafonnation

Distnct-Wide

Statements

intire district (except

iduciary funds)

Statements of Net Position

Statement of Activities

accrual accouatmg and

conomic rego'urces focus

\Si assets, deferred

mtflows/iuflows of resources

uid liabilities, both

inancial and capital,

ihort-term and long-term

Ml revenues and expenses

luring year, regardless of

vhen cash is received or

)aid

Fund

Oovemmental Funds

'he activities of the district that

re not proprietary or fiduciary,

uch as regular and special education

nd building maintenance, aud

ommunity education,

lalance Sheet

Statement ofR.evenues,

ixpenditures and Changes m

;uod Balances

Modified accmal accounting

nd current financial focus

Generally assets expected to be utilized

md liabilities that come due during the

?ear or soon there after; no capital

issets or long-term liabilities included

revenues for which cash is received

luring or soon after the end of fee

fsar, expenditures when goods or

;ervices have been received and the

•elated liability is due and payable.

'inancial Statements

Proprietary Funds_

activities the district

perates sunilar to

rivate businesses:

enterprise funds

•tatement of Net Position

itatement ofK-evenue,

Ixpenses, and Changes in

!und Net Position

Statement of Cash Plows

accrual accountmg and

conomic resources focus

Ul assets, deferred

mtflows/inflows of

esources and liabilities,

>oth financial and

;apital ,and short-term

,nd long-ferm

^11 revenues and expenses

luring the year, regardless

>f when cash is received

>r paid.

Fiduciary Funds

istances in which the

istrict admimsters

ssources on behalf of

omeone else, such as

Tnemploymeat,

'ayroll Agency, and

tadent Activities

Statements of

iduciary Net Position

Itatement of Changes

a Fiduciary Net Position

accrual accounting

nd economic resources

ocus

^.11 sssets and liabilities,

loth short-term and long

erm funds do not

;urrently contain capital

issets.

Ml additions and

ledications during ftie

/ear, regardless of when

;ash is received or paid,

District-Wide Financial Statements

The district-wlde statements report mformation about the District as a whole using accounting methods
similar to those used by private-sector companies. The statement of net position includes all of the
District's assets, deferred outflows/iuflows of resources and liabilities. All of the current year's revenues
and expenses are accounted for in the statement of activities regardless of when cash is received or paid.

The two district-wide statements report the District's net position and how they have changed. Net position
- the difference between the District's assets aud deferred outflows of resources and liabilities and deferred
inflows of resources - is one way to measure the District's financial health or position.
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WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION
TOWNSHIP OF WALL, NEW JERSEY

Management's Discussion and Analysis

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2018

District-Wide Financial Statements (continued)

• Over time, increases or decreases in the District's net position are an indicator of whether its
financial position is improving or deteriorating, respectively.'

• To assess the overall health of fhe District you need to consider additional factors such. as
changes in the District's property tax base and the condition of school buildings and other
facilities.

In the district-wide financial statements the Districfs activities are shown in two categories:

• Governmental Activities — Most of the District's basic services are included here, such
as regular and special education, transportation, administration and plant operations and
maintenance. Property taxes and state aids finance most of these activities.

• Business Type Activities - This fund is used to account for operations that are financed and
operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises. The District's Food Service
Fund and the Before and After School Programs Fund are reported as Enterprise Funds.

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about tlie District's ftmds ~" focusing on its
most significant or major" funds - not the District as a whole. Funds are accounting devices the District
uses to keep track of specific sources of funding and spending on particular programs:

• Some funds are required by State law and bond covenants.

• The District establishes other funds established in accordance with the State of New Jersey
Uniform Chart of Accounts to control and manage money for particular purposes (e.g.,
repayhig its long-term debts) to show that it is properly using certain revenues (federal and
state grants).

The District has three kinds of funds:

• Governmental Funds - The School District's activities are reported in governmental funds, which focus
on how money flows into and out of those funds and the balances left at year-end available for spending m
fhe fature years. These fimc^ are reported using an accowiting method called modified accmal accounting,
which measures cash. and all other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash. The governmental
fund statements provide a detailed short-term view of die School District's general government operations
and the basic services it provides. Governmental fimd information helps you determme whether there are
more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance educational programs. The
relationship (or differences) between governmental activities (reported m the Statement of Net Position and
the Statement of Activities) and governmental funds is reconciled m the financial statements.

• Proprietwy Funds - Services for which the District charges a fee are generally reported in proprietary
•funds. Proprietary funds are reported in the same way as the district-wide statements.
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WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION
TOWNSHIP OF WALL, NEW JERSEY

Management's Discussion and Analysis

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2018

Fund Financial Statements (Contmued)

Enterprise Funds - This fond is established to account for operations that are financed and
operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises. The stated intent is that costs of
providing goaSs or services to the students on a contimung basis are financed or recovered
primarily fhrough user charges. The District currently has a Food Service (cafeteria) enterprise
fund and a Before and After School Programs enterprise fund.

• Fiduciajy funds - The District is the trustee, or fiduciary^ for assets that belong to others. The District is
responsible for ensuriag that the assets reported ia. these fimds are used only for their intended purposes and
by those to whom the assets belong. All of Ae District's fiduciary activities are reported in a separate
statement of fiduciary net position and a statement of changes m fiduciary net position. We exclude these
activities from. the district-wide fimncial statements because the District cannot use these assets to finance
its operations.

Notes to the Financial Statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the
district-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements can be found following

the basic financial statements.

Other Information

In addition to-fhe financial statements. and. accompanymg notes,-this- report also presents_CCTtain required

supplementary information concerning the Districts budget process. The District adopts an. annual
expenditure budget for the general, special revenue and debt service funds. A budgetary comparison
statement has been provided for these funds as required supplementary information. The required
supplementary information can be found followmg the notes to the financial statements.

Combining statements and schedules are presented immediately following the major budgetary
comparisons.

The District also presents required supplementary information regarding the accounting and reporting for
pensions as required under GASB Statement No. 68 as well as other post-employment benefits as required
under GASB Statement No. 75. The required supplementary information can be found following the notes
to the financial statements.

DISTKICT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

Net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's financial position. In. the case of
the District, assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded liabilities and deferred inflows of resources
by $2,434,216 (net position) as of June 30, 2018. The deficit in unrestricted net position in the
Goverrunental Activities is attributable to the "unfunded long-term liabilities such as the net pension liability
for fhe District employees participatmg in the NJ Public Employee Retirement System, compensated
absences and the 2012 Pension Refunding Bonds. These liabilities are reported in the govemment-wide
statements but not on. the fund financial statements. This deficit is not an indication, that the Distoict is
facmg financial difficulties as diere is currently no mechanism, available to fund these liabilities in advance
and fhey are being funded on a pay-as-you-go basis.
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WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION
TOWNSHIP OF WALL, NEW JERSEY

]VEanagement?s Discussion and Analysis
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2018

By far the largest portion of fhe District's net position reflects its investment m capital assets (e.g., land and
improvements, buildings and improvements, vehicles, furniture and equipment); less any related debt used
to acquire those assets that is still outstanding. Tire District uses these capital assets to provide services to
its students; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the District's
investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to
repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to
liquidate these liabilities.

Net Position
As of June 30,2018 and 2017

Governmental Activities

Restated

2018 2017

Btisiness-Tvpe Activities

Restated

2018 2017

Total

2018

Restated

2017

Assets

Current Assets

Capital Assets, Net

Total Assets

15,172,014 $ 12,419,100 $ 257,321 $ 215,023 $ 15,429,335 $ 12,634,123
37,573,449 37,506,588 94,376 109,259 37,667,825 37,615,847

52,745,463 49,925,688 351,697 324,282 53,097,160 50,249,970

Deferred Outflows of Resources

Deferred Amount on Refanding of Debt

Deferred AmoTints on Net Pension Liability

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources

Total Assets and Deferred Outlfows of Resources

202,119

8,148,106

8,350,225

61,095,688

263,283
11,844,564

12,107,847

62,033,535 351,697 324,282

202,119
8,148,106

8,350,225

61,447,385

263,283

11,844,564

12,107,847

62,357,817

Liabilities

Long-Term Liabilities

Other Liabilities

Total Liabilities

47,443,884

5,196,247

58,651,743

5,170,123 45,582 33,966

47,443,884

5,241,829

52,640,131 63,821,866 45,582

58,651,743

5,204,089

33,966 52,685.713 63,855,832

Deferred Inflows of Resources

Deferred Amounts of Net Pension Liability

Commodities

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

6,325,E

6,325,839

58,965,970

29,735

29,735

63,851,601

1,617

1,617

47,199 33,966

6,325,839

1,617

6,327,456

59,013,169

29,735

29,735

63,885,567

Net Position

Net Investmeat in Capital Assets

Restricted

Unrestricted

Total Net Position

22,614,140 20,341,432 94,376

7,879,125 6,045,607

(28,363,5473 (28,205,105) 210,122

109,259 22,708,516 20,450,691

7,879,125 6,045,607

181,057 (28,153,425) (28,024,048)

$ 2,129,718 $ (1,818,066) $ 304,498 $ 290,316 $ 2,434,216 $ (1,527,750)
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WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION
TOWNSmP OF WALL, NEW JERSEY

Management's Discussion and Analysis

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2018

Change in Net Position

For The Fiscal Years Ended June 30,2018 and 2017

Revenues

Program Revenues

Charges for Services

Operating Grants and Contributions

Capital Grants and Contributions

General Revenues

Property Taxes

State Aid

Ofher

Total Revenues

Expenses

Instruction

Regular

Special Education

Vocational Education

Other Instruction

School Sponsored Cocumcular/Afhletics

Support Services

Student and Instruction Related Services

School Administrative Services

General Administrative Services

Plant Operations and Maintenance

Pupil Transportation

Business/Central and Ofher Support Services

Interest on Long-Term Debt

Food Service

After School Prep Programs

Total Expenses

Change in Net Position

Net Position, Beginning of Year (Restated)

Prior Period Adjustment-Capifal Assets

Net Position, End of Year

Governmental Activities.

2018

$ 729,381

32,776,510

138,688

66,377,929

461,720

1,001,911

101,486,139

39,377,966

18,001,939

631,973

1,804,832

2,157,394

11,454,012

5,383,818

2,367,353

8,213,055

5,869,426

1,857,613

418,974

97,538,355

3,947,784

(1,818,066)

$ 2,129,718

2017

$ 645,782 ;

27.095,553

817,496

65,116,918

460,086

273,016

94,408,851

37,630,745

17,072,291

593,542

1,651,386

2,036,227

11,073,493

5,172,594

2,374,618

8,476,832

5,644,337

1,428,365

413.056

93,567,486

841,365

(2,711,104)

51,673

$ (1,818,066) ;

Business-T^&e Activities

2018

E 1,674,780 $

263,549

1,938,329

1,507,486
416,661

1,924,147

14,182

290,316

$ 304,498 $

20H

i 1,663,311

282,717

1,946,028

1,489,665
383,074

1,872,739.

73,289

193,528

23,499

S 290,316

Total

2018

$ 2,404,161 $

33,040,059

138,688

66,377,929

461,720

1,001,911

103,424,468

39,377,966

18,001,939

631,973

1,804,832

2,157,394

11,454,012

5,383,818

2,367,353

8,213,055

5,869,426

1,857,613

418,974

1,507,486
416,661

99,462,502

3,961,966

(1,527,750)

$ 2,434,216 $

2017

2,309,093

27,378,270

817,496

65,116,918

460,086

273,016

96,354,879

37,630,745

17,072,291

593,542

1,651,386

2,036,227

11,073,493

5,172,594

2,374,618

8,476,832

5,644,337

1,428,365

413,05)5

1,489,665
383,074

95,440,225

914,654

(2,517,576)

75,172

(1,527,750)
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WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION
TOWNSHIP OF WALL, NEW JERSEY

Management's Discussion and Analysis
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2018

Governmental Activities. The District's total governmental activities' revenues, which include State and Federal
grants, were $101,486,139 for the year ended June 30, 2018, an increase of $7,077,288 or 7 percent increase over
the previous year. A large portion of this increase is attributable to the adjustment to the on-behalf OPEB expense to
recognize the actuarially determined amount that should have been. contributed on behalf of the District. This
adjustment which impacts both the revenues and expenses of the governmental activities was $8,102,138 compared
to the prior year adjustment of $-0-. Property taxes of $66,377,929 represented 65% of revenues. Another portion
of revenues came from State, Federal and Local aid; total State, Federal and local aid was $33,376,918, Charges for
services such as tuition and rentals were $729,381. The balance of revenues is miscellaneous income which
includes items such as rentals, prior your accounts payable cancelled, prior year refunds, etc.

The total cost of all govenmiental activities programs and services was $97,538,355, The District's expenses are

predominantly related to educatmg and carmg for students. Instruction totaled $61,974,104 (64%) of total expenses.
Student and msb-uction related and other support sei-vices (exclusive ofmterest on long-tenn debt) total $35,145,277

or (35%) of total expenses. The balance of expenses was interest on long-term debt which represented 1% of total
expenses.

Total governmental activities revenues exceed expenses, iacreasmg net position $3,947,784 from the previous year.

Revenues by Source- Governmental Activities
For Fiscal Year 2018

FederaI/State/ Charge for
Services/

Local Aid and
IVIiscellaneousGrants """"^

33% ^^^^Mn^^Baa^^.

'School Tax

Levy
65%

Expenses by Type-Govenmiental Activities
For Fiscal Year 2018

School, General Interest on
^ Pupil Transp. Long-Term

Central Admin. 6% Debt 1%

10%

Oper. & IVlaint,
8%

Instruction
Student & Instr. ^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 540^

Related

Services
11%
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WALL TOWNSHIP BOAM OF EDUCATION
TOWNSHIP OF WALL, NEW JKRSEY

Management's Discussion and Analysis

For the Fiscal Year Euded June 30,2018

Total and Net Cost of Governmental Activities. The District's total cost of services was $97,538,355.
After applying program revenues, derived from charges for services of $729,3 81 and operating and capital
grants and contributions of $32,915,198, the net cost of services offtie District is $63,893,776.

Total and Net Cost of Services of Governmental Activities
For The Fiscal Years Ended June 30,2018 and 2017

Instruction

Regular

Special Education

Vocational Education

Other lastmction

School Sponsored Cocurricular/Athletics

Support Services

Student and lostruction Related Services

School Administrative Services

General Administrative Services

Plant Operations and Mamtenaace

Pupil Transportation

Business and Ofh.er Support Services

Interest on Long-Tena Debt

Total

Total Cost of Services

2018

39,377,966 $

18,001,939

631,973

1,804,832

2,157,394

11,454,012

5,383,818

2,367,353

8,213,055

5,869,426

1,857,613

418,974

$ 97,538,355 $

.2017

; 37,630,745 ;

17,072,291

593,542

1,651,386

2,036,227

11,073,493

5,172,594
2,374,618
8,476,832

.5,644,337

1,428,365
413,056

i 93,567,486

Net Cost of Services

2018

S 23,187,456 $

8,223,157

631,973

1,084,149

1,394,257

9,677,971

3,924,306
2,291,093
7,012,063
4,658,928
1,686,813

121,610

$ 63,893,776

2017

S 23,278,673

8,194,977

593,542

1,033,403

1,369,578

10,456,550

4,108,683
2,374,618
7,205,417
4,848,035
1,428,365

116,814

$ 63,008,655

Business-Type Activities - The District's total business-typs activities revenues were $1,938,329 for fhe
year ended Jme 30, 2018. Charges for services of $1,674,780 accounted for 86% of total revenues.
Operating grants and contributions of $263,549 accounted for 14% of total revenue for the year.

The total cost of aU business-type activities programs and services was $1,924,147. The District's
expenses are related to Food Service programs provided to all students, teachers and admmistrators as well

as expenses related to the Before and After School programs.

Total busmess-type activities revenues exceeded expenses increasing net position by $14,182 from fhe last

year.
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WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION
TOWNSHIP OF WALL, NEW JERSEY

Management's Discussion and Analysis

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2018

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT'S FUNDS

As noted earlier, the District uses fanct accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-
related legal requirements.

Governmental Funds

The focus of the District's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows,
and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful m assessing the District's financing
requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balance may serre as a. useful measure of the District's net
resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

The financial performance of the District as a whole is reflected in its governmental funds as well. As the
District completed the year, its governmental funds reported a combined fund balance of $10,306,400. At

June 30, 2017, the fund balance was $7,597,428.

Revenues and other financmg sources for the District's governmental funds were $84,251,511, while total
expenses were $81,542,539, thereby increasing fund balance by $2,708,972.

General Fund - The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the District and includes the primary
operations in providing educational services to students from pre-Idndergarten th-ough grade 12 including
pupil transportation activities and capital outlay projects.

As demonstrated by the various statements and schedules included m the financial section of this report, the
District continues to meet its responsibility for sound financial management. The following schedule
presents a. summai'y of General Fund Revenues (GAAP Basis).

Local Sources

Property Tax Levy
Tuition

Miscellaneous

State/Pederal Sources

Total General Fund Revenues

Fiscal
Year Ended

June 30.2018

$ 64,053,498
620,035

1,111,257
13,592,632

$ 79,377,422

Fiscal

Year Ended

June 30.2017

$ 62,797,547
534,055
384,743

12,139,323

$ 75,855,668

Amount of

Increase

LDecrease)

$ 1,255,951
85,980

726,514
1,453,309

$ 3,521,754

Percent

Change

2%
16%

189%
12%

5%

Total General Fund Revenues increased by $3,521,754 or 5% from the previous year.

Local property taxes increased by 2 percent over the previous year. State and federal aid revenues
increased $1,453,309 or 12%. This increase is predominantly attributed to an increase m State On-Behalf
TPAF pension, other post-employment benefits and social security costs conb-ibuted by the State.

Miscellaneous income revenues increased by $726,514 compared to the prior year due to non recurring
cancellation of prior year accomits payable.
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WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION
TOWNSHIP OF WALL, NEW JERSEY

Management's Discussion and Analysis

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2018

The following schedule presents a summary of General Fund expenditures (GAAP Basis).

Year Ended

June 30. 2018

$ 46,756,309

28,385,210

1,372,102

262,584

$ 76,776,205

Year Ended

June 30, 2017

$ 45,311,032

28,502,661

484,671
)

260,669

$ 74,559,033

Increase

{Decrease)

$ 1,445,277

(117,451)

887,431

1,915

$ 2,217,172

Percent

Chanee

3%

0%

183%

1%

3%

Instruction

Support Services

Capital Outlay

Debt Service

Total Expenditures

Total General Fund expenditures increased $2,217,172 or 3% from the previous year. The District
experienced increases in areas of instruction and capital outlay expenditures and debt service.

In 2017-2018 General Fund expenditures were less than revenues and other financing sources by
$2,901,217. As a result, total fund balance increased to $10,110,070 at June 30, 2018. After deducting

restrictions and assignments, the unassigned fund balance increased from $851,602 at June 30, 2017 to
$854,228 at June 30,2018.
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WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION
TOWNSHIP OP WALL, NEW JERSEY

Management's Discussion and Analysis

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2018

Special Revenue Fund - The Special Revenue Fund includes all restricted Federal, State and Local sources
utilized in the operations of the district in providing educational services to students.

Revenues of the Special Revenue Fund were $1,379,559, for the year ended June 30, 2018. Federal
sources accounted for fhe majority of Special Revenue Fund's revenue which represented 93% of the total
revenue for the year.

Total Special Revenue Fund revenues increased by $91,179 from the previous year. State sources
decreased $1,706, Federal sources increased $71,613 and local sources increased by $21,272.

Expendibires of tfae Special Revenue Pund were also $1,379,559. Insb-uctional expenditures were
$1,156,465 or 84%. Expenditures for the student and instructional related support services were $211,094
or 15% of total expended for the year ended June 30, 2018. Expenditures for capital outlay were $12,000
or \% of total expended for the year ended June 30, 2018.

Capital Projects - The Capital Projects revenues were less than expenditures by $190,032 decreasing fund
balance to $196,330 at June 30, 2018. The District is undertaking various improvements throughout the
entire district, which began in 2016/17 and will continue into the 2019/20 year. These projects are being
partially locally funded by budget appropriation as well as SDA grants awarded by the State of New Jersey.

Proprietary Funds

The District maintains the Enterprise Funds to account for activities wHch are supported in part through
user fees.

Enterprise Fund - The District uses an Enterprise Fund to report activities related to the Food Services and
Before and After School programs. The District's Enterprise Funds provide the same type of information
found in the district-wide financial statements, business-type activities, but in more detail. Factors
concerning the finances of these Funds have already been addressed in the discussion, of the Disteict's
business-type activities.

GENERAL FTOO BUDGETARY mGHLIGHTS

The District's budget is prepared according to New Jersey Department of Education guidelines, and is
based on accounting for certain transactions on the basis of cash receipts, disbursements and encumbrances.
The most significant budgetary fund is the General Fund.

Over/the course of the year, the District revised the annual operating budget several times. These budget
amendments fall into the following categories

• Implementing budgets for specially funded projects, which include both federal and state
grants and reinstating prior year purchase orders being carried over.

• Appropriating additional state aid allotted to the District.

Revisions in the budget were made through budget transfers to prevent over expenditures in specific line
item accounts. There were certain revisions to the budget during the year other than the reappropriation of
prior year encumbrances.
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WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION
TOWNSHIP OF WALL, NEW JERSEY

Management^ Discussion and Analysis
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2018

CAPITAL ASSETS

The District's investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of June 30,
2018 amounts to $37,667,825 (net of accumulated depreciation). The capital assets consist of laud, land
improvements, construction in progress, buildings, building Improvements, computers, specialized
machinery and various other types of equipment. Depreciation charges for fiscal year 2017-18 amounted to
$1,633,961 for governmental activities and $14,883 for business-type activities.

Capital Assets at June 30, 20-18 and 2017
(Net of Accumulated Depreciation)

Land
Construction in Progress

Building and Building Improvements
Improvements oth'er than Buildmgs

Machmery and Equipment

Total Capital Assets, Net

Governmental Activities

2018

$ 534,652
20,691

33,036,012
409,664

3,572,430

$ 37,573,449

Restated

2017

$ 534,652
2,168,161

33,108,324
489,692

1,205,759

$ 37,506,588

Bnsiaess-Type Activities

2018

$ 94,376 $

$ 94,376 $

Restated

2017

; 109,259

i 109,259

2018

$ 534,652 $
20,691

33,036,012
409,664

3,666,806

$ 37,667,825

Restated

2017

$ 534,652
2,168,161

33,108,324
489,692

1,315,018

$ 37,615,847

Additional information on the District's capital assets are presented in fhe "Notes to the Financial
Statements" of this report.

LONG TERM LIABILITIES

At year end, the District's long-term liabilities consisted of compensated absences payable of $1,681,843,
capital leases payable of $416,145, bonds payable including unamortized premium of $16,670,283 and net
pension liability of $28,675,613.

Additional roformatkm of the District's long-term liabilities is presented in the "Notes to the Financial
Statements" of this report.
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WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION
TOWNSHIP OF WALL, NEW JERSEY

Management's Discussion and Analysis

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2018

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGET

The WaU- Township Board of Education is in good financial condition presently. Future finances are not
without challenges as the community continues to grow and state fimdiiig is decreased.

Wall Township is prunarily a residential community with very few commercial ratables. The majority of
revenues needed to operate the District is derived from homeowners through property tax assessments and
collections.

For the 2017/2018 school year, the School Board was able to sustain its general fund budget through the
local tax levy. State education aid, federal aid, tuition and local revenue sources. Approximately 17% of
the School Board's general fund revenue is from State and Federal Aid, 81% of total revenue is from local

tax levy, and 2% is from other local sources, including interest, tuition, transportation fees, miscellaneous
and the appropriation of prior year fund balance.

At this time, the most important factor affecting the budget is the unsettled situation with State Aid. The
District may experience growth in student population and there is uncertainty regarding -future funding
levels of state aid. The tax levy will be the area. that will need to absorb any increase in budget obligations.

Wall Township Public Schools are experiencmg increased enrollment at the high school and at some of the
elementary schools.

Many factors were considered by the District's adminisb-ation during fhe process of developing the fiscal
year 2018/2019 budget. The primary factors were the District's projected student population, anticipated
state and federal aid as well as increasing special education costs, liability insurance and employee related
benefit costs.

In conclusion, -the Wall Township Board of Education has committed itself to financial excellence for the
future.

CONTACTING THE DISTRICT'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, and investors and creditors
with a general overview of the District's finances and to demonstrate the District's accountability for the
money it receives. If you have questions about this report or need additional information contact the
Business Office, Wall Township Public Schools, P.O. Box 1199,18th Avenue, Wall, NJ 07719.
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WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

AS OF JUNE 30,2018

EXHIBIT A-l

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total

ASSETS

Cash. and Cash Equivalents
Receivables, net

Inventory
Restricted

Cash with Fiscal Agents

Capital Assets

Not Being Depreciated

Being Depreciated, Net

Total Assets

10,860,430
2,384,338

1,927,246

555,343
37,018,106

52,745,463

236,572
16,296
4,453

94,376

351,697

11,097,002
2,400,634

4,453

1,927,246

555,343
37,112,482

53,097.160

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred Amount on Refunding of Debt
Defen-ed Amounts on Net Pension Liability

202,119
8,148,106

202,119
8,148,106

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 8,350,225 8,350,225

Total Assets and Deferred. Outflows of Resources

LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable

Accrued Interest Payable

Payable to Goveramen.t
Uaeamed Revenue

Accrued Liability for Insurance Claims
Noncuirent Liabilities

Due Witiiin One Year

Due Beyond One Year

Total Liabilities

61,095,688

2,901,719
330,633

23,108
188,753

1,752,034

2,582,052
44,S6I,832

52,640,131

351,697

846

44,736

45,582

61,447,385

2,902,565

330,633
23,108

233,489
1,752,034

2,582,052
44,861,832

52,685,713

DEFERRED INFI.OWS OF KESOURCES

Deferred Amounts on Net Pension Liability

Commodities
6,325,839

1,617
6,325,839

1,617

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows of Resources

6.325,839

58,965,970

1,617

47,199

6,327,456

59,013,169

NET POSITION

Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted for

Capital Projects
Otiier - Maintenance

Um-estricted

Total Net Position

22,614,140

7,079,125

800,000
(28,363,547)

94,376

210,122

22,708,516

7,079,125
800,000

(28,153,425)

$ 2,129,718 $ 304,498 $ 2.434,216

The accompanying Notes to the Fmancial Statements are an Integral Part of this Statement.
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EXHIBIT A-2

WALL TOWNSHIP BOAKD OF EDUCATION
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2018

Functions/Programs
Governmental Activities

Instruction
Regular
Special Education
Vocational Education
Other lustruction

School Sponsored Cocumcular/Afhletic
Support Services

Student and Instruction Related Services
School Administrative Services
General Administrative Services
Plant Operations and Maintenance
Pupil Transportation
Business/Central and Ofber Support Services

Interest on Long-Term Debt

Total Govermmental Activities

Business-Type Acthrities
Food Service
Before and After School Programs

Total Business-Type Activities

Total Primary Government

Ex&enses

E 39,377,966
18,001,939

631,973
1,804,832
2,157,394

11,454,012
5,383,818
2,367,353
8,213,055
5,869,426
1,857,613

418,974
97,538,355

1,507,486
416,661

1,924,147

5. 99,462,502

Charges for

icrvices

$ 565,110
54,925

109,346

729,381

1,226,757
448.023

1,674,780

$ 2,404,161

Program Revenues

Operating
Grants and

Contributions

$ 15,613,400
9,723,857

720,683
763,137

1,776,041
1,459,512

76,260
964,958

1,210,498
170,800
297,364

32,776,510

263,549

263,549
$ 33,040,059

Capital
Grants and

Contributions

$ 12,000

126,688

138,688

$ 138,688

Net (Expense) Revenue and
Changes in Net Position

Governmental

Activities

$ (23,187,456)
(8,223,157)

(631,973)
(1,084,149)
(1,394,257)

(9,677,971)
(3,924,306)
(2,291,093)
(7,012,063)
(4,658,928)
(1,686,813)

(121,610)
(63,893,776)

(63,893,776)

Business-Type

Activities

S (17,180)
31,362
14,182
14,182

Total

(23,187,456)
(8,223,157)

(631,973)
(1,084,149)
(1,394,257)

(9,677,971)
(3,924,306)
(2,291,093)
(7,012,063)
(4,658,928)
(1,686,813)

(121,610)
(63,893,776)

(17,180)
31,362
14,182

(63,879,594)

(Contmued)

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement



EXHIBIT A-2

WALL TOWNSHIP BOAKJD OF EDUCATION
STATEMENT OF ACTmTIES

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Carried Forward

General Revenues:

Taxes:

Property Taxes, Levied for General Purposes
Property Taxes, Levied for Debt Service

State Aid Restricted for Debt Service Principal
State Aid- Unrestricted
Investment Earnings
Miscellaneous Income

Total General Revenues

Change in Net Position

Net Position, Begimung of Year (Restated)

Net Position, End of Year

Net (Expense) Revenue and
Changes in Net Position

Governmental

Activities

$ (63,893,776)

64,053,498
2,324,431

446,047
15,673
41,107

960,804

67,841,560

3,947,784

(1,818,066)

$ 2,129,718

Business-Type

Activities

$ 14,182 $

14J82

290,316

$ 304,498 $

Total

(63,879,594)

64,053,498
2,324,431

446,047
15,673

41,107
960.804

67,841,560

3,961,966

.(1,527,750)

2,434,216

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement
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EXHIBIT B-l

WALL TOWNSHIP BOAED OF EDUCATION
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

BALANCE SHEET
AS OF JUNE 30,2018

ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash with Fiscal Agents
Receivables From Other Governments

Other Receivabies

Due from Other Ihmds

Total Assets

LIABFLJTIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities
Accounts Payable

Due to Other Funds

Intergovernmental Payable

. Federal

State

Unearned Revenue

Accrued Liability for Insurance Claims

Total Liabilities

Fund Balances

Restricted Fund Balance

Capital Reserve

Capital Reserve - Designated for Subsequent

Year's Expenditures (2018/19 Budget)
Maintenance Reserve

Maintenance Reserve - Designated for

Subsequent Year's Expeadito-es (2018/19 Budget)
Emergency Reserve

Capital Projects

Committed Fund Balance

Year-End Encumbrances

Assigned Fund Balance

Year-End Encumbrances

Designated for Subsequent Year's Expenditures

Unassigned Fund Balance

General Fund

Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilities and FundEalances.

General

Fund

$ 10,860,430
1,927,246

148,691
70,113

1,722,187

$ 14,728,667

$ 2,864,713

1,850
1,752,034

4,618,597

Special
Revenue

Fund

$ 251,948
10,688

$ 262,636

$ 37,006
175,508

10,758
12,350
27,014

262,636

Capital
Projects

Fund

$ 1.902.898

$ 1,902,898

$ 1,546,679

159,889

1,706,568

Debt
Service

Fmid

$_1

Total
Governmental

Eunds

$ 10,860,430
1,927,246
2,303,537

80,801
1,722,187

$ 16,894,201

$ 2,901,719
1.722,187

10.75 8
12,350

188,753
1,752,034

6,587,801

3,782,795 3,782,795

3,100,000
300,000

500,000
695,000

412,131

115,916
350,000

854,228

10,110,070

$ 14,728,667 ;? 262,636

196,330

196,330

$ 1,902,898 $

3,100,000
300,000

500,000
695,000
196,330

412,131

115,916
350,000

854,228

10,306,400

$ 16,894,201

The accompaayiag Notes to the Fiaaacial Statements are an integral part of this cement



EXHIBITB-1

WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

BALANCE SHEET
AS OF JUNE 30,2018

Total Fund Balance (Exhibit B-l) $ 10,306,400

Amounts reported for Governmental Activities m the Statement of

Net Position (A-l) are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial

resources and therefore are not reported in the funds. The cost

of the assets is $65,904,531 and the accumulated depreciation

is $28,331,082. 37,573,449

The District has financed capital assets through the issuance

of serial bonds and long-temi lease obligations. The interest

accrual at year end is: (330,633)

Amounts resulting jErom the refundmg of debt are reported as
deferred outflows of resources on the statement of net position

and amortized over the life of the debt. 202 J 19

Certain amo'unts resultmg from the measurement of fhe net pension liability

are reported as eifher deferred mflows ofresonrces or deferred outflows of

resources on the statement of net pension and deferred over future years.

Deferred Outflows of Resources $ 8,148,106

Deferred Inflows of Resources (6,325,839)

1,822,267

Long-term liabilities, mcluding bonds payable and net pension liability,

si'e not due and payable in the current period and therefore are not

reported as liabilities m the funds (see Note 2A) ' _ (47,443,884)

Net Position of Governmental Activities (Exhibit A-l) $ 2J29,71§

Tlie accompanying Notes to the Financial Statemen.ts are an integral part of this statement
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EXHIBIT B-2

WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OB EDUCATION
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

STATEMENT OE REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR E1SDE& JUNE 30,2018

REVENUES
Local Sources

Local Property Tax Levy
Tuition
Preschool Tuition
Rental Fees

Investment Earnings
Miscellaneous

Total - Local Sources

State Sources

Federal Sources

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current

Regular Instmction
Special Education Instruction
Vocational Education
Other Instruction

School Sponsored- CocurricuIar/Afhletics

Support Services
Student & Instruction Related Services

School Administrative Services
General Administrative Services
Plant Operations amlMamtenance

Pupil Transportation
Business and- Other Support Services

Debt Service
Principal
Interest and. other charges

Capital Otiflay

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues

Over/(Under) Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
- Capital Lease Proceeds

Total Other Financing Sources and Uses

Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year

Fund Balance. End. of Year

General

Fund

$ 64,053,498
565,110
54,925

109,346
41,107

960,804

65,784,790

13,544,924
47,708

79,377,422

29,652,803
13,423,956

631,973
1,360,592
1,686,985

9,204,465
4,250,464
1,074,753
7,249,392
5,008,659
1,597,477

Special
Revenue

Fund

S 32,195

32,195

59,802
1,287,562

1,379,559

346,465
810,000

211,094

Capital
Projects

Fund

$ 126,688

126,688

Debt
Service
Fund

2,324,431

2,324,431

743,411

3,067,842

Total
Governmental

Funds

$ 66,377,929
565,110

54,925
109,346
41,107

992,999

68,141,416

14,474,825
1,335,270

83,951,511

29,999,268
14,233,956

631,973
1,360,592
1,686,985

9,415,559
4,250,464
1>074,753
7,249,392
5,008,659
1,597,477

258,656
3,928

1,372,102

76,776,205

2,601,217

300,000

300,000

2,901,217

7,208,853

$ 10,110,070 $

12,000

1,379,559

1

316,720

316,720

(190,032)

(190,032)

386,362

196,330 $

2,320,000
750,055

3,070.055

(2,213)

(2,213)

2,213.

$

2,578,656
753,983

1,700,822

81,542,539

2,408,972

300,000

300,000

2,708,972

7,597,428

10,306,400

The accompanying Notes to the Finan.cial Statements areanmtegralpartofthis s^ement



EXHIBIT B-3
WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION

RECONCrLIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDFTURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR T3SE FISCAL YEAR ENBED JUNE 30,2018

Total Net Change in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds (Exhibit B-2) $ 2,708,972

Amounts reported for governmental activides in the statement

of activities (A"2) are different because:

Capital outlays are reported in governmental funds as expenditures. However, in fhe statement of
activities, die cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense.

This is the amount by which capital outlay exceeded depreciation ia fhe period.

Depreciation expense $ (1,633,961)
Capital outlays 1,700,822

66,861

In fhe statement of activities, interest on long-tenn debt in the statement of activities is accrued,

regardless of when due. In the governmental funds, interest is reported when due.

Decrease in accrued interest 17,8 18

The issuance of long term debt (e,g., bonds, leases) provides current financial resources
to governmental funds, wMte the repayment of principal of long term debt consumes the

current financial resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has any

effect on net position. This amount represents fhe net effect of these activities: (See Note 2B) 2,278,656

Governmental funds report the effect of premiums, discounts and similar items

when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the statement

of activities.

Amortization of Original Issue Premium 378,355

Amortization of Deferred Amount on Refunding of Debt _(6.U64)

317,191
In the statement of activities, certam operating expenses, e.g., compensated absences

and pension expense are measured by the amounts earned during Ae year. In the

governmental funds, however, expenditures for these items are reported in the amount

of financial resources used (paid). When the earned amount exceeds the paid amount, the difference

is reduction in the reconciliation; when the paid amount exceeds the earned amount the difference is

an addition to tfae reconciliation.

Compensated Absences, Net (168,369)

Pension Expense, Net (1,273,345)

(1,441,714)

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities (Exhibit A-2) $ 3,947,784

The accompanying Notes to the Fmancial Statements are an Integral Pa-t of this Statement.



EXHIBIT B-4

WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
AS OF JUNE 30,2018

ASSETS

Current Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents
latergovemmental Accounts Receivable

State
Federal

Accounts Receivable

Inventories

Total Current Assets

Capital Assets
Machinery & Equipment
Less; Accumulated Depreciation

Total Capital Assets, Net

Total Assets

Business-Type Activities-Enterprise Funds
Other Non-Major

Enterprise
Food Services Fund Total

129,534 $ 107,038 $ 236,572

377
9,038

4,453

143,402

591,061
(496,685)

94,376

237,778

6,881

113,919

113,919

377
9,038
6,881
4,453

257,321

591,061
(496,685)

94,376

351,697

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable
Unearned Revenue

Total Current Liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred Commodities Revenue

Total Current Liabilities and Deferred Inflows of Resources

NET POSITION

Investment ia Capital Assets
Unrestricted

Total Net Position

180
39,616

39,796

1,617

666
5,120

5,786

846
44,736

45,582

1,617

41,413

94,376
101,989

$ 196,365 $

5,786

108,133

108,133 $

47,199

94,376
210,122

304,498

The accompanying "Notes to the Financial Statements are an Integral Part of this Statement.
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EXHIBIT B-5

WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS .

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN NET POSITION

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2018

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for Services

Daily Sales - Reimbursable

Daily Sales - Non Reunbuisable
Program Fees

Total Operating Revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES
Cost of Sales - Reimbursable
Cost of Sales - Non Reimbursable
Salaries and Employee Benefits

Purchased Property Services
Supplies and Materials
Purchased Professional and Technical Services
Repairs & Mamtenance

Other Purchased- Services

Miscellaneous Expenditures
Depreciation

Total Operatmg Expenses

Operating Income/(Loss)

NONOPERATING REVENUES
State Sources

School Lunch Program
Federal Sources

School Breakfast Program
National School Lunch Program
Food Distribution Program

Total Nonoperating Revenues

Change in Net Position

Total .Net Position, Begmnmg of Year (Restated)

Total Net Position, End of Year

Business-Type Activities-Enterprise Funds

Food Services

$ 370,431
856,326

1,226,757

223,063
354,812
851,560

35,792
6,433

13,994
363

6,586
14,883

1,507,486

(280,729)

Other Non-Major
Enterprise

Fund

$ 448.023

448,023

315,093
76,286

7,123

18,159

416,661

31,362

Total

370,431
856,326
448.023

1,674,780

223,063
354,812

1,166,653
76,286

42,915
6,433

13,994
18,522
6,586

14,883

1,924,147

(249,367)

8,757 8,757

10,980
198,036
45,776

263,549

(17,180)

213,545

$ 196,365 $

31,362

76,771

108,133 $

10,980
198,036
45,776

263,549

14,182

290,316

304,498

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are au Integral Part of this Statement.
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EXHIBIT B-6

WALL TOWNSHIP BOAED OF EDUCATION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2018

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from Customers
Payments to Employees' Salaries and Benefits
Payments to Suppliers for Goods and Services

Net Cash Provided/(Used) by Operatmg Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVTTIES
State and Federal Sources

Net Cash Provided by 'Noncapital Financing Activities

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginnmg of Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash Provided/
(Used) by Operating Activities

Operating Income/ (Loss)
Adjustments to Reconcile Operatmg Income/(Loss) to

Net Cash Provided/(Used) by Operating Activities

Depreciation
Food Distribution (USDA Commodities) National School Lunch

Change m Assets, Liabilities and Deferred Inflows of Resources

Increase/(Decrease) in Accounts Payable
(Increase)/Decrease in Accounts Receivable
Increase/(Decrease) in Unearned Revenue

Iucrease/(Decrease) m Deferred Commodities Revenue
(Increase)/Decrease m Inventories

Total Adjustments

Net Cash Provided/(Used) by Operating Activities

Non-Cash Financing Activities
Fair Value of Food Distribution Program - National School Lunch

Business-Type Activities-Enterprise Funds

Food Services

$ 1,232,979
(851,560)
(595,362)

(213,943)

219,250

219,250

5,307

124,227

$ 129,534

Other Non-Major
Enterprise

Fund

$ 448,277 $
(314,427)
(101,568)

32,282

32,282

74,756

$ 107,038 $

Total

1,681,256
(1,165,987)

(696,930)

_ (181,661)

219,250

219,250

37,589

198,983

236,572

$ (280,729) $_

66,786

(213,943) $

31,362 $

920

(249,367)

14,883
45,776

180

6,222
1,617

(1,892)

666
(4,294)
4,548

14,883
45,776

846
(4,294)
10,770

1,617
(1>892)

67,706

32,282 $ (181,661)

47,393

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an Integral Part of this Statement.
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KXfflBIT B-7

WALL TOWNSHIP BOAKD OF EDUCATION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF FD)UCIARY NET POSITION
AS OF JUNE 30,2018

Unemployment Private
Compensation Purpose

Trust Fund Scholarships Fund Aeencv Fund

ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents 245,584 $ 45,468 364,670

Total Assets

LIABXLmES
Intergovernmental Payable
Payroll Deductions and Withholdings

Flexible Spending (Sect. 125) Plan
Due to Student Groups

Total Liabilities

NET POSITION
Held in Trust for Unemployment

Clauns

Restricted for Scholarships

245,584

4,225

4,225

241,359

45,468

.45,468

364,670

77,500
12,786

274,384

364,670

The accompanying Notes to tJhe Financial Statements are an Integral Part of this Statement.
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EXHIBIT B"8

WALL TOWSrSHTP BOARD OF EDUCATION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2018

ADDFTIONS
Contributions

Donations

Employee Contributions

Unemployment

Compensation
TrustFund

77,161

Private Purpose

ScholarsMps
Fund

2,681

Total Contributions 77,161 2,681

Investment Earnings

Interest 47

Net Investment Earnings

Total Additions

DEDUCTIONS
Unemployment Claims and Contributions
ScliolarsMps Awarded

Total Deductions

Change m Net Position

Net Position, Begmning of Year

Net Position, End of Year $

77,161

96,515

96,515

(19,354)

260.713

241,359 $

47

2,728

4,750

4,750

(2,022)

47,490

45,468

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an Integral Part of this Statemen.t.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION
NOTES TO TJ3E FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2018

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. Reportmg_Entit¥

The Wall Township Board of Education (fhe "Board" or the "District") is an mstnmientality of the State of New Jersey,
established to function as an education institution. The Board consists of nine elected officials and is responsible for the
fiscal control of the District A superintendent is appointed by the Board and is responsible for fhe administrative control of
the District. Under existing statutes, the Board's duties and powers include, but are not limited to, fee development and
adoption of a school program; the establishment, organization and operation of schools; and the acquisition, maintenance and
disposition of school property. --

The Board also has broad financial responsibilities, mcluding fhe approval of the annual budget and tiie establishment of a
system of accounting and budgetary controls.

The reporting entity is composed of the primary government, component units, and other organizations that are included to
ensure that the financial statements of fhe District are not misleading. The primary government consists of all funds,
departments, boards and agencies that are not legally separate from fhe District. For the Wall Township Board of Education
this includes general operations, food service, before and after school programs and student related activities of the District.

Component units are legally separate organizations for which file District is imancially accountable. The District is
financially accountable for an organization iffhe Dist-ict appoints a voting majority of the organization's governing board
and (1) fhe District is able to sigMftcantly influence ftie programs or services perfonned or provided by the organization; or
(2) the District is legally entitled to or can otherwise access fhe organization's resources; fhe District is legally obligated or
has otherwise assumed the responsibility to finance the deficits of, or provide financial support to, the organization; or the
District is obligated for Ae debt of the organization. Component units may also include organizations that are fiscally
dependent on the District in that fhe District approves ftte budget, the issuance of debt or the levying of taxes. Based on the
foregoing criteria, the District has no component units. Furthermore, the District is not iachidable in any otlier reporting
entity as a component unit.

B. New Accountins Standards

During fiscal year 201 8, the District adopted the followmg GASB statements as required:

• GASB No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. The
prunaiy objective of tins Statement is to improve accounting and financial reporting by state and local governments
for postemployment benefits oftier tiian pensions (other postemployment benefits or OPEB). It also improves
mfornaatioa provided by state and local governmental employers about financial support for OPEB that is provided
by ofher entities.

• GASB No. 85, Omnibus 2017. The objective offhls Statement is to address practice issues that have been identified
during unplementation and application of certain GASB Statements. This Statement addresses a variety of topics
including issues related to blending component units, goodwill, fair value measurement and application, and post-
employment benefits (pensions and ofher post-employment benefits (OPBB)).

• GASB No. 86, Certain Debt Extinguishjnent Issues. The primary objective of this Statement is to improve
consistency in accounting and fmancial reporting for in-substance defeasance of debt by providing guidance for
transactions in which cash and olfaer monetary assets acquired wltfi only existing resources - resources other than
the proceeds of refunding debt are placed in an irrevocable trust for the sole purpose of exfcmgaishmg debt. This
Statement also improves accounting and fmancial reporting for prepaid insurance on debt that is extinguished and
notes to fmaacial statements for debt that is defeased in substance.

37



WAU. TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2018

NOTE I SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

B. New Accountins Standards (Continued)

Other accounting standards fhat the District is currently reviewing for applicability and potential Impact on fhe financial
statements include:

• GASB No. 84, Fiduciary Activities, will be effective with the fiscal year ending June 30,2020. The objective offhis
Statement is to improve guidance regarding the identification of fiduciary activities for accounting and financial
reporting purposes and how those activities should be reported. This Statement established criteria for identifying
fiduciary activities of all state and local governments.

• GASB No. 87, Leases, will be effective with the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021. The objective of this Statement is
to better meet ftie information needs of financial statement users by improving accounting and financial reporting for
leases by governments. This Statement increases the usefulness of governments' financial statements by requiring
recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities for leases that previously were classified as operating leases and
recognized as mflows of resources or outflows of resources basQd. on the payment provisions of the contract.

• GASB No. 88, Certain Disclosures Related to Debt, Including Direct Borrowings and Direct Placements, will be
effective beginning with the year ending June 30, 2019. The primary objective of this Statement is to improve the
information that is disclosed m notes to government financial statements related to debt, including direct borrowings
and direct placements. It also clarifies which liabilities governments should include when disclosing information
related to debt. This Statement will improve financial reporting by providing users of financial statements with
essential information fhat currently is not consistency provided. In addition, m&nnation about resources to liquidate
debt and the risks associated with changes m terms association witii debt will be disclosed.

• GASB No. 89, Accounting for Interest Costs Incurred Before the End of a Construction Period, will be effective
beginning with &e year ending June 30,2020. The objectives of this Statement are (1) to enhance the relevance and
comparabilify of in&rmation about capital assets and the cost of borrowing for a reporting period and (2) to simplify
accounting for interest cost mcurred before the end of a construction period. This Statement requires that interest
cost incurred before the end of a construction period be recognized as an expense m fhe period in which the cost is
incurred for fmancial statements prepared using the economic resources measurement focus. As a result, interest

cost incurred before the end of a construction period will not be included in the historical cost of a capital asset
reported in a busmess-fype activity or enterprise fund,

C. Basis of Presentation - Financial Statemettts

The financial statements include both district-wide fmancial statements (based on the District as a whole) and fund fmancial
statements (based on specific District activities or objectives). Both the distdct-wide and fund fmancial statements
categorize activities as either governmental activities or business-type activities. While separate distdct-wide and fund
fmancial statements are presented, they are mten'elated. In the distdct-wide fmancial statements, the governmental activities
column incorporates data from governmental fus.ds while business-type activities incorporate data &om fhe District's
enterprise funds. Fiduciary funds are excluded from the distdct-wide financial statements.

38



WALL TOTO4SHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE CTSCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2018

NOTE I SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

C* Basis of Presentation - Financial Statements (Continued)

Dxstrict-W_ide_Financial iStatements

The distdct-wide financial statements (i.e., fhe statement of net position and fhe statement of activities) report infonaation on
all of the nonfiduciary activities of the Board of Education. All fiduciary activities are reported only in the fund financial
statements. For the most part, tile effect of interfund activity has been removed from tibiese statements. Governmental
activities, whicli nonnally are supported by property taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from
business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support. la ftie statement of net position,
bofh the governmental and busmess-type activities columns (a) are presented on a consolidated basis by column, and (b)
reflect on a full accrual economic resource basis, which incorporates long-term assets and receivables as well as long-term

debt and obligations.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or segment are offset by
program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable witii a specific function or segment. Program
revenues include I) charges to customers or other governmental entities, mcluding other school districts, who purchase, use,
or directly benefit from goods or services provided by a given fimction or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are
restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Property taxes, unrestricted
state aid and other items not properly iacluded among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

As a general rule fhe effect ofinterfimd activity has been eliminated from fhe disfrlct-wide fmancial statements. Exce.ptions
to this general rule are charges between tiie Board's proprietary and fiduciary funds since elimination of these charges would
distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the various functions concerned.

Fund Financial Statements

Separate fund fmancial statements are provided for governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary activities, even. though the latter
are excluded from the disfrict-wide financial statements. The emphasis of fund fmaacial statements is on major individual
governmental and enterprise funds, each reported as separate columns m tile fund financial statements. All remaining
governmental and enterprise funds are aggregated and reported as nonmajor funds. The District considers all of its
governmental aad the food service enterprise fund to be major funds.

The District reports fhe following major governmental funds:

The general ' fimd is the School District's primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the
District, except those to be accounted for in another fund.

The special revenue fund accounts for fhe proceeds of specific revenue sources legally restricted to expenditures for
specified purposes. This fund accounts for federal, state and local fmancial programs, with the exception of grants
for major capital projects and tiie child nutrition programs.

The capital projects fund accounts for the proceeds from the sale of bonds, lease purchases and other revenues used
for the acquisition or construction of capital facilities and other capital assets, other than those fmanced by the

proprietary funds.

The debt service fund accounts for the accumulation of resources that are restricted, committed or assigned for the
payment ofprmdpal and interest on long-term general obligatiofL debt of governmental fimds.
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WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR TJffE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2018

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOXJNTtNG POLICIES (Continued)

C. Basis of Presentation - Financial Statements (Continued)

Fund Financial Statements (Continued)

The District reports the followmg major proprietary fund which is organized to be self-supportmg fhrougli user charges:

The food service fund accounts for the activities offhe school cafeteria, which provides food service to students as
well as a la carte and catermg services for teachers and special events.

The District reports the following non-major proprietary fund which is organized to be self-supporting through user charges:

The before and after school programs fund accounts for the activities of the District's before and after school
program which provides summer classes to students in preparation for the upcoming school year and otlier before
and after school programs.

Additionally, the government reports the following fund types:

The fiduciary trust funds are used to account for resources legally held in trust for state unemployment msurance
claims and for private donations for scholarship awards. All resources of the funds, mcluding any earnings on
invested resources, may be used to support the intended purpose. There is no requirement that any portion of these
resources be preserved as capital.

The fiduciary agency fifnds account for assets held by fhe District as an agent for student activities and for payroll
deductions and withholdings. The funds for the student activities fund are solely for noninstructional student
activities that are supported and controlled by stident organizations and clubs for which school administration does
not have management involvement. The payroll funds are held to remit employee wifhholdings to respective state,
federal and other agencies.

Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowmg arrangements outstanding at the end of the fiscal year
are referred to as either "due to/from otiier funds" (i.e., the current portion of interfund loans) or "advances to/fi-om other
funds" (i.e., fhe non-cun-ent portion of interfund loans). All other outstanding balances between funds are reported as "due

to/from other funds". Any residual balances outstanding between fhe govemmental activities and business-type activities are
reported m the distdct-wide financial statements as "internal balances".

Reclassifications

Certain amounts presented in tfae prior year data may have been reclassified in order to be consistent wifh the current
year's presentation.

D. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

The accounting and financial reporting treatment is determined by the applicable measurement focus and basis of
accounting. Measurement focus indicates fhe type of resources being measured such as current financial resources or
economic resources. The basis of accounting indicates ftie timmg of transactions or events for recogaition in the fmancial
statements.
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WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JTJNE 30,2018

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTmG POLICIES (Continued)

D. Measurement Focus and Basis ofAccountine (Continued)

The distriot-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of

accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial statements with the exception of the agency fund which
does not have a measurement focus. All assets, all liabilities and all deferred outflows/inflows of resources associated wifh
these operations (with the exception of the fiduciary funds) are mcluded on the Statement of Net Position. Revenues are
recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at fhe time liabilities are incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash
flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in fhe year for which they are levied. Grants and sunilar items are
recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by fhe provider have been met.

Governmental fund fmancial statements are reported using the current fmancial resources measurement focus and fhe

modified accrual basis of accoimtmg. Revenues are recognized when susceptible to accmal (i.e. when they are bofti
measurable and available). Revenues are considered to be available when they are coUectible wifhin fhe current period or
soon enough ftiereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For fhis purpose, the Board considers revenues to be available
if they are collected within 60 days after year-end. Expenditures are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accraal
basis of accounting, with the exception of debt service expenditures as well as expenditures related to compensated absences
and claims andjudgmeate which are recorded only when payment is due. General capital asset acquisitions are reported as
expenditures in governmental funds. Issuance of long-term debt and acquisitions under capital leases are reported os oftier
fmancing sources.

Property taxes, tuition, unrestricted state aid, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all considered to be
susceptible to accrual and so have been recog&ized as revenues of fh.e current fiscal period. Entitlements (foranula-type

grants and aid) are recorded as revenues when all eligibility requirements are met, including any time requirements, and fhe
amount is received durmg the period or wiffain the availability period for this revenue source. Expenditure-driven. grants and
similar awards (reimbursement-type grants and awards) are recognized as revenue when the qualifying expenditures have
been incurred and all ofher eligibility requirements imposed by the grantor or provider have been met, and the amount is
received during the period or wi&in the availability period for tihis revenue source. All other revenue items are considered to
be measurable and available only when cash is received by the District.

"When bofh restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is tiie Board's policy to use restricted resources first,
then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

E. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Qutflpws/Inflows of Resources, and Net Position/Fund Balance

L Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments

Cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and short-term investments with original
maturities of three monfhs or less from the date of acquisition.

Investments are reported at fair value and are limited byN.J.S.A. 18A:20"37.

Z Receivables

All receivables are reported at their gross value, and where appropriate, are reduced by 1tie estunated portion tiiat is expected
to be uncollectible.
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WALL TOWNSBDCP BOARD OF EDUCATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JU? 30,2018

NOTE I SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

E. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources, and Net Position/Fund Balance (Continued)

3, Inventories

The cost of inventories of the governmental fund types are recorded as expenditures at the time individual inventory items
are purchased.

Food Service Fund inventories, exclusive offhe federal commodities, are valued at cost, using ttie first-in first-out (FIFO)
mefhod and consist of food and expendable supplies. The cost of such inventories is recorded as expenses when consumed
rather than when purchased. The United States Department of Agriculture (USDA) commodity portion offhe Food Service
Fund inventory consists of food donated by the USDA. It is valued at estimated market prices by the USDA. The amount of
unused commodities inventory atyear-end is reported as deferred inflows of resources.

4. Restricted Assets

Certain assets are classified as resti'icted on the balance sheet because they are maintained in separate bank accounts held by
a fiscal agent and their use is limited for working capital amounts stipulated by healtibi msurance agreements.

5. Capital Assets

Capital assets, which molude property, plant and equipment, are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type
activities columns in fhe distdct-wide fmancial statements. Capital assets are defmed by ftie Board as assets with. an initial,
individual cost of $2,000 and an estunated usefiil life in excess of two years. The District was able to estimate the historical
cost for the initial reporting of these capital assets through back trending. As fhe Disbritct constructs or acquires additional
capital assets each period, they are capitalized and reported at historical cost. Donated capital assets are recorded at
acquisition value at the date of donation. The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the
asset or materially extend its useful Ufe are not capitalized.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed. Interest incurred during the
construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is included as part of the capitalized value of the assets
constructed.

Land and construction m progress are not depreciated. The other property, plant, and equipment of the District is
depreciated using the straight line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Assets ' Years

Improvements Other Than Buildiags 15-20
Buildings ' 40
Building Improvements 20
Heavy Equipment 10-20
Office Equipment and Furniture 6-10
Computer Equipment 5
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WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2018

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

E. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Infiows of Resources, and Net Position/Fund Balance (Continued)

6. Deferred Outflows/inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of fmancial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred outflows of
resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net

position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure)
until then. The Board has two items which arise only under tile accmal basis of accomtmg that qualify for reporting in this
category. One item is the deferred amount on refunding of debt which results from the loss on a debt refunding reported in
the district-wide statement of net position. Deferred amounts on debt refunding result from tile loss on the transaction when
the debt's reacquisition price is greater than ftie carrymg value of the refunded debt. These amounts are deferred and
amortized over the shorter of the life of the refunded or refmiding debt. The other item that qualifies for reporting in this
category is fhe deferred amounts on net pension liability. Deferred amounts on net pension liability are reported m the
district-wide statement of net positiofl and result fi'om; (1) differences between expected and actual experience; (2) cliaages
in assumptions; (3) net difference between projected and achial investment earnings on pension plan investments; (4)
changes m proportion and differences between employer contributions and proportionate share of contributions; and (5)
contributions made subsequent to the measurement date. These amounts are deferred and amortized over future years.

5n addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows of
resources. This separate fmaiicial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net position

that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The Board
has two types of item which arise only under fhe accroal basis of accounting that qualify for reporting in fbds category. One
item Aat qualifies for reporting m this category are the deferred amounts on net pension liability. Deferred amounts on net
pension liability are reported in the distnct-wide statement of net position and result from: (I) differences between expected
and actual experience; (2) changes in assumptions; (3) net dijfference between projected and actual investment earnings on
pension plan investments; and (4) changes in proportion and differences between employer contributions and proportionate
share of contributions. These amounts are deferred and amoitized over future years. The other type of item fhat qualifies for
reporting in this category is tiie deferred commodities revenue, reported in botii the district-wide and the proprietary funds
statements of net position. The deferred commodities revenue represents the estimated market value of fhe donated and
unused Federal commodities inventory at year end. This amount is deferred and recognized as an inflow of resources in the
period the commodities are consumed.

7. Compensated Absences

It is the District's policy to permit employees to accumulate (with certain restrictions) earned but unused vacation and sick
leave benefits. A long-term liability of accumulated vacation, personal and sick leave and salary related payments has been
recorded in the governmental activities in the district-wide financial statements, representmg the Board's commitment to
jEund such costs from future operations. Proprietary Funds accme accumulated vacation and sick leave and salary related
payments m the period that fhey are earned. A liability is reported in the governmental funds only to the amount actually due
at year end as a result of employee resignations and retirements.
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NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

E. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources, and Net Position/Fund Balance (Continued)

8. Pensions

In the district-wide financial statements, for purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources
and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, infomiation about the fiduciaiy net position of
the retirement systems sponsored and administered by the State of New Jersey and additions to/deductions from these
retirement systems' fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the retb-ement
systems. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refands of employee contributions) are recognized when due and
payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

In th.e govenunental fund financial statements, net pension, liabilities represent amounts normally expected to be liquidated
with expendable available financial resources for required pension contributions that are due and payable at year end.
Pension expenditures are recognized based on contractual pension contributions that are required to be made to the pension
plan during the fiscal year.

9. Long-Term Obligations

In tiie district-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types m the fund financial statements, long-term debt and other
long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in ftie applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or
proprietary fand type statement of net position. Cams resulting from debt reftmdmgs are classified as deferred inflows of
resources and losses are reported as deferred outflows of resources. Bond premiums and discounts are deferred and

amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective interest mefh.od. Gains and losses resultmg from debt refundmgs are
also deferred and amortized over fhe life of tfae refunded bonds or new bonds whichever is less using the effective interest
method. Bonds payable are reported witii the unamortized bond premium or discount. Bond issuance costs (other than for
prepaid insurance) are treated as an expense.

In the fund fmancial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well as bond issuance
costs, during fhe current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums received
on debt issuances are reported as ofher financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other fmancing
uses. Issuance costs, whefher or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service

expenditires.

10. Net Positioji/Fund Balance

District-Wide Statements

In the district-wide statements, there are three classes of net position:

• Net Investment in Capital Assets - consists of net capital assets (cost less accumulated depreciation) reduced by
outstanding balances of related debt obligations from the acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets.
Deferred outflows of resources and defeired mflows of resources attributable to the acquisition, construction or
unprovement offhose assets or related debt also should be included.
Restricted Net Position " reports set position when constraints placed on the residual amount ofnoncapital assets
are either externally imposed by creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws or
regulations of other governments, or imposed by law fhrougli constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.
Unrestricted Net Position - any portion of net position not ah-eady classified as either net investment in capital
assets or net position - restricted is classified as net position - unrestricted.
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NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

E. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources, and Net Position/Fund Balance (Continued)

10. Net Positiofi/Fund Balance (Continued)

GovernmentalFundStatements

Fund balance categories are designed to make fhe nature and extent of the constraints placed on fhe District's fimd balance
more transparent. These categories are comprised of a hierarchy based primarily on the extent to which fhe District is bound
to observe consb'amts imposed upon the use of fee resources reported in governmental funds.

Restricted Fund Balance - Amounts constrained to specific purposes by their providers (such as grantors, bondholders, and
higher levels of government), through constitutional provisions, or by enabling legislation.

Capital Reserve ~ This restriction was created by the District in accordmice wifh NJAC 6A:23A-14.1 to fund future
capital expenditures (See Note 3B ).

Capital Reserve - Designated for Subsequent Year's Expenditures - This designation was created to dedicate the portion
of capital reserve fund balance appropriated in the adopted 2018/2019 District budget certified for taxes.

Maintenance Reserve - This restriction was created by the Board in accordance with NJAC 6A:23A-14.2 to
accumulate fands for the required maintenance of school facilities in accordance with the EFCA CNJSA 18A:7G~9)
for a thorough and efficient education. (See Note 3C).

Maintenance Reserve - Designated for Subsequent Year's Expenditwes ~ This designation was created to dedicate tiie
portion ofmamtenance reserve fund balance appropriated in fhe adopted 2018/2019 District budget certified for taxes

Emergency Reserve - This restriction was created m accordance withNJAC 6A:23A-14.4(A)1 to accumulate funds in
accordance with State statute to fmaace unanticipated general fund expenditures required for a thorough and efficient
education. (See Note 3D).

Capital Projects^ - Represents fund balance restricted specifically for capital acquisitions and improvements in the
Capital Projects Fund.

Committed Fund Balance - Amounts constrained to specific purposes by a government itself, using its higiiest level of
decision-maldng authority; to be reported as committed, amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless fhe
government takes the same highest level action to remove or change tiie constraint.

Year-End Encumbrances - Represents outstanding purchase orders at year end for con.tracte awarded by formal action of

the Board of Trustee's for specific purposes from available resources of the current year for which the goods and
materials have not yet been received or the services have not yet been rendered at June 30.
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NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

E. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources, and Net Position/Fund Balance (Continued)

10. Net Position/Fund Balance (Continued)

Governmental Fund Statements (Continued)

Assigned Fund Balance - Amounts a government intends to use for a specific purpose; intent can be expressed by the
governing body or by an official or body to which fhe governing body delegates fhe authority.

Year-End Encumbrances - Represent outstandiag purchase orders for goods or services approved by management for
specific purposes from available resources of the current year for which the goods and materials have not yet been
received or the services have not yet been rendered at June 3 0.

Designated for Subsequent Year )s ExyendUzyes - This desigaation was created to dedicate the portion of fund balance
appropriated in the adopted 2018/2019 District budget certified for taxes.

Unassiened Fund Balance " Represents fund ba.lance that has not been restricted, committed or assigned to specific
purposes wi&m tile governmental funds.

In the general operating ftmd and other governmental funds (capital projects and debt service fund types), it is the District's
policy to consider resb-icted resources to have been spent first when. an expenditure is mcmred for purposes for which botii
restricted and unrestricted (i.e., committed, assigned or unassigaed) fund balances are available, followed by committed and
then assigned fund balances. Unassigned amounts are used only after the otiier resources have been used.

11. Fund Balance Policies

Fund balance of governmental funds is reported in various categories based on the nature of any limitations requiring the use
of resources for specific purposes. The government itself can establish limitations on the use of resources through either a
comimtraent (committed fund balance) or an assignment (assigned fund balance).

The committed fund balance classification mcludes amounts that can be used only for the specific purposes determiaed by a
formal action of the government's highest level ofdecision-making autiiority. The Board of Trustees is ftie highest level of
decision-maldng authority for tiie government that can, by adoption of a resolution or formal Board action prior to the end of
the fiscal year, commit fund balance. Once adopted, the limitation imposed by the resolution remains m place until a similar
action is taken (the adoption of another resolution) to remove or revise the limitation.

Amounts in the assigned fund balance classification are intended to be used by the government for specific purposes but do
not meet fhe criteria to be classified as committed. The Board has authorized the School Busmess Admiaistrator/Board
Secretary to assiga fund balance. The Board may also assign fund balance as it does when appropriating fund balance to
cover a gap between estimated revenue and appropriations in the subsequent year's appropriated budget. Unlike
comxnitments, assignments generally only exist temporarily. la other words, an additional action does not normally have to
be taken for tiie removal of an assignment. Conversely, as discussed above, an additional action is essential to either remove
or revise a commitment.
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NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOTOTING POLICIES (Continued)

F. Revenues andj£xpenditures/Exp_enses

1. Program Revenues

Amounts reported as program revenues in the district-wide statement of activities include 1) charges to customers or
applicants for goods or services, provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and contributions.
latemaUy dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather fhas as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues

include all property taxes, unrestricted state aid, investment earnings and miscellaneous revenues.

2. Property Taxes

Property taxes are levied pursuant to law and are collected by the municipality and are transferred to the District as
requested. Property tax revenues are recognized in tiie year they are levied and become available. Property taxes collected
in advance of fee year-end for which they are levied and transferred to the District are reported as deferred inflows of
resources. The tax bills are mailed annually in June by fhe mmicipal tax collector and are levied and due in four quarterly
installxnents on August 1, November I, February 1 and May 1 offhe fiscal year. When unpaid, taxes or any other mumcipal
lien, or part thereof, on real property, remains in arrears on April 1 in the year following the calendar year levy when the
same became m arrears, fhe tax collector of the municipality shall, subject to tie provisions of New Jersey Statute, enforce
fh.e lien by placmg the property on a tax sale. The municipality may institute aimual "in rem" tax foreclosure proceedings to
enforce the tax collection or acquisition of title to the property.

3. Tuition Revenues and Expenditures

Tuition Revenues - Tuition, charges were established by the Board of Education based on estimated costs. The charges are
subject to adjustment when the fmal costs are determined and certified by fhe State Department of Education.

Tuition Expenditures - Tuition charges for the fiscal years 2016-2017 and 2017-2018 were based on rates established by the
receiving district. These rates are subject to change when the actual costs have been certified by the State Department of
Education.

4. Proprietary funds, Operating and Nonoperating Revenues and Expenses

Proprietary funds distinguisli operatmg revenues snd expenses from nonoperating items. Operatmg revenues and expenses
generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with. a proprietary fund's
principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the food service enterprise fund and offhie before and
after school program enterprise fund are charges to customers for sales and services. Operating expenses for enterprise
funds include tfae cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. AU revenues and
expenses not meetmg this defmition are reported os nonoperatmg revenues and expenses. Federal and State subsidies for fhe
food service operation are considered nonoperating revenues.
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NOTE 2 RECONCILIATION OF DISTRICT-WIDE A? FUND FmANCIAL STATEMENTS

A. Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund balance sheet and the district-wide
statement of net position

The governmental fand balance sheet includes a reconciliation between fund balance -~ total governmental funds and net
position- governmental activities as reported hi the district-wide statemeat of net position. One element of that
reconciliation explains that "loag-tenn liabilities, includmg bonds payable and net pension liability are not due and
payable in the current period and therefore are not reported in the funds." The details of this $47,443,884 difference are
as follows:

Bonds Payable $ (15,420,000)
Add: Issuance of Premium (to be amortized over
life of debt) (1,250,283)

Capital Leases (416,145)
Compensated Absences (1^681,843)
Net Pension Liability (28,675,613)

Net Adjustaaent to Reduce Fund Balance - Total Governmental Funds
to arrive at Net Position - Governmental Activities $ (47,443,884)

B. Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and

changes in fund balances and the district-wide statement of activities

Another element of that reconciliation states that "the issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds, leases) provides current
financial resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of fhe principal of long-term debt consumes the current
financial resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net position". The details of

ftiis $2,278,656 difference are as follows:

Debt issued or incurred:
Capital Lease $ (300,000)

Principal repayments:
General Obligation Bonds $ 2,320,000
Payment on Capital Lease 258,656

Net Adjustment to Increase Net Changes in Fund Balances - Total
Governmental Funds to arrive at Changes m Net Position of

Governmental Activities $ 2,278,656
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NOTE 3 STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

A. Budgetary Information

la accordaace witii fh,e requirements of the New Jersey Department of Education ("fhe Department'), the District annually
prepares its operating budget for the forfhcormng year. The budget, except for fhe general fund and special revenue fund,
which is more fully explained below and m the notes to the required supplementary infomiation, is prepared in accordance
with accounting prmciples generally accepted in the United States of America and serves as a formal plan for expenditures
and fhe proposed means for fmancmg them. Capital lease transactions are accoimted for on fhe GAAP basis.

The annual budget is adopted m the spring of the preceding year for the general, special revenue and debt service funds. The
District is not required to adopt an annual budget for the capital projects fand. The budget is submitted to the county
superintendent for review and approval prior to adoption. Prior to the 2012/2013 budget year, the annual budget was
required to be voted upon at the annual school election held on the third Tuesday in April. On January 17, 2012, Chapter
202 of the Laws ofPJL 2011 was approved which established procedures for moving the date of a scliool district's aimual
school election from April to the general election m November. Under the new law, districts that have tiieir school board
members elected m November no longer have to submit their budgets tiiat meet levy cap requirements for voter approval
beginning with the 2012/2013 budget year. Only a school board decision to exceed fhe tax levy cap would require voter
approval for the additional amount on. the November ballot. On January 17,2012, the Board adopted a resolution to move its
annual election to tiie date of the general elections in accordance with the law; therefore voter approval offde annual budget
is not required.

Budget adoptions and amendments are recorded m the District's board minutes. The budget is amended by the Board of
Trustees as needed fhroughout the year. The budget for revenues, other resources, other uses, and fund balances is prepared

by fund source and amount. The budget for expenditures is prepared by fand, program, function, object and amount. The
legal level of budgetary control is established at fhe line item account within each fund. Line item accounts are defined as
ftie lowest (most specific) level of detail as established pursuant to fhe minimum chart of accounts referenced in N.J.A.C.
6:20-2A.2(m)l. The Board approved several budget transfers during 2017/2018. Also, during 2017/2018 tile Board
increased the original budget by $1,220,498. The increase was funded by additional grant awards, appropriation of
additional state aid in the General Fund and the reappropriation of prior year general fund encumbrances.

Formal budgetary integration into the accountiag system is employed as a management control device during the year. For
governmental funds there are no substantial differences between the budgetary basis of accounting and accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America, with the exception of the legally mandated revenue recognition of certain
state aid payments for budgetary purposes only and fhe treatment of encumbrances m Ae special revenue firnd as described
in the Notes to Required Supplementary Information (R.ST). Encumbrance accounting is also employed as an extension of
formal budgetary integration in fhe governmental fund types. Unencumbered appropriations lapse at fiscal year end.

Encumbrance accounting is employed m fhe governmental funds. Under encumbrance accountmg, purchase orders,

contracts and o&er commitments for the expenditure of resources are recorded to reserve a portion of the applicable
appropriation. Open encumbrances m governmental funds other than the special revenue fund are reported as committed
and/or assigned fund balances at fiscal year end as they do not constitute expenditures or liabilities but mfher commitments
related to unperfonned contracts for goods and services which are reappropriated and honored durmg the subsequent fiscal
year.
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NOTE 3 STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITO (Continued)

B. Capital Reserve

A capital reserve account was established by fhe District. The accimiulation of funds wUl be used for capital outlay
expenditures in subsequent fiscal years. The capital reserve is maintained ia the general fund and its activity is included in
the general fund annual budget.

Funds placed in the capital reserve are restricted to capital projects in the district's approved Long Range Facilities Plan
(LRFP). Upon submission of the LRFP to the Department, a district may increase the balance in the capital reserve by
appropriating funds in the annual general fund budget certified for taxes or by transfer by board resolution at year end of any
unanticipated revenue or unexpended line-item appropriatioti amounts or both. A district may also appropriate additional
amounts when tiie express approval of fh.e voters has been obtained eitiier by a separate proposal at budget time or by a
special question at one offhe four special elections authorized pursuant to N.J.S.A. 19:60-2. Pursuant to HJ.A.C. 6:23A-
14,l(g), the balance in the reserve cannot at any time exceed fhe local support costs of uncompleted capital projects in its
approved LRFP.

The activity of Ae capital reserve for fhe fiscal year ended June 30,2018 is as follows:

Balance, July 1,2017 $ 4,855,245

Increased by:
Deposits Approved in District Budget . $ 150,000
Deposits Approved by Board Resolution 2,527,550

2,677,550

7,532,795
Decreased by:

Withdrawals Approved in District Budget 650,000

Balance, June 30,2018 $ 6,882,795

Designated in 2018/19 Budget $ 3,100,000
Available Capital Reserve 3,782,795

$ 6,882,795

The witiidrawals from the capital reserve were for use in a department approved facilities project, consistent witii the
district's Long Range Facilities Plan. $3,100,000 of the capital reserve balance at June 30, 2018 was designated and
appropriated for use in the 2018/2019'original budget certified for taxes.
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NOTE 3 STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOTOTABMTY (Continued)

C. Maintenance Reserve

A maintenance reserve account was established by the District. The accumulation of funds will be used for required
maintenance of school facilities expenditures in subsequent fiscal years. The maintenance reserve is maintained in fhe
General Fund and its activity is included in the General Fund annual budget.

Funds placed in ftie mamtenance reserve are restricted to required mamtenance activities for a school facility as reported in
fhe compreherLsive mamtenance plan. A District may appropriate funds into the maintenance reserve in the annual General
Fund budget certified for taxes or by transfer by board resolution at year end of any unanticipated revenue or usexpended
line item appropriation amounts or both. Pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6A:23A-l4.2(g), tiie balance in fhe reserve cannot at any time
exceed four percent of the replacement cost of the school district's school facilities for the current year.

The activity of the mamtenance reserve for the fiscal year ended June 30,2018 is as follows:

Balance, July 1,2017

Increased by:
Deposits Approved m District Budget

Decreased by:

Withdrawals Approved m District Budget

Balance, June 30,2018

Designated in 2018/19 Budget
Available Maintenance Reserve

The June 30,2018 comprehensive mamtenance plan indicated a maximum maintenance reserve amount of $2,975,487, The
withdrawals from tlie mamtenance reserve were for use in required maintenance activities for school facilities. $500,000 of
the maintenance reseive balance at June 30,2018 was designated and appropriated for use in the 2018/2019 original budget
certified for taxes.

D. Emergency Reserve

An emergency reserve account was established by the District. The accumulation of funds will be used to finance
unanticipated General Fund current expenditures required for a fhorough and efficient education in subsequent fiscal years.

Funds placed in the emergency reserve are restricted to fmance reasonably unforeseeable costs and shall not include
additional costs due to poor planning. A District may appropriate funds into the emergency reserve in the annual General
Fitnd budget certified for taxes or by transfer by board resolution at year end of any unanticipated revenue or unexpended
line Item appropriation amounts or both. Witiidrawals from the reserve require the approval of fhe Conumssionerunless the
witiidrawal Is necessary to meet an increase in total healfti care costs in excess of four percent or the withdrawal is mcluded
m the original budget certified for taxes to finance school security improvements to school facilities pursuant to 18A:7G-
6(c)l. Pursuant toNJAC 6A:23A-14.4(A), the balance in the reserve cannot at any tune exceed tfie greater of $250,000 or
one percent of the school district's General Fund budget as certified for taxes up to a maximum of $1,000,000.
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NOTE 3 STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABHJTY (Continued)

D. Emereency Reserve (Continued)

The activity offhe emergency reserve for the fiscal year ended June 30,2018 is as follows:

Increased by;
Deposits Approved by Board Resolution $_695,000

Balance, June 30,2018 $ 695,000

E. Transfers to Capital Outlay

Durmg the 2017/2018 school year, the district transferred $150,000 to the non-equipment capital outlay accounts. The
transfer was approved by the County Superintendent to support an emergent circumstance pursuant to N.JA.C. 6A:23A-
13.3(h).

NOTE 4 DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS

A. Cash Deposits and Investments

CashDepQsits

The Board's deposits are insured through either the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC), National Credit Union
Share Insurance Fund (NCUSIP), Securities Investor Protection Corporation (SIPC) or New Jersey's Governmental Unit
Deposit Protection Act (GUDPA). The Board is required to deposit fheir funds in a depository which is protecting such
funds pursuant to GUDPA. The New Jersey Goveramental Unit Deposit Protection Act requires all banJks doiug business in
the State of New Jersey to pledge collateral equal to at least 5% of the average amount of its public deposits and 100% of the
average amount of its public funds in excess of the lesser of 75% of its capital funds or $200 million for all deposits not
covered by the FDIC and NCUSIF.

Bank balances are insured up to $250,000 in fhe aggregate by the PDIC for each bank. NCUSIF insures credit union
accounts up to $250^000 in the aggregate for each financial institution. SIPC replaces cash claims up to a maximum of
$250,000 for each failed brokerage fma. At'June 30, 2018, the book value of the Board's deposits were $13,679,970 and
bank and brokerage firm balances of the Board's deposits amounted to $15,960,392. The Board's deposits which are
displayed on the various fund balance sheets as "cash and cash equivalents" and "cash held with fiscal agents" are
categorized as:

Bank
DepQsitor¥_Accoimt Balance

Insured:

Cash and Cash Equivalents . $ 14,033,146

Uninsured and Collateralized
Cash with Fiscal Agent 1,927,246

$ 15,960,392
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NOTE 4 DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

A. Cash Deposits and Investments (Continued)

Cash Deposits (Continued)

Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits - Custodial credit risk is the risk that in fhe event of a bank failure, the government's
deposits may ndt be returned to it. The Board does not have a policy for custodial credit risk. As of June 30, 2018 the
Board's bank balance of $1,927,246 was exposed to custodial credit risk as follows:

Depository_Account

Uninsured and Collateralized:

Collateral held by pledging financial institution's trust department or agent not in

the Board's name $ 1,927,246

$ 1,927,246

Investments

The Board is permitted to invest public funds in accordance with the types of securities authorized by N.LS.A. 18A;20-37.
Examples of the allowable mvestanents are bonds or other obligations offhe United States or obligations guaranteed by the
United States of America; Government Money Market Mutual Funds; any obligation that a federal agency or a federal
instrumentality has issued in accordance with an act of Congress, which security has a maturity date not greater tiian 397
days from fhe date ofpurcliase, provided that such obligations bear a fixed rate of interest not dependent on any index or
other external factor; bonds or other obligations of the school district or bonds or o&er obligations offhe local unit or units
within which the school district is located; Bonds or other obligations, having a maturity date of not more than 397 days
from the date of purchase, issued by New Jersey school districts, municipalities, counties, and entities subject to the "Local
Authorities Fiscal Control Law," (C.40A:5A-1 et seq.); Other bonds or obligations havuig a maturity date not more than 397
days from the date of purchase may be approved by tike Division of Investment in the Department of fhe Treasury for
investment by school districts; Local Government investment pools; deposits -with ftie State of New Jersey Cash
Management Fund established pursuant to section 1 ofP.L. 1977, c.281 (C.52:l8A-90.4); and agreements for the repurchase
of fully collateralized securities, if transacted in accordance with the above statute.

As of June 3 0,2018, the Board had no outstandmg investments.

B. Receivables

Receivables as of June 30, 2018 for the district's individual major funds and nonrtiajor funds in the aggregate are as
follows:

Non-Major

Receivables:
Accounts

Intergovemmental-

Federal
State

Total Receivables

General

$ 70,113

148,691

$ 218,804

Special
Revenue

$ 10,688

251,948

$ 262,636

Capital
Protects

$ 1,902,898

$ 1,902,898

Food
Service

$ 9,038
377

$ 9,415

Before and
School Proeram

$ 6,881 ;

$ 6,881 ;

Total

$ 87,682

260,986
2,051,966

$ 2,400,634
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NOTE 4 DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

C. Unearned Revenue

Governmental funds report unearned revenue in connection with resources that have been received, but not yet earned.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the various components of unearned revenue reported in the governmental funds

were as follows:

General Fund
Facilities Rental Fees $ 1,250
Tuition 600

Special Revenue Fund

Unencumbered Grant Draw Downs 4,124
Grant Draw Downs Reserved for Encumbrances 22,890

Capital Projects Fund

Unrealized School Facilities Grants 159,889

Total Unearned Revenue for Governmental Funds $ 188,753

D. Capital Assets

Capital^setactivity for the fiscal year ended June 30,2018 was as follows:

Governmental Activities:

Capital Assets, Not Being Depreciated:

Land
Construction in Progess

Total Capital Assets, Not Being Depreciated

Capital Assets, Being Depreciated:

Buildings and Building Improvements

Improvements Other Than Buildings

Machinery and Equipment

Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated

Less Accumulated Depreciation for;

Buildings and Building Improvements

Improvements Other Than Bmldings

Machinery and Equipment

Total Accumulated Depreciation

Total Capital Assets, Being Depreciated, Net

Governmental Activities Capital Assets, Net

(Restated)
Balance,

July 1. 2017

$ 534,652
2,168,161

2,702,813

51,850,065 3

2,280,531

7,370,300

61,500,896

(18,741,741)
(1,790,839)
(6,164,541)

(26,697,121)

34,803,775

$ 37,506,588 ;

Increases

3

S 949,264

751,558
1,700,822

(1,142,291)

(80,028)
(411,642)

(1,633,961)

66,861

? 66,861 ;

Transfers

> (2,147,470)

(2,147,470)

120,715

2,026,755

2,147,470

2,147,470

Balance,

June 30.2018

$ 534,652
20,691

555,343

52,920,044

2,280,531
10,148,613
65,349,188

(19,884,032)

(1,870,867)
(6,576,183)

(28,331,082)

37,018,106

$ 37,573,449
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NOTE 4 DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

D. Capital Assets {Contmued^

Business-Type Activities:

Capital Assets, Being Depreciated;

Machinery and Equipment

Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated

Less Accumulated Depreciation for:

Machinery and Equipment

Total Accumulated Depreciation

Total Capital Assets, Being Depreciated, Net

Busmess-Type Activities Capital Assets, Net

(Restated)

Balance,

July 1,2017

$ 591,061

591,061

(481,802) S

(481,802)

109,259

$ . 109,259 :

Increases

?. _ (14,883)

(14,883)

(14,883)

& (14,883) ;

Decreases

$._ _._-.._

Balance,

JuTLe30,2018

$ 591,061

591,061

(496,685;
(496,685;

94,376

$ 94,376

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the District as follows:

Governmental Activities:
Regular Instruction

Total Jnstnction

Support Services

Stident & Instruction Related Services

General Admmistrative Services

Operations and Maintenance of Plant
Pupil Transportation

Total Support Services

Total Governmental Funds

Total Depreciation Expense - Governmental Activities

Business-Type Activities:
Food Service Fund

Total Depreciation Expense-Busiuess-Type Activities

$ 32,679

32,679

163,396
1,176,452

16,340
245,094

1

1

,601,282

,633,961

,633,961

14,883

14,883
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NOTE 4 DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

D. Capital Assets (Continued')

Construction and Other SieniticantCommitmeats

The District has the following active construction projects as of June 30,2018:

Proiect

Boiler Replacement Project - Old Mill Elementary School
Phone System and Public Address System Replacement (All Schools)

Total

E. Interfund Receivables, Payables, and Transfers

The composition ofinterfund balances as of June 30,2018, is as follows:

Due To/From Other Funds

Remaining
Commitment

$ 172,000
47,826

$ 219,826

Receivable Fund

General Fund
General Fund

Payable Fund

Special Revenue Fund
Capital Projects Fund

The above balances are to cover cash balances which were in an overdraft position.

The District expects all interfund balances to be liquidated withm one year.

Amount

$ 175,508
1,546,679

$ 1,722,187
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NOTE 4 DETADLED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

F* Leases

Capital Leases
The District is leasing buses and equipment totaling $1^282,992 under capital leases. The leases are for terms of 5 years.

The capital assets acquired through capital leases are as follows:

Governmental

Activities

Machinery and Equipment $ 1,282,992

The futire mimm.um lease obligations and the net present value of these minimum lease payments as of June 30, 2018
were as follows:

Fiscal

Year Ending: June_10

2019
2020
2021
2022

Total minimum lease payments
Less; amount representing interest

Present value of minimum lease payments

G. Lona-Term Debt

GeneralPbHeationBpnds

Governmental

Activities

$ 176J51
132,777
62,819
62,819

434,566
(18,421)

$ 416,145

The Board issued general obligation bonds to provide funds for the acquisition and construction of major capital facilities
and other capital assets. The fall faith and credit of the Board are irrevocably pledged for the payment of the principal of
the bonds and the interest thereon,.

Bonds payable at June 30, 2018 are comprised offhe following issues:

$3,790,000,2012 Pension Refunding Bonds, due m

annual mstallmen.ts of $85,000 to $430,000 Ihrough

July 15, 2027, interest at 2.440-4.202% $ 1,925,000

$17,515,000,2015 School Refunding Bonds, due m

aiumal instaUments of $2,020,000 to $2,410,0.00 through

July 15,2023, interest at 4.00-5.00% 13,495,000

$ l5,420,QOO
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NOTE 4 DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

G. Lons-Term Debt (Continued)

The Board's schedule of principal and interest for long-term debt issued and outstanding is as follows:

Governmental Activities:

Fiscal Year Ending Serial Bonds
June 30. Prmcipal Interest Total

2019
2020
2021
2022
2023

2024-2028

2,415,000
2,525,000
2,660,000
2,435,000
2,460,000
2,925,000

662,110
565,977
450,278
324,958
203,281
115,821

3,077,110
3,090,977
3,110,278
2,759,958
2,663,281
3,040,821

Total $ 15,420,000 $ 2,322,425 $ 17,742,425

Statutory Borrowins Power

The Board's remaining borrowing power under NJ.S. l8A:24-19, as amended, at June 30,2018 was as follows:

4% of Equalized Valuation Basis (Municipal) $ 23 6,601,951
Less: Net Debt 15,420,000

R.emaming Borrowing Power $ 221,181,951
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NOTE 4 DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

H. Other Lone-Term Liabilities

Changes inLong-Term Liabilities

Long-term liability activity for the fiscal year ended June 30,2018, was as follows:

Governmental Activities:

Bonds Payable

Add:
Unamortized Premium

Bonds Payable, Net

Capital Leases

Compensated Absences

Net Pension Liability

Governmental Activities

Long-Term Liabilities

Balance,

July 1.2017

$ 17,740,000

1,628,638

19,368,638

374,801 3
1.513,474

37,394,830

$ 58,651,743 3

Additions

; 300,000

237,367

; 537,367 !

Reductions

$ (2,320,000)

(378,355)

(2,698,355)
(258,656)

(68,998)
(8,719,217)

£ (11,745,226)

Balance,

June 30.2018

$ 15,420,000 3

1,250,283

16,670,283

416,145
1,681,843

28,675,613

$ 47,443,884 !j

Due

Within
One Year

i 2,415,000

2,415,000

167,052

i 2,582,052

For fhe governmental activities, tiie liabilities for compensated absences, capital leases and net pension liability are
generally liquidated by the general fund.

NOTES OTHER IWOKMATION

A. Risk Management

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to property, general liability, automobile coverage, theft of, damage to
and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; student accident; tennmation of employees and
natural disasters. The Board has obtained cotnmercial msurance coverage to guard against these events to minimize fhe
exposure to the District should fhey occur. A complete schedule of insurance coverage can be found in the statistical section
of this Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.

The District has established a health and prescription plan for its employees. The plan was established during the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2011. Transactions related to tlie plan are accounted for m the General Fund. The District funds the
entire cost of the plan. Claims are paid directly by the plan.

Estimates of claims payable and of claims incurred, but not reported (TBNR) at June 30,2018, are reported as clams and
judgments payable and accraed liability for insurance claims, respectively. These estimates were determined based on
claim information supplied by the clamis admmistrator and actuary. The unpaid clamis liability of $1,752,034 reported at
June 30,2018 is based on the requirements of the Governmental Accoimting Standards Board Statement No. 10, which
requires fhat a liability for claims be reported if infomiation prior to the issuance of the financial statements mdicates that
it is probable tliat a liability has been incurred at the date of&e financial statements and the amount of the loss can be

reasonably estimated.
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NOTES OTHER INFORMATION (Continued)

A. Risk Management (Continued)

Changes in the balances of claims liabilities for the health insurance plan for the fiscal years ended June 30,2018 and 2017
are as follows:

Governmental Activities:

Unpaid Claims, Begmnmg of Year
Incurred claims (including IBNR's)
Claim payments

Unpaid Claims, End of Fiscal Year

General Fund
Other Current Liabilities

Fiscal Fiscal
Year Ended Year Ended

June 30.2018 June 30.2017

$ 1,737,880 $ 1,430,263
9,106,285 8,151,603
9,092,131 7,843,986

$ 1,752,034 $ 1,737,880

$ 1,752,034 $ 1,737,880

$ 1,752,034 $ 1,737,880

The District is a member offhe School Excess Liability Joint Insurance Fund (SEL) and Diploma Joint lasurance Fund. The
Funds are risk sharing public entity pool, established for the purpose of insuring against worker's compensation claims and
various other types of coverage.

The relationship between the Board and fhe insurance funds is governed by a contoract and by-laws that have been adopted by
resolution of each unit's governing body. The Board is contractually obligated to make all annual and supplementary
contributions to the funds, to report claims on a timely basis, cooperate with fhe management of fhe funds, its claims
administrator and attorneys in claims investigation and settlement, and to follow risk management procedures as outlined by
the funds. Members have a contractual obligation to fund any deficit of the funds attributable to a membership year durmg
which ftiey were a member.

The Funds provide its members with risk management services, mcluding the defense of and settlement of claims and to
establish reasonable and necessary loss reduction and prevention procedures to be followed by file members. Complete
financial statements of the respective insurance funds are on file witti tiie School's Business Administrator,

There has been no significant reduction in insurance coverage from the previous year nor have there been any settlements m
excess of msurance coverage's in any of the prior tb'ee years. '

The District has elected to fund its New Jersey Unemplovment Compensation Insurance under the "Benefit Reimbursement
Method". Under fhis plan the District is reauired to reimburse fhe New Tersey Unemployment Trust Fund for benefits paid
to its former employees and charged to its account witii the State. The District is billed quarterly for amounts due to the
State. The followms is a summary of District contributions, employee contributions, reimbursements to ftie State for
benefits paid and the ending balance offhe District's fiduciary trust fund for fhe current and previous two years:

Fiscal
Year Ended

June 30,

2018
2017
2016

Employee
Contributions

$ 77,161
50,064
74,567

Amount
Remibursed

$ 96,515
33,440
44,365

Ending
Balance

241,359
260,713
244,089
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NOTES OTHER INFORMATION (Continued)

B. Contineent Liabilities

The District is a party defendant in. some lawsuits, none of a kind unusual for a school district of its size and scope of
operation. la the opirdon of fhe Board s Attorney the potential claims against fhe Dista'ict not covered by insurance policies
would not materially affect the fmancial condition of&e District.

Federal and State Awards - The Board participates in a number of federal and state programs that are fully or partially
jEunded by grants received from other governmental units. Expenditures financed by grants are subject to audit by Ihe
appropriate grantor government. If expenditures are disallowed due to noncompliance wifh grant program regulations, the
Board maybe required to reimburse fhe grantor government. As of June 30, 2018, significant axnoimts of grant expenditures
have not been audited by the various grantor agencies but fh.e Board believes that disallowed expenditures, if any, based on
subsequent audits will not have a material effect on any of the individual governmental funds or fhe overall fmancial position
of the District.

C. Federal Arbitrage Regulations

The District is subject to Section 148 of tbe Internal Revenue Code as it pertains to the arbitrage rebate on all tax-exempt
obligations, both long and short-term debt. Under the 1986 Tax Reform Act, the Internal Revenue Service (FRS) required
that all excess earnings from investment proceeds be rebated to the IRS. Arbitrage, for purposes of these regulations, is
defmed as the difference between the yield on the investment and the yield on ide obligations issued. If there are excess
earnings, lids amount may be required to be rebated to tlie ISS. At June 30, 2018, the District has not estimated its arbitrage
eammgs due to the S^S, if any.

D. Employee Retirement Systems and_Pension_PIans

Plan Descriptions and Benefits Provided

The State of New Jersey sponsors and administers fbe following contributory defmed benefit public employee retirement
systems (retirement systems) covering substantially all eligible Board employees:

Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS) - Established in January 1955, under the provisions ofNJ.SA. 43:15Ato
provide coverage, including post-retirement health care, to substantially all fall time employees of the State or any county,
municipalify, school district, or public agency provided the employee is not a member of another State-admmistered
retirement system. Membership is mandatory for such employees. PERS is a cost sharmg multiple employer defined benefit

pension plan.

The vesting and benefit provisions are set by N.J.S.A. 43;15A. PERS provides retiremen.t, death, and disability benefits. All
benefits vest after ten years of service, except for medical benefits, which vest after 25 years-of service or under -the disability

provisions ofPERS.
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NOTE 5 OTHER INFORMATION (Continued)

D. Employee Retirement Systems and Pension Plans (Continued)

Public Employees* Retirement System (PERS) (Continued)

The following represents fhe membership tiers for PERS:

Tier Definition

1 Members who were enroUed prior to July 1,2007
2 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after July 1,2007 and prior to November 2,2008
3 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after November 2, 2008 and prior to May 22, 2010
4 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after May 22,2010 and prior to June 28,2011
5 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after June 28,2011

Service retirement benefits of 1/55 offmal average salary for each year of sendce credit is available to tier 1 and 2 members
upon reaching age 60 and to tier 3 members upon reaching age 62. Service retirement benefits of 1/60 of final average
salary for each year of service credit is available to tier 4 members upon reached age 62 and tier 5 members upon reaching
age 65. Early retirement benefits are available to tier 1 and 2 members before reaching age 60, tier 3 and 4 members with 25
or more years of service credit before age 62, and tier 5 members with 30 or more years of service credit before age 65.
Benefits are reduced by a fraction of a percent for each month that a member retires prior to fhe age at which a member can
receive full early retirement benefits in accordance with their respective tier. Tier 1 members can receive an unreduced
benefit from age 55 to age 60 if they have at least 25 years of service. Deferred retirement is available to members who have
at least ten years of service credit and have not reached the service retirement age for fhe respective tier.

Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) - Established in January 1955, under fhe provisions ofN.J.SA. 18A:66 to
provide coverage mcludmg post-retirement healfh care to substantially all full tune certified teachers or professional staff of
the public school systems m the State. Membership is mandatory for such employees. TPAP is a cost sharing multiple
employer defmed benefit pension plan with a special funding situation, by which the State is responsible to fund 100% of
local employer contributions, excluding any local employer early retirement mcentive (ERT) contributions.

The vesting and benefit provisions are set by N.J.S.A. 1 8A:66. TPAF provides retffement, death, and disability benefits. All
benefits vest after ten years of service, except for medical benefits, which vest after 25 years of service or under fhe disability
provisions of TPAF. Members are always fully vested for their own contributions and, after fhree years of service credit,
become vested for 2% of related interest earned on the contributions. In the case of death before retirement, members'
beneficiaries are entitled to futl interest credited to fhe members accounts.

The following represent tiie membership tiers for TPAF:

Tier Definition

1 Members who were enrolled prior to July 1, 2007
2 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after July 1,2007 and prior to November 2,2008
3 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after November 2,2008 and prior to May 22,2010
4 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after May 22,2010 and prior to June 28,2011
5 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after June 28,2011
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NOTES OTHER INFORMATION (Continued)

D. Employee Retirement Systems and Pension Plans (Continued)

Teachers* Pension and Annuity Fund CTPAJP) (Continued)

Service retirement benefits of 1/55 of final average salary for each year of service credit is available to tier 1 and 2 members
upon reachiag age 60 and to tier 3 members upon reaching age 62. Service retirement benefits of 1/60 of final average
salary for each year of service credit is available to tier 4 members upon reached age 62 and tier 5 members upon reaching
age 65. Early retirement benefits are available to tier 1 and 2 members before reaching age 60, tier 3 and 4 members with 25
or more years of service credit before age 62, and tier 5 members wifti 30 or more years of service credit before age 65.
Benefits are reduced by a &action of a percent for each monlii fhat a member retires prior to fhe retirement for his/her
respective tier. Deferred retkemeut is available to members who have at least ten years of service credit and have not
reached the service retirement age for fhe respective tier.

The State of New Jersey sponsors and admmisters the followmg defined contribution public employee retirement
program coveruig certain state and local government employees which include those Board employees who are eligible
for pension coverage.

Defined Contribution Retirement Program (DCRP) - established under the provisions of Chapter 92, P.L. 2007 and
Chapter 103, P.L. 2008 to provide coverage to elected, certain appointed officials, and certain Board employees not
eligible for enrolbnent in PERS or TPAF. Effective July 1, 2007 membership is mandatory for such individuals with
vesting occurring after one (1) year of membership. DCRP is a defined contribution pension plan.

Other Pension Funds

The State established and administers a Supplemental Amiuity Collective Trust Fund (SACT) which is available to active
members of tiie State-admimstered retirement systems to purchase annuities to supplement the guaranteed benefits provided
by their retirement system. The state or local government employers do not appropriate funds to SACT.

The cost of living mcrease for PERS and TPAF, are funded directly by each of the respective systems but are cun'en.tly
suspended as a result of reform legislation.

According to state law, all obligations of each retkement system will be assumed by the State of New Jersey should any
retirement system be terminated.

The State of New Jersey, Department of the Treasury, Division of Pensions and Benefits ("Division"), issues publicly
available fmancial reports that include the financial statements and required supplementary information of each of the above
systems. The fmancial reports may be accessed via the New Jersey, Division of Pensions and Benefits, website at
www.state.ni .us/ti'easuiy/pensions.
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D. Employee Retirement Systems and Pension Plans (Continued)

Plan Amendments

The auttiority to amend the provisions of the above plans rests with new legislation passed by the State of New Jersey.
Pension reforms enacted pursuant to Chapter 78, P.L. 2011 included provisions creating special Pension Plan Design
Committees for TPAF and PERS, once a Target Funded Ratio (TFR) is met. The Pension Plan Design Committees will have
the discretionary aufhority to modify certain plan design features, including member contribution rate; formula for
calculation of final compensation of fmal salary; fraction used to calculate a retirement allowance; age at which a member
may be eligible and the benefits for service or early retirement; and benefits provided for disability retirement. The
committees will also have the aufhority to reaotivate the cost of living adjustment (COLA) on pensions. However,
modifications can only be made to the extent that the resulting Impact does not cause fhe funded ratio to drop below the TFR
in any one year of a 30-year projection period.

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

The financial statements of the retirement systems are prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles as applicable to govermnental orgamzations. In doing so, the Division adheres to reportmg requirements
established by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB).

The accrual basis of accounting is used for measuring financial position and changes in. net position of the pension trust
funds. Under this method, contributions are recorded m the accounting period m which they are legally due from the
employer or plan member, and deductions are recorded at fhe time the liabilities are due and payable in accordance with the
terms of each plan. Tlie accounts of the Division are organized and operated on fhe basis of fwids. All funds are accounted
for ushig an economic resources measurement focus.

Investment Valuation

The Division of investment, Department oftlie Treasury, State of New Jersey (Division of Investment) manages and invests
certain assets of the retirement systems. Investments are reported at fair value. Fair value is the amount at which a financial

instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, ofher than m a forced or liquidation sale.

The Division of Investment issues publicly available fmancial reports that include the fmancial statements of tiie State of
New Jersey Cash Management Fund. The fmancial reports may be obtained in writing to the State of New Jersey,
Department of the Treasury, Division of Investment, P.O. Box 290, Trenton, New Jersey 08625-0290 or at
www.state.ui .us/ti'easurv/doinvest
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NOTES OTHER INFORMATION (Continued)

D. Employee Retirement Systems and Pension Plans (Continued)

Funding Status and Funding Progress

As of July 1, 2016, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the aggregate fancied ratio for ftie State administered TPAF and
local PERS retirement systems, is 33 percent wifh an unfunded actuarial accrued liability of $90.90 billion. The aggregate
funded ratio and unfunded accmed liability for the State-funded TPAF system is 25.41 percent and $67.6 billion, and the
aggregate funded ratio and unfunded accrued liability for local PERS is 48.10 percent and $23.3 billion, respectively,

The funded status and funding progress of&e retirement systems is based on actuarial valuations which mvolve estimates of
fh.evalueofreportedamountsandassumptionsaboutt1ieprobabili.tyofeventsfarintofhefu.ture. These amounts are subject

to continual revision as actual results are compared to past expectations and new estimates are made about fhe probability of
future events.

Actuarial calculations reflect a long-term perspective and are based on the benefits provided under the terms of the
retirement systems in effect at fhe tune of each valuation and also consider the pattern of the sharing of costs between the
employer and members at that point in tune. The projection of benefits for fimancing reporfcmg purposes does not explicitly
mcorporate the potential effects of legal or contractual fandmg liimtations on fhe pattern of cost sharing between the
employer and members m the future.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

In the July 1, 2016 actuarial valuation, the projected unit credit was used as the actaanal cost method, and the five year
average of market value was used as fhe asset valuation method for the retirement systems. The actuarial assumptions
included (a) an investment rate of return for fhe retirement systems of 7.00 percent and (b) projected salary increases applied
through the year 2026 of 1.65-5.15 percent based on age for the PERS and varying percentages based on experience for
TPAP.

Employer and Employee Pension Contributions

The contribution policy is set by laws offhe State of New Jersey and contributions are required by active members and
participating employers. Plan member and employer contributions may be amended by State of New Jersey legislation witii
the amount of contributions by the State of New Jersey contingent upon the Annual Appropriations Act. As defined, tiie
retirement systems require employee contributions based on 7.340/o for PERS, 7.34% for TPAF and 5.50% for DCRP of the
employee's annual compensation for fiscal year 2018.

Annual Pension Costs (APC)

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018 for TPAF, which is a cost sharing multiple employer defmed benefit pension plan
wifh a special funding situation, the annual pension cost differs from tiie aomial required contribution. For PERS, v/hich is a
cost sharing multiple employer defmed benefit pension plan, the annual pension cost equals contributions made. TPAF
employer contributions are made annually by fhe State of New Jersey to the pension system on behalf of the Board. PERS
employer contributions are made annually by fhe Board to the pension system in accordance with Chapter 114, P.L. 1997. In
flie DCRP, which is a defined contribution plan, member contributions are matched by a 3% employer contribution.
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D. Employee Retirement Systems and Pension Plans (Continued)

Annual Pension Costs (APC) (Continued)

During Hie fiscal years ended June 30, 2018, 2017 and 2016 the Board was required to contribute for PERS and DCRP and
the State of New Jersey, as a nonemployer contnbuting entity, was required to contribute for TPAF, respectively for normal
cost pension and accrued liability contributions (including non-coutributory group life insurance (NCGT)) the followmg
amounts:

Fiscal
Year Ended On-behalf
June 30, PERS TPAF DCRP

2018 $ 1,141,182 $ 4,400,607 $ 43,363
2017 1,121,683 3,331,255 44,000
2016 1,014,803 2,264,637 45,157

fa addition for fiscal years 2017/2018 and 2016/2017 the District contributed $21,254 and $8,800, respectively for PERS and
the State contributed $8,687 and $10,957, respectively for TPAF for Long Term Disability Insurance Premium (LTDI).

The PERS contributions are recognized in the governmental fund financial statements (modified accrual basis) as an
expenditure. The on-behalf TPAF contributions are recognized in the governmental fond financial statements (modified
accrual basis) as both a revenue and expenditure in accordance with GASB Statement No. 85, Omnibus 2017 (GASB No.
85). The DCRP contributions are recognized in the goveromental fimd fmancial statements (modified accmal basis) as an
expenditure, as well as, the district-wide fmancial statements (accrual basis) as an expense.

Also, in accordance with NJ.S.A. 18A:66~66 fhe State of New Jersey reimbursed the Board $2,270,032, during the fiscal
year ended June 30,2018 for the employees share of social security contributions for TPAP members as calculated on their
base salaries. This amount has been recognized in the district-wide financial statements (accrual basis) and the governmental
fund financial statements (modified accrual basis) as a revenue and expense/expenditure in accordance with GASB No.85.

Pension Liabilities, Peusion Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources
Related to Pensions

Public Employees Retirement System (PERS)

GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions, (GASB No. 68) requires participating
employers in PERS to recognize fheir proportionate share of&e collective net pension liability, collective deferred outflows
of resources, collective deferred inflows of resources and collective pension expense excluding that attributable to employer-
paid member contributions. The employer allocation percentages presented are based on the ratio offhe contributions as an
individual employer to total contributions to the PERS during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017. Employer allocation
percentages have been roimded for presentation purposes.

Although the NJ Division of Pensions and Benefits ("Division") administers one cost-sharing multiple employer defmed
benefit pension plan, separate actuarial valuations are prepared to determine the actuarial determined contribution rate by
group. Following this method, the measurement of the collective pension expense excluding that attributable to employer-
paid member contributions are determined separately for each individual employer oftiie State and local groups offlie plan.
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D. Employee Retirement Systems and Pension Plans (Continued)

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources
Related to Pensions (Continued)

PubUc Employees Retirement System (PERS) (Continued)

To facilitate the separate actuarial valuations, the Division maintains separate accounts to identify additions, deductions, and
fiduciary net position applicable to each group. The allocation percentages are presented for each group. The allocation
percentages for each group as of June 30, 2017 are based on the ratio of each employer's contribution to total employer
contributions offhe group for the-fiscal year ended June 30,2017.

At June 30, 2018, the District reported in the statement of net position (accrual basis) a liability of $28,675,613 for its
proportionate share ofthePERS net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2017 andfhe
total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The
District's proportionate share of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the District's long-term share of
contributions to tiie pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all participating governmental entities, actuarially
determined. At June 30, 2017, the District's proportionate share was 0.12318 percent, which was a decrease of 0.00308
percent from its proportionate share measured as of June 30,2016 of 0.12626 percent

Por the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, fhe District recognized in the district-wide statement of activities (accrual basis)
pension expense of $2,414,527 for PERS. The pension contribution made by the District during the current 2017/201 8 fiscal
year is the contribution that is applied to the net pension liability reported at the end of the current fiscal year of June 30,
2018 wifh a measurement date of fhe prior fiscal year end of June 30, 2017. Since fhe State of New Jersey applies the
current year pension contribution towards titie calculation of the net pension liability reported at the end of the current fiscal
year, which has a measurement date oftiie preceding fiscal year end, there is no deferred outflows of resources reported as of
Tune 30, 2018 for contributions made subsequent to fhe current fiscal year end. At June 30, 2018, the District reported
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to PERS pension from tile followmg sources:

Difference Between Expected and
Actual Experience

Changes of Assumptions
Net Difference Between Projected and Actual

Earnings on Pension Plan Investments
Changes in Proportion and Differences Between
District Contributions and Proportionate Share
of Contributions

Deferred
Outflows

of Resources

675,212
5,777,148

195,262

1,500,484

Deferred
Inflows

of Resources

$ 5,755,96

569,8^

Total $ 8,148,106 $ 6,325,839
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D, Employee Retirement Systems and Pension Plans (Continued)

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources
Related to Pensions (Continued)

Public Employees Retiremeuf System (PERS) (Continued)

At June 30,2018, the amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to PERS
pension will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year

Ending
June 30.

2019
2020
2021
2022
2023

Thereafter

Total

$ 1,031,555
1,361,035

879,096
(774,407)
(675,012)

$ 1,822,267

Actuarial Assumptions

The District's total pension liability for the June 30,2017 measurement date was detennined by an actuarial valuation as of
July 1,2016, which was rolled forward to June 30, 2017. This actuarial valuation used the following actuarial assumptions,
applied to all periods m tiie measurement:

PERS

Inflation Rate 2.25%

Salary Increases:

Through 2026 1.65-4.15%
Based on Age

Thereafter 2,65-5.15%
Based oa Age

Investment Rate of Return 7.00%

Mortality Rate Table RP-2000

Assumptions for mortality improvements are based on Society of Actuaries Scale AA.

The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2016 valuation were based on fhe results of an actuarial experience study for
the period July 1,2011 to June 30,2014.
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D. Employee Retirement Systems and Pension Plans (Continued)

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources aad Deferred Inflows of Resources
Related to Pensions (Continued)

Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) (Continued)

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan mvesfments was determined using a buildmg-block mefhod in which
best-estimate ranges of expected future real rate of return (expected returns, net of pension plans mvestment expense and

inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of
return by weighting the expected fatire real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected
inflation. Best estimates of arifbmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in the pension plans' target
asset allocation as of June 30, 2017 are summarized in fhe following table;

Asset Class

Absolute Retiro/Risk Mitigation
Cash Equivalents

U.S. Treasuries

Investment Grade Credit

US Equities
Non-US Developed Markets Equity

Emerging Market Equities
Public High Yield
Global Diversified Credit
Credit Oriented Hedge Funds
Debt Related Private Equity
Debt Related Real Estate
Private Real Estate
Bquity Related Real Estate
BuyoutsA?enture Capital

Target

Allocation

5.00%

5.50%

3.00%

10.00%
30.00%
11.50%

6.50°/o

2.50%
5.00%
1.00%
2.00%
1.00%
2.50°/o

6.25%
8.25%

Long-Term

Expected Real

Rate of Return

5.51%

1.00%

1.87%

3.78%

8.19%
9.00%

11.64%
6.82%
7.10%
6.60%
10.63%
6.61%
11.83%
9.23%
13.08%

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure fhe total pension liabilities of the PERS plan was as follows:

Fiscal
Year Measurement Date Discount Rate

2018
2017

Tune 30,2017

June 30,2016

5.00%

3.98%
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D. Employee Retirement Systems and Pension Plans (Continued)

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources
Related to Pensions (Continued)

Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) (Continued)

Discount Rate (Continued)

The followmg table represents the crossover period, if applicable, for the PER.S defined benefit plan:

Period of Projected Benefit

Payments for which title Followmg

Rates were Applied:

Long-Tenn Expected Rate of Return Through June 30,2040

Municipal Bond Rate * From July 1,2040

and Thereafter

A The municipal bond return rate used is 3.58% as of the measurement date of June 30, 2017. The source is the Bond Buyer
Go 20-Bond Municipal Bond Index, which includes tax-exempt general obligation municipal bonds with an average rating of
AA/Aa or higher.

Sensitivity of Net Pension Liability

The following presents the District's proportionate share of the PERS net pension liability calculated using tlie discount rate
of 5.00%, as well as what the District's proportionate share of the PERS net pension liability would be if it were calculated
using a discount rate that is 1-perceatage-pomt lower (4.00 percent) or 1-percentage-pomt higher (6.00 percent) than tiie
current rate:

1% Current 1%

Decrease Discount Rate Increase

<4,00%1 (5.00%) r6.00%)

District's Proportionate Share of
the PERS Net Pension Liability $ 35,574,044 $ 28,675,613 $ 22,928,365

The sensitivity analysis was based on fhe proportionate share of the District's net pension liability at June 30, 2017. A
sensitivity analysts specific to the District's net pension liability was not provided by the pension system.

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about the PER.S pension plan's fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued fmancial
report from the State of New Jersey, Department of tiie Treasury, Division of Pension and Benefits. The financial report
may be accessed via fhe New Jersey, Division of Pensions and Benefits, website at www.state.ni.us/ti-easury/pensions.
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D. Employee Retirement Systems and Pension Plans (Continued)

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources
Related to Pensions (Continued)

Teachers Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF)

GASB No. 68, requires participating employers in TPAF to recognize their proportionate share of the collective net pension
liability, collective deferred outflows of resources, collective deferred inflows of resources and collective pension expense
excluding that attributable to employer-paid member contributions. The non-employer allocation percentages presented are
based on the ratio of the State's contributions made as a non-employer toward the actuarially determined contribution
amount adjusted by locations who participated in fhe State early retirement incentives to total contributions to TPAF dm'mg
fhe fiscal year ended June 30,2017. Non-employer allocation percentages have been rounded for presentation purposes.

The contribution policy for TPAF is setbyN.J.SA. 18A:66 and requires contributions by active members and non-employer
contributions by the State. State legislation has modified fde amount tiiat is contributed by fhe State. The State's pension
contribution is based on an actuarially determined amount which includes the employer portion of the normal cost and an
amortization offhe unfunded accrued liability. For fhe fiscal year ended June 30,2017, the State's pension contribution was
less than fhe actuarial determined amount.

In accordance with GASB No. 68, the District is not required to recognize a net pension liability for TPAF. The State of
New Jersey, as a nonemployer contributing entity, is fhe only entity that has a legal obligation to make employer
contributions to TPAF on behalf of the District. Accordingly, the District's proportionate share percentage determined under
Statement No. 68 is zero percent and the State's proportionate share is 100% of the net pension liability attributable to the
District for TPAF. Therefore, in addition, the District does not recognize any portion of the TPAF coUective deferred
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources.

For fhe fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, fhe District recognized in fhe district-wide statement of activities (accrual basis)
pension expense of $13,833,097 for TPAF. This amount has been included in the district-wide statement of activities
(accrual basis) as a revenue and expense in accordance wife GASB No. 85.

At June 30, 2018 the State's proportionate share offhe net pension liability attributable to the District is $199,684,015. The
nonemployer allocation percentages are based on the ratio of ftie State's contributions made as an employer and
nonemployer towards the actuarially determmed contribution amount adjusted by locations -who participated in the State
early retirement inceGtives to total contributions to TPAF during the year ended June 30; 2017. At June 30, 2017, the.state's
share of the net pension liability attributable to the District was 0.29616 percent, which was an increase of 0.01331 percent
from its proportionate share measured as of June 30,2016 of 0.28285 percent.
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D. Employee Retirement Systems and Pension Plans (Continued)

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources
Related to Pensions (Continued)

Teachers Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) (Continued)

Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability for the June 30, 2017 measurement date was detemuned by ati actuarial valuation as of July 1,
2016, which was rolled forward to June 30,2017. This actuarial valuation used the following actuarial assumptions, applied
to all periods in the measurement.

TPAF

Inflation Rate 2.25%

Salary Increases:
2012-2021 Varies based

on experience

Thereafter Varies based
oa experience

Investanent Rate of Return 7.00%

Assumptions for mortality rates were based on the experience of TPAF members reflecting mortality improvement on a
generational bases based on a 60-year average of Social Security data from 1953 to 2013.

The actuarial assumptions used m the July 1, 2016 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial experience study for
the period July 1,2012 to June 30,2015.
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D. Employee Retirement Systems and Pensiou Plans (Coatmued)

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources
Related to Pensions (Continued)

Teachers Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) (Continued)

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan mvestments was determined using a buildmg-bloclc meti'iod m which
best-estimate ranges of expected future real rate of return (expected returns, net of pension plans investment expense and

inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce Ihe long-term expected rate of
retim by weighting fhe expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected
inflation. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in the pension plans' target
asset allocation as of June 30,2017 are summarized in the following table:

Asset Class

Absolute Return/Risk Mitigation

Cash Equivalents

U.S. Treasuries

Investment Grade Credit
Public High Yield
Global Diversified Credit
Credit Oriented Hedge Funds
Debt Related Private Equity
Debt Related Real Estate
Private Real Estate
Equity Related Real Estate
U.S.Equity
Non-U.S. Developed Markets Equity
Emerging Markets Equity
Buyouts/Venture Capital

Target
Allocation

5.00%

5.50%

3.00%

10.00%
2.50%
5.00%
1.00%
2.00%
1.00%
2.50%
6.25%

30.00%
11.50%
6.50%
8.25%

Long-Term

Expected Real

Rateof Return

5.51%

1,00%
1.87%

3.78%
6.82%
7.10%
6.60%
10.63%
6.61%
11.83%
9.23%
8.19%
9.00%
n.64°/o
13.08%

73



WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
TOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2018

NOTES OTHER INFORMATION (Continued)

D. Kmolovee Retirement Systems and Pension Plans (Continued)
/

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources
Related to Pensions (Continued)

Teachers Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) (Continued)

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure file total pension liabilities of the TPAP plan was as follows:

Fiscal

Year Measurement t>ate Discount Rate

2018
2017

June 30,2017

June 30,2016
4.25%

3.22%

The following table represents the crossover period, if applicable, for the TPAF defmed benefit plan:

Period of Projected Benefit

Payments for which the Following

Rates were Applied:

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return

Municipal Bond Rate *

Through June 30,2036

From July 1,203 6
and Thereafter

ft The municipal bond return rate used is 3.58% as of the measurement date of June 30, 2017. The source is tfae Bond Buyer
Go 20-Bond Municipal Bond Index, which mcludes tax-exempt general obligation municipal bonds with an average rating of
AA/Aa or higher.

Sensitivity of Net Pension Liability

The following presents the State's proportionate share of the TPAF net pension liability attributable to fhe District calculated
using the discount rate of 4.25%, as well as what the State's proportionate share of the TPAF net pension liability
attributable to the District that would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (3.25
percent) or 1-percentage-pomt higher (5.25 percent) than the current rate:

State's Proportionate Share of

the TPAF Net Pension Liability
Attributable to the District

1%
Decrease

(3.25%)

$ 237,230,873

Current

Discount Rate

(4.15%}

$ 199,684,015

1%
Increase

(5.25%^

$ 168,752,750

The sensitivity analysis was based on the State's proportionate share of the net pension liability attributable to the District at
June 30,2017. A sensitivity analysis specific to the State's proportionate share of the net pension liability attributable to the
District at June 30,2017 was not provided by ttie pension system.
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D. Employee Retirement Systems and Pension Plans (Continued)

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources
Related to Pensions (Continued)

Teachers Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) (Contiaued)

jPension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed mfonnation about tiie TPAF pension plan's fiduciary net position is available in tiie separately issued fmancial
report from the State of New Jersey, Department of the Treasury, Division of Pension and Benefits. The financial report
may be accessed via fheNew Jersey, Division of Pensions and Benefits, website at www.statejij .us/treasm'y/pensions.

E. Post-Retirement Medical Benefits

The State of New Jersey sponsors and administers the post-retufement health benefit program plan for school districts.

As a result of implementing GASB Statement No. 74, Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans Other than
Pewion Plans, the post-retirement tiealtti benefit program plan is reported m an Agency Fund in the New Jersey
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report effective fertile fiscal year ended June 30,2017. Therefore, the plan has no assets
accumulated in a trust. la accordance with GASB Statement No. 75, Accomting and Financial Reporting for
Postemptoyment Benefits Oher than Pension (GASB No. 75), the plan is classified as a single employer defmed benefit
OPBB plan with a special fundmg situation that is not administered through a tmst that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of
GASBNo.75.

Plan Description and Benefits Provided

The State of New Jersey sponsors and administers fee following post-retirement health benefit program plan covermg certain
local school district employees, including those Board employees and retirees eligible for coverage.

State Health Benefit Program Fund - Local Education Retired (including Prescription Drug Program Fund) - N.J.S.A.
52:14-l7.32f provides medical coverage and prescription drug benefits to qualified retired education participants. The State
of New Jersey provides employer-paid coverage to members of Ae TPAP who retire fi'om a board of education or county
college with 25 years of service or on a disability retirement. Under the provisions of Chapter 126, P.L. 1992, tlie State also
provides employer-paid coverage to members of the PERS and Alternate Benefits Program (ABP) who retire from a board of
educationorcounty college wifh 25 years of service or on a disability retirement if the member's employer does not provide
this coverage. Certain local participating employers also provide post-retirement medical coverage to their employees.
Retirees who are not eligible for employer paid health coverage at retirement can continue in the program iffheu- employer
participates in this program or iffhey are participating in the healfli benefits plan of their former employer and are enrolled in
Medicare Parts A and B by paying ftie cost of the insurance for themselves and {heir covered dependents.

Pursuant to Chapter 78, P.L. 2011, future retirees eligible for postretirement medical coverage who have less than 20 years of
creditable service on June 28, 2011 wiU be required to pay a percentage of the cost of fheir health care coverage m retirement
provided they retire wltti 25 or more years of pension service credit. The percentage of fhe premium for which the retiree
will be responsible will be determined based on the retiree's annual retkement benefit and level of coverage.

The State of New Jersey, Department of the Treasury, Division of Pensions and Benefits, issues publicly available financial
reports that include the financial statements and required supplementary information of the above Fund. The fmancial
reports may be accessed via the State of New Jersey, Department of the Treasury, Division of Pensions and Benefits, website
at www.^tate.ni.us/treasurv/pensions.
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E. Post-Retiremeat Medical Benefits (Contmued)

Plan Membership

Membership of the defined benefit OPEB plan consisted of the following at June 30,2016:

Active Plan Members 223,747
Inactive Plan Members or Beneficiaries Currently Receiving Benefits 142,331
Inactive Plan Members Entitled to but not yet Receiving Benefits _^

Total 366.078

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

The financial statements of the post-employment health, benefit plans are prepared in accordance with U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles as applicable to govetomental organizations. In doing so, the Division adheres to reporting
requirements established byfhe Governmental Accountmg Standards Board (GASB).

The accrual basis of accounting is used for measuring financial position and changes m net position of the post-employment
health benefit plans. Under fhis method, contributions are recorded in the accountmg period in which tiiey are legally due
jfrom the employer or plan member, and deductions are recorded at the time the liabilities are due and payable m accordance
wiA the terms of each plan. The accounts of fhe Division are organized and operated on fhe basis of funds. All funds are
accounted for using an economic resources measurement focus.

Investaient Valuation

Investments are reported at fair value. Investments that do not have an established market are reported at estimated fair
value. Fair value is the amount at which a financial mstrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing
parties, other ftian in a forced or liquidation sale.

Funded Status and Funding Progress

As of July 1,2016, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the State had a $69.3 billion unfimded actiarial accmed liability
for other post-employment benefits (OPEB) which is made up to $25.5 biUion for state active and retb-ed members and $43.8
billion for education employees and retirees that become the obligation ofAe State of New Jersey upon retirement.

The funded status and funding progress of the OPEB mcludes actuarial valuations which involve estimates of the value of
reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of events far into the future. These amounts are subject to continual
revision as actual results are compared to past expectations and new estimates are made about the probability of future
events.
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E. Post-Retirement IMedical Benefits (Continued)

Funded Status and Funding Progress (Continued)

Actuarial calculations reflect a long-term perspective and are based on the benefits provided under the terms of the OPEB in
effect at the tune of each valuation and also consider the pattern offhe sharing of costs between the employer and members
at fh.e point in time. The projection of benefits for financial reporting purposes does not explicitly incorporate the potential
effects of legal or coutractml funding limitations on fbe pattern of cost sharing between the employer and members in the
future.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

In the July 1,2016, OPEB actuarial valuation, the projected unit credit was used as the actuarial cost method, and the market
value was used as asset valuation method for ti-ie OPEB. The actuarial assumptions included an assumed investment rate of
return of 4.50 percent.

Post-Retirement Medical Benefits Contributions

P.L. 1987, c. 384 and P.L. 1990, c.6 required fhe Teachers' Pension and Amuity Fund (TPAF) and Public Employees'
Retirement System (PERS), respectively to fund post-retkement medical benefits for those State employees and education
employees who retire after accumulating 25 years of credited service or on a disability retirement. As of June 30, 2017,
there were 112,966, retirees receiving post-retirement medical benefits aad tfae State contributed $1.39 billion on their
behalf. The cost of these benefits is funded through contributions by the State and in accordance with P.L. 1994, c.62.
Funding of post-retirement medical benefits changed from a pre-funding basis to a pay-as-you-go basis beginnmg in Fiscal
Year 1994.

The State is also responsible for the cost attributable to P.L. 1992, c.126, which provides employer paid health benefits to
members ofPERS and the Alternate Benefit Program (ABP) who retired from a board of education or county college with
25 years of service. The State paid $238.9 million toward Chapter 126 benefits for 20,913 eligible retired members in Fiscal

Year 2017.

The State sets the contribution rate based on a pay as you go basis and not on the annual required contribution of fhe
employers (ARC), an amount actuarially detemiined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement 45. The ARC
represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any
unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) of the plan over a period not to exceed thirty years. The State s
contributions, as a nonemployer contributing entity, to tiie State Health Benefits Program Fund - Local Education Retu-ed
for retirees' post-retirement benefits on behalf of the School District for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2018,2017 and 2016
were $2,842,258, $2,775,694 and $2,696,558, respectively, which equaled the required contributions for each year. The
State's contributions to the State Health Benefits Program Fund - Local Education Retired for PERS retirees' post-
retirement benefits on behalf of the School District was not determined or made available by fhe State of New Jersey. The
on-behalfOPEB contributions are recognized in the governmental fund financial statements (modified accrual basis) as both
a revenue and expenditure in accordance with GASB No. 85.
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E. Post-Retirement Medical Benefits (Contmued)

OPEB Liabilities, OPEB Expenses and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related
to OPEB

GASB Statement No. 75 requires participating employers in the State Health Benefit Program Fund - Local Education
Retired to recognize their proportionate share of the collective OPEB liability, collective deferred outflows of resources,
collective deferred inflows of resources and collective OPEB expense excluding fhat attributable to retiree-paid member
contributions. The nonemployer allocation percentages presented are based on the ratio of the State's contributions made as
a nonemployer toward the actuarially detemiined contribution amount to total contnbutions to fee plan during the fiscal year
ended June 30,2017. Nonemployer allocation percentages have been rounded for presentation purposes.

In accordance with GASB No. 75, the District is not required to recognize an OPEB liability for the post-employment health
benefit plan. The State of New Jersey, as a nonemployer contributing entity, is fhe only entity that has a legal obligation to
make employer contributions to the plan on behalf of the District. Accordingly, the District's proportionate share percentage
determined under Statement No. 75 is zero percent and the State's proportionate share is 100% of the OPEB liability
attributable to the District. Therefore, in addition, the District does not recognize any portion of the collective deferred
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to fhe plan.

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, the District recognized in the -district-wide statement of activities (accrual basis)
OPEB expense of $10,944,396. This amount has been mcluded in the district-wide statement of activities (accrual basis) as
a revenue and expense m accordance with GASB No, 85.

At June 30, 2018 the State's proportionate share of the OPEB liability attributable to the District is $174,013,289. The
nonemployer allocation percentages are based on tiie ratio of fhe State's proportionate share of tlie OPEB liability
attributable to the District at June 30, 2017 to the total OPEB liability of the State Health Benefit Program Fund - Local
Education Retired Employees Plan at June 30,2017. At June 30,2017, the state's share of the OPEB liability attributable to
the District was 0.32441 percent, which was a decrease of 0.00075 percent from its proportionate share measured as of June
30,2016 of 0.32516 percent

Actuarial Assumptions

The OPEB liability for the June 30, 2017 measurement date was determined by aa actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2016,
which was rolled forward to June 30, 2017. This actuarial valuation used the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all
periods in the measurement,

Inflation Rate 2.50%

Salary Increases *

Initial Fiscal Year Applied Through 2026
Rate 1.55% to 4.55%
Rate Thereafter 2.00% to 5.45%

Mortality RP-2014 Headcount-Welghted Heallfay Employee, Healthy Amiuitant and Disabled Male/Female
Mortality Table wifh Fully Generational Mortality Improvement Projections from the

Central Year Using Scale MP-2017

Long-Term Rate of Return 1.00%

* Salary increases are based on the defined benefit plan that the individual is enrolled in and his or her year of service for
TPAF or his or her age for PERS.
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NOTES OTHER INFORMATION (Continued)

E. Post-Retirement Medical Benefits (Continued)

OPEB Liabilities, OPEB Expenses and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related
to OPEB (Continued)

Actuarial Assumptions (Continued)

Healtiticare cost trend rates for pre-Medicare Preferred Provider Organization (PPO) medical benefits, fhis amount mitially is
5.9 percent arid decreases to a 5.0 percent long-term trend rate after nine years. For setf-msured post-65 PPO medical

benefits, the trend rate is 4.5 percent. For health maintenance organization (HMO) medical benefits, fhe trend rate is initially
5.9 percent and decreases to a 5.0 percent long-term trend rate after mne years. For prescription drug benefits, the initial

trend rate is 10.5 percent and decreases to a 5.0 percent long-term trend rate after eight years. For the Medicare Part B
reimbursement, the trend rate is 5.0 percent. This reflects the known underlying cost of the Part B premium. The Medicare
Advantage trend rate is 4.5 percent and will contmue in all future years.

The actuarial assumptions used in fhe June 30, 2016 valuation were based on the results offhe TPAP and PERS actuarial
experience studies for fhe period July 1,2012 to June 30,2015 and July 1, 2011 to June 30,2014, respectively.

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return

As the OPEB plan only invests in the State of New Jersey Cash Management Fund, fhe long-term expected rate of return on
OPEB investments was based off the best-estimate ranges of future real rates of return (expected returns, net ofOPEB plan
investment expense and inflation) for cash equivalents, which is 1.00% as of June 30,2017.

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total OPEE liabilities of the plan was as follows:

Fiscal
Year Measurement Date Discount Rate

2018 June 30,2017 3.58%
2017 June 30,2016 2.85%

The discount rate represents the municipal bond return rate as chosen by ftie Division. The source is the Bond Buyer Go 20-
Bond Municipal Bond Index, which includes tax-exempt general obligation municipal bonds with an average rating of
AA/Aa or higher. As the long-term rate of return is less tlian the municipal bond rate, it is not considered in fhe calculation
offhe discount rate, rather &e discount rate is set at tKe municipal bond rate.
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NOTES OTHER INTORMATION (Continued)

E. Post-Retirement Medical Benefits (Continued)

OPEB Liabilities, OPEB Expenses and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related
to OPEB (Continued)

Changes in the Total OPEB Liability

The change in the State's proportionate share of the OPEB liability attributable to the District for the fiscal year ended June
30,2018 (measurement date June 30,2017) is as follows:

Total OPEB
Liability

tState Share 100°/o^

Balance, June 30, 2016 Measurement Date $ 188,046,247

Changes Recognized for the Fiscal Year:
Service Cost $ 7,828,298
Interest on the Total OPEB Liability 5,525,917
Changes of Assumptions (22,989,673)
Gross Benefit Payments (4,565,617)
Contributions from fhe Member 168,117

Net Changes $ (14,032,958)

Balance, June 30,2017 Measurement Date $ _ 174,013,289

Changes of assumptions and other inputs reflect a change in the discount rate from 2.85 percent in 2016 to 3.58 percent m
2017.-

The change in tiie total OPEB liability was based on the State's proportionate share of the OPEB liability attributable to the
District at June 30, 2017. A change in the total OPEB liability specific to fhe States proportionate share oftfae OPEB
liability attributable to the District for the fiscal year ended June 30,2017 was not provided by the pension system.

Sensitivity of OPEB Liability

Sensitivity of the total OPEB liability to changes in the discount rate The following presents the State's proportionate share
of the OPEB liability attributable to the District calculated using fhe discoyntrateof3.58%, as well as what the State's
proportionate share of the OPEB liability attributable to fhe District that would be if it were calculated using a discount rate
that is 1-perceatage-point lower (2.58 percent) or l-percentage-point higher (4.58 percent) than the current rate:

1%
Decrease

(2.58%)

Current

Discount Rate

{3,58%)

1%
Increase

f4.58%^
State's Proportionate Share of

the OPEB Liability
Attributable to the District $ 206,566,328 $ 174,013,289 $ 148,191,909
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NOTE 5 OTHER INFORMATION (Continued)

E. Post-Retirement Medical Benefits (Continued)

OPEB Liabilities, OPEB Expenses and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related
to OPEB (Continued)

Sensitivity ofOPEB Liability (Continued)

Sensitivity of the total OPEB liability to chajzges in the healthcaye cost trend rates. The following presents the State's
proportionate share of the OPEB liability attributable to the District calculated using healfhcare cost trend rates fh.at are 1-
percentage-point lower or 1-percentage-point high.er fhan th.e current healthcare cost trend rates:

Healthcare
1% Cost Trend 1%

Decrease Rates Increase

Total OPEB Liability (School Retirees) $_ 143,109,108 $^ JJ4,013,289 $ 215,053,677

The sensitivity analyses were based on the State's proportionate share of the OPEB liability attributable to the District at
June 30, 2017. Sensitivity analyses specific to the State's proportionate share offhe OPEB liability attributable to the
District at June 30,2017 were not provided by the pension system.

F. Tax Abatements

As defmed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB), a tax abatement is an agreement between a
government and an mdividual or entity in which the government promises to forgo tax revenues and the individual or
entity promises to subsequently take a specific action that contributes to economic development or otherwise benefits the
government or its citizens. School districts are not authorized by New Jersey statite to enter into tax abatement
agreements. However, the county or municipality m which the school district is situated may have entered into tax
abatement agreements, and ftiat potential school tax revenue must be disclosed in these fmancial statements. If the
county or municipality entered into tax abatement agreements, those agreements will not directly affect the school
district's local tax revenue because N.J.S.A. 54:4-75 and N.J.S.A. 54:4-76 require that amounts so forgiven must

effectively be recouped jGrom other taxpayers and remitted to "the school district.

For the year ended December 31, 2017, the Township provided property tax abatements tbrough certain programs
authorized under State statutes. These programs include the Long Term Tax Exemption Law (the "LTTE Lsw3).

• The Long Term Tax Exemption Law (NJSA 40A;20 et. seq.) is focused on broad areas of redevelopment. It
allows for a longer abatement term to carry out a larger development plan. through declaring an area as being
"m need of redevelopment". These long-term property abatements may last up to 30 years from completion
of a project or 35 years from execution of the fmancial agreement. The process is initiated when the
municipality passes a resolution calling for the municipal plaimmg board to study the need for designating
an area "m need of redevelopment". Upon adopting the planning board's recommendations and formalizmg
the redevelopment area designation, a municipality adopts a redevelopment plan, engages redevelopment
entities to carry out the plan, and may authorize long-term tax abatements m the process. Developers submit

abatement applications to the governing body for review. The financial agreement is approved through
adoption of a local ordinance, The agreement exempts a project from taxation, but requu'es a payment in
lieu of taxes (PELOTs) to the municipality m an amount based generally on a percentage of project costs or
revenue generated by the project, depending on the type of project. For the year ended December 31,2017
the Township abated property taxes totaling $347,781 under the LTTE program of which $207,303
represents fheDistricti>s share.
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NOTE 6 RESTATEMENT

The financial statements for June 30, 2017 have been restated to reflect an updated inventory offhe District's capital assets
as provided by an independent consultant. The effect of this restatement results in a net increase of $51,673 m governmental
activities capital assets and a net increase of $23,499 in business-type activities capital assets for fhe food service enterprise
fund with corresponding increases in fhe net mvestment in capital assets component of net position at June 30,2017 from the
amounts as originally reported for the effects offhe adjustments to capital assets,

The results of these restatements is to increase total net position of Governmental Activities as of June 30, 2017 from a
deficit of $1,869,739, as originally reported to a deficit of $1,818,066 and to increase total net position of Business-Type
Activities as of June 30,2017 jfrom $266,817 as origmally reported to $290,316.
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WALL TOWNSHIP BOAEB CW EDUCATION
GENERAL FUND

BUDGETARY COMPAHISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2U18

EXHIBIT C-I

Final
Budget

Variance
Final Budget

To Achial

REVENUES
Local Sources
Local Tax Levy
Tuition from Other LEAs
Tuition from Individuds
Preschool Tuition (Spec Ed)
Rental Fses
Interest Earned
Miscellaneous

Total Local Sources

State Sources
Special Education Categorical Aid
Sacurily Aid
Ttsnsportation Aid
Adjustment Aid
PARCC Readiness Aid

Per Pupil Grovrth Aid
Professional Learning Coffimunity Aid

Exiiaofdinaiy Aid
Lead Testing for Schools Aid

Additional NonPublic Transportation Aid
On-behalfTPAF Pension System Coatributions-

Normal Cost and Accrued Liabilities (Non-Budget)

On-behalfTPAF Pension System Contributions-

Nonconbrihutory Insurance (Non-Budget)
On Behalf TPAF Pension System Contribution

Long Tenn Group Disability
On-behalfTFAF Pension System Contributions-

Post Retirement Medical (Noa-Budget)
Reimbursed TPAF Social Security Contributions
(Non-Budget)

Total State Sources

Federal Sources

Medical Assistance Progtam

Total Fedeial Sources

Total Revenues

64,053,498
335.00D
35.000

30.000

55,645

64,509,143

2,384,498

341,937
769,076

15,712
35,095
35,095

35,100
150,000

15,140

3.7B1,653

50,504

50,504

99.654

99,654

64,053.488 $
33S.OOO
3S,000

30.000

55,645

64,509.143

2,484.152
341.937
769,076

15.712
35,095
35,09'5

35,100
150,000

15,143

£4,OS3,49B
512,855 i
S2.255
54,925

109.346
41,107

960,804

65.784.79&

2,4B4,15Z
341.937
•?69,076
15,712
35,095
35,095

35.100
303,185

1,870
39,076

4,296,345

104,262

8,687

2,842,2SB

2.270,032

E 177,855
17,255
54.925
-79,346
41.107

905,159

1,275,647

153.185

1,870
23.936

4.296.345

104,262

8.687

2,842.258

2,270,032

3,881,307

50.504

13.581,382 9.700,575

47,708

47,708

68.341,300 &9.6S4 6S,440,9S4 75.414,380

CUKRENT EXPENDrTOBES
Regular Progtams * Instruction

Salaries ofTeachsis

Kindereanen
Grades 1-3
Grades 6-8

Grades 9-12

Regular Programs - Home Instruction
Salaries oifTescheis
Purchased Profess ional-Educatlonal Services

Regular Programs - Undistributed InstruotiDn

Other Salaries for Instruction
PurohasedFrofessional-EducationBl Services .
Other PunAased Services
General Supplies
Teabooks

Other Objects

Total Regular Programs

Special Education

Learning and/or Language Disabilities

Salaries of Teachers
Other Salaries forlnstniotion

General Supplies

Total Learning and/or Language Disabilities

843,150

6,057,186

4,404,123
7,390,614

147,400
25,000

62,452
116.000

116,900
856.002

69,300

2.200

20,090,327

(61,057)
184.747

158,293

(6BO,005)

21,917
20,000

560

10,697

(25,710)

(370,558)

782,093

6,241.933
4,562,416
6,710,609

169,317
45,000

63,012

116,000
116,SOO
866,699

43,590

2,200

19,719,769

782,092

6,183,566

4,547,181
6.685,727

169,317
43,OE3

61.2B1

.89,555
101,U9
750.536

42.2BO

1,801

19,457.538

1
58,367

15,235

24,B82

1,917

1,731
26.445

15,781
116,163

1,310

399

262,231

221,461
100,056

40,000

361,517

2,7^1
1I.9&3

(11.000)

3,774

224,242

312,049
29,000

365,291

224,242

111,967
19,232

355,441

82
9,768

9,850

83 {Continued)



WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION
GENERAL FUND

BUDGETARY COMPAIUSON SCHEDULE
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EXmBFTC-1

Final
Budget Actual

Variance
Final Budget

To Actual

CUEKENT EXPENDITURES
Special SducEticm (Continued)

Sebavioial Disabilities
Salaries ofTeatAets
Other Salaries for Instruction
General Supplies

Tcrtal Beliavioral Disabilities

Multiple Disabilities
Salaries of Teachers
Other Salaries for Inrimcfion
General Supplies

Total Multiple Disayiities

Resource Room/ Resource Center
Salaries ofTeachors
Other Saltoies fcr InstmctiDn
Genetal Supplies
Other Objects

Total E.esource Room/ Resauice CentGT

Preschool Disabilities -Part-Time
Salaries of Teachers
Other Salaries for Instruction
General Supplies

Total Preschool Disabilities - Part - Time

Total Special Bdaoatioc

Basic Sldlls/Reinedial
Salaries of Teachers
General Supplies

Total Basic Skills/Kemedial

Bilingual Education
Salaries ofTeacbeis
General Supplies

Total Bilingual Education

Soliool SponEdtcd Co-CiuriouIar Activities
Salaries

Total School Sponsored Co-Cumcular Activities

School Sponsored AlfaleticE - Instrmrtion
Salaries
Purchased Services
Supplies and Materials

Total School Sponsored Atlitetics - Instratition

Total - fastruction

I 59,100 I
7&,UG8
13,000

151,lfi8

406,676
201,556

1B.75D

626,982

5,386,351
719,506
21,600

3,500

6.130.&57

231,440
128,480

3,375

363,2?5

7,633,919

56,535 $
30,272
(4,000'|

_8Z,E07

6>731
44,508
(3,000)

48,239

(79,043)
20,402

(58,641)

7,480
6,431

13,911

90,090

115,635 i
109.340

?,oon

233,975

413,407
246,064

15,750

675,221

5,307.308
739,908
21,600

3,500

6,072,316

238,920
134,911

.3,375

377,206

7,724,009

115,635
108,629 $

6,658

230,922

410,976
234,959

13,028

658,963

5,206,637
647,330

18,906
2,S11

5,875,784

235,169
134,441

3,153

372.763

7,493,873

7U
2,342

3,053

2,43!.
11,105
2,722

16,258

100,671
?2,57B
2,694

5B9

196,532.

3,751
470
222

4,443

230,136

647,240 48,330 695,570 683,615 5,955

647,240_

180,790
2.00D

182,790

278,696

278,696

634.9BO
175,745
98,018

908,743

29,741,715

48330

5,SEO

5,580

16,815

ie,si3_

(551)
(2,600)
(&,110)

[12.261)

222,004'>

695,570

186,370
2,000

188,370

295,511

295,511

634,429
173.145

88.908

ES6.482

29,519,711

6S9.615

!Bfi,370

i 86,370

295304

295,304

632,282
160,069

86,177

878.S2E

29,001,228

5.955

2,000

2,000

207

207

2,147
13,076

2,731

17,P-5i

518,483
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EXHIBIT C.1

CURRENT EXPENDITURES (CnctinuMl)
Uadistributed Expenditures

Instruction
Tuition - Other LEA'S Wifiim State - Regular
TTMtion - Other LEA'S Within State - Special
TulfioB to County Voc. School Dist.-Regular
T-uition to County Voc. School Dist-Special
Tuition to CSSD &. Hegional Day Schools
Tuition to Private Schools - Disabled Within State
Tuition- State Facilities
Tuition. Other

Total Undistributed Expecditares - Instnitition

Attendance and Social Work Services
Salaries
Salaries of Family Liaisons/Cdtnm PEirent Inv. Spec.

Total Attendance and Social WorkSen'ices

Health Services
Salaries
Purchased Professional acd Techmcal Services
Other Punsliasfed Services
Supplies and Materials

Total Health Senices

Speech, OT, FT &E.elated Seivices
Salaries
PuicbasedPiofcssiDsal-BducBtional Seivices
Supplies and Materials

Total Speccb, OT, PT & Related Services

Other Support Semces-Studcnts-Extra. Senr.

Salaries
Purchased Frafessiooal-EdBcational Services
Supplies md Materials
Other Objects

Total Other Support Services-Students-Extta Serv.

Guidance
Salaries of Other Professional Staff
Salaries of Secretarial and Clerical Assistants
Supplies and Materials

Total Guidance

Child Study Teams
Salaries of Other Froiessional Staff
Salaries ofSscretarial and Clerical Assislmts
Other Purchased Prof, and Tech. Services
Misc. Purchased Services
Supplies and Materials

Total Child Study Teams

Improwment oflnstnictianal Services
Salaries ofSupemseiis of Instruction
PDrcha^ed PafesEionaI-Educ. Svcs.
Supplies end Materials
Ofhu OTijcets

Total Improvement oflDStmctional Services

Educational Media ScTvlces/School Library
Salaries
Other Purobased Sa-vices
Supplies and Materials

Total Educational Media Strvices/School Library

Final
Budeet Actual

Variance
Final SudRet
_Tu Actual

17,315
43,409

522,860
?3,500

333,261
1,668,476

26,014
22,200

2,727,035

32,000
S57,04i

58?,04l

510,855
12.500
3,750

28,000

555,105

783,530
229,6+5

3,375

liQl6,S50

680,782
206,801)
22>4?0

&10.072

1,562,300
194,745
?1,500
2,700

32,000

1,883.245

757,103
15,600
2.625
2,000

777,328

292,098
12,000
63,314

17,315
43,409

521,423
11S,50D
333,261

1,647,913
26,014
14.600

2.'719,435

1,345
34,SO?

36,154

33.345
591,850

625,195

(59,032) 451,823
12,500
3,750

28,000

496,073

26,E7&
(13,400)

60D

810,409
2I6,24S

3,975

14,079, 1,030,629

810,525
182.020
19,000

1,020,025

1B.9S8
15,425

69&.740
222,225
22,490

944,455

(270,451)
(3,816)
14.620

5,003

l,2?l,84?
190,929
106.12B

2,700
37,003

1,628,601

(3B,457) 718,646
1S.GOO
2,625
2,000

738,871

3,03S 295,13S
12,000
G3.314

25,520
521,423
110,550
331,7?1

1,462,403

2,451,687

33,345
_5?1>8SQ_

625,195

451,818
12,000

26,756

490.S74

810,409
192,394

3,708

1,006.511

803,478
157,813

15,043
7J76_

984,110

698.20E
222,224

17,003

937,435

1,279,056
190.929
101,070

311
30,291

1,601,657

681,636
13,885
2.153
1.138

698.812

294.B92
9,146

55,438

17,315
17,889

4,950
1,470

185,510
26.014
14,600

267,748

5
500

3,750
l,244_

S,4?9

23,851
267

24,118

7,047
24,207
3,957

704

35,915

1,532
1

5,4B7

7,020

l2>793

5,050
2,389
6.712

26,944

37,010
1,715

472
862

40,059

367,412 3,038 370,450 359,476

244
2,854
7,876

10,974

85
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WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION
GENERAL FUND

BUDGETARY COMPABISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2018

EXHIBIT C-l

Final
Budget Actual

Variance
Final BndREt

To Actual

CURBENT EXPENDITURES (Continued)
Uudistoibuted Expenditures (Continued)

Instmctional Staff Training Services
Othw Purchased Senijces
Supplies and Materials

Total JnstTuctioDal Staff Training Services

Support Serrices GeneiaiAdciinistraycin
Salaries
Legal Services
Audit Fees
Alchitectural/Engmeeriag Services
Other Purchased ProfesEional Serrictes
Communicati ons/Telephone
BOB OtfaeiFuichased Services
Misa, Purchased Services
Geaaral Supplies
Judgments Against the School District
Miscellaneous Expendiiures
BOB Mcmbersbip Dues and Fees

Total Support Services General Administration

Support Services School Admuisfiaition
Salaries of Ptmcipals/AssLPrincipds/Prog.Dii-
SaEariu of OHierPrefesBional Staff
Salaries of Secretarial and Clerical Assistants
Purchased Technical Services
Other Purchased Services
Sup&lieE and Mated als
Other Objects

Total Support Services School Adnamisfiation

Central Services

Salaries
PuTchased Professional Semccs
Misc. Purchased Services
Supplies and Materials
Other Objects

Total Cenfaal Services

Arimin. Info. Tech
Salaries
Purchased Teohsical Services
Other Purcbased Ssrrices
Supplies and Materials

Total Adroia, Infb. Teflh.

Required Maintenance for School Facilities

Cleamng) Repair & Mamtenance Services
Getieral Supplies

Total B.equired Maintecaoce far School Facilities

I 85,500 S
7,500

93,000

415.069
125,000
42,000
12,000
24,500

150,760
2,500

76,?00
14,250
50,000

5.0DD
29,000

946,979

1,467.505
711,895
772,300

20,325
78,620

1,025

(15,200) t

[15.20B)

(6,534)
20,000
33,826
10,450
3,570

1,135
£13

(975)
(15,745)

340

46,880

(5,683)
15.S68

(75,493)
5,000
4,oon
1.500

300

70,300 S
7.5DO

77,800

408,535
145,000
75,826
22,450
28,070

150.760
3,635

77,713
13,275
34.255
5,340

29,000

993,859

1,461,822
727.463
696,807

5,000
24,325
B0.120

1,325

35,954 $
967-

36,921.

408,294
145,000
74,966
22,450
24,739

107.049
2,632

77,341
11,597

1,353-
5,017

28,063

908,501,

1,450.725
727.463
652.547

3,295
12,772
48,763

L.179

34,346
6,533

40,879

241

860

3,331
43,711

1,003
372

1,678
32,902

323
937

85,358

1,097

44,260
1,705

11.553
31,357

146

3.051,670

55S.39S
S3,600
31,800
24.000

i,5on

710,296

361,721
20?,950

4,000
11,700

587,371

2,996,862

(7,152)
176

(3,109)
2,933

552,244
93,776
28,691
26,933

1,500

703,144

3,102
52,361

364,823
262,311

4,000
11,700.

55,463 642,834

371.420
192,500

2.906,744

681,159

3G2.209
1&0.049

1,178
7,953

561,389

286,114
143,210

90.118

552,244
90,476
11.022
25,924

1,493

3,300
17,669

1,00?
7

Z.614
72,262

2,822
3,747

81,445

85,306
49,290

563,920 429,324 S34,5?6

Custodiai Services
Salaries
Salaries of Non-InstiuetioaaI Aides
Puicliascd Professiocal & Technical Scn'ices
Cleaning, S-epairattd MBintenancei gcrrices
E.eatalofLaad&Buildmgs Other Than Lease Furoh Agree.
Other Purchased Property Services
Insurance

Miscellaneo'as Parohascd Senices
General Supplies
Energy (Natural Gas)
Energy (Eleotiiciiy)
Other Objects

Total Custodial Services

2.735,351
474,024

15,000
180,600
48,500

181,600
468,000

500
218,500
375,000
675,000

3,ooa

5,375,075

(125,827)
(l2,9B4)
20,950
(13,303)

2,200
(1,270)

(27,000)
40,000
(32,200)

(14?,434)

2,60?,524
461,040

35,950
1G7,2?7
48,500

183,800
466,730

500
191.500
415,000
642,800

3,000

5,225,641

2,608,571
444,861

23.1E3
124,040
47,9?2

183,458
466,149

170,319
345,905
619,153

642

5,034,675

353
16,179
12,765
43,257

50S
342
581
500

21,181
69.09S
23,647
2358

190,966
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WALL TOWNSHIP BOAKD OF EDUCATION
GENERAL FUND

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2018

EXHIBIT C.1

Final
BudRef Actual

Variance
Ii'inalBudget

To Achial

CURRENT EXPENDITURES (Continued)

Undistributed Expenditures (Continued)
Care &Upkeep of Grounds
Cleaniag, Repair and Maintenance Services
General Supplies

Total Care &Upteep ofGroimds

Security
Salaries
Purchased Professional md Techmcal Services
Cleaning? Repair and Maintenance Services
General Supplhs

Total Security

ShidenitTiBnspdtation Setvices
Salaries of Noc-Instroctional Aides
Sakries for Pupil Tiansportation
(Between Home and Schopl) - Segular

Salaries for Pupii Tiansportaticm
(Between Home and Sdmoll - Spftcial Ed.

Salaries fblFupil TrSinspDrtation
(Other Than Setween Home & School)

Salaries forPapil Transportation
(Between Home and School) • NonFuUiD Sch

OtberPureliased Prof and Technical Services
CIeacingi E-epaii & Maintenance Svo
Lease Turcfasse Payments- SchDDl Buses
Couttacted Services (Other Than Between Home
and School) - Vendois

Coctoaoted Services (Between Home and School)- Joint Agreements
Contracted Services (SptecialBd Students')-Vendors
Contracted Services (Spwial Ed Students)-Joint Agreements
Contracted Swiccs (R.eg. Studecfs)-ESCs & CTSAs
Contracted Services (Spl. Ed. Stud(;cts)-ESCs St. CTSAs
Contacted Services - AJd m Lieu ofFaymeats- NoaFulilic
Miscellaneous Purehased Services- Transportation
Gececai Supplies
Transportation Supplier
Other Oljecta

Total Student Tiansportati on Serrices

Unallocatcd Benefits
Group Insurance
Social Security Contributions
Other B.etiicmcatConlributioDS -PE&S
Other Retirement Cocb-ibutioBS-Regulat
Workmen's Compensation
Healtb Beccfits
Tuition Reimbuisement
Other Employee BeneSts
Unused Sick Payment to TemiiDBted/Retired Staff

Total UnaUocated Benefits

146,000
39,000

185,000

13,579
37.600

159,5-7S
76,600

5U79_ 236,175

148,144
65,447

213.591

11,435
11,153

22,588

Z41,?49
15,750
10,000
7,500

275,199

223,443

1,415,977

522,786

65,000

72,149
50,000

]20.5I9
266,100

20,000

15,225
50,133

630,107
729,910

70.720
56,000

7,500
373,542

1,500

4,692,611.

29,250
1,068,000
i.i60,oao

47,000
600,000

9,271>BQO
41,000

333,945
52,000

12,602,B?5

50,S8D
10,000

60,580

19,762

(83,281)

8,966

6.000

(14,300)

10,000
(10,000)

(750)

1,238

2.009

750
(10,000)

(69,606)

(15,836)
CI 07,886}
(60,682)
(3,637)
(4,048)

795,543
(24,914)
11,936
16,998

607,4'?4

292,52?
25,750
10,000
7,500

335,779

243,205

1,332,696

531,752

71,000

57,849
50,ODO

130,519
256,100

19,250

15,225
51,371

630,107
731,919 '

70.720
56,000
8,250

365,542
1,500

4,623,005

13,414
9fiO,U4

1,099.318
43,363

593,952
10,067,343

16.086
345>EBi

68,998

13,210,469

276,282
17,017

163
1,651

2?5,ll3

23l,6?8

1,290,428

522,730

63,081

56,334
45,242
87,028

247,845

12,905

13,4E2
50,545

628,910
731.082

64,464
55,753
6.802

307,950
200

4,416,479

13,414
9GO.U4

1,099.3 IS
43,363

595,952
?,092,m

IG,OE6
345,881

6E,9E>B

12,235,257

16,247
B.733
9,837

J.E49

40,666

11,507

42,268

9,022

7,919

1,515
4,758

43,491
8,255

6,345

1,743
E26

1.197
837

6.256
247

1.44B
57,532
.1.300

206,526

975,212

975,212
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WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION
GENERAL FOND

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE BISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2BIS

EXfflBFTC-I

Original
Budget Ad.iutfanenti

Final
Budget Actual

Variance
Final Budget

To Actua]

CCRKENT EXPENDITURES (Cnntinued)

OnBehalfTPAF Tension System Contributioa
Noncontributoiy Insurance (Non Budgeted)
On Behalf TPAF Pension System Contribution

Long Teim Gmup Disability
On BehaIfTPAF Pension System ConbibutJon-NbimaE Cost and Accrued Liabilities
On Behalf TPAP Pension System Contribution

Posi- Retiiement Medical -CNon Budgeted)
Reimbursed TPAF Social Security Contribution

(Non Budgeted)

104.262 $ (104,262)

Total Oa-BehalfContibutions

Total Undistdbufed Sxpendihires

Total Expenditures • Cunent Expenditurcs

CAPITAL OUTLAY
Equipment

Regular Programs - Instruction
Grades 9-12

Special EdacBtion - InstroctlDn
Multiple Disabilities
School-Sponsored Athletics

Undistributed Expenditures
School-Spotisored and Other Instructional programs
School Buses

Non- Insbuctioaal

Total Equipment

FaciUties Acqmsition and Cocstroction Swvices

Aiclaitectural/Engineering Services
Construction Services
Assessment for Debt Service os SDA Funding

Total Facilities Acquisition and Consiruction Services

AsBots Acquiied Under Capital Leases (Non-Budgeted)

Total Cspitd Outlay

Total Sxp end itures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over
(LTndcr) Expenditures

Other Fiaancmg Souices (Uses)

Capital Leases (Non-Sudget)

Total Other FinanEsing Souniee

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and Other
FiDancing Sources Over/(Under)Expendihires md
Ofhcr Finaacing Uses

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year

Fund Balances, End of Year

Recapitulafion
Restricted Fund Balance

Capital Reserve
Maintenance Reserve
Emergency Resenre
Designated for Subsequent YeMisBxpen(iituies-201B/20l9 Budget

Capita) Reserve
MaJDtenance Reserve

Committed Fund Balance
Year End EnouuAiancea

Assigned Fund Balance
Year End Encumbrances
Designated fbi Subsequent Yeart Expenditures

Unassigned Fund Balance

Recanciliatiun to Governmental Funds Statements (GAAP)
2017/2018 State Aid Payments Not Recognized on GAAP Basis
2017/201 S ExtraoriinaiyAid Revenue 'Not Recognized on OAAP BasiB

Fund Balance Per Governmental Funds (GAAP)

8,687
4,296,345

2,842,258

2,270,032

9,521,584

t 39,028,285 S

68,770,000

39.183,226 46,396,194

68,702,937 75,397,422

(8,687)
(4,296,345)

97,220

97,220

80,000
570.000

7,-7EO

657,780

755,000

69,525,000

(1,183,700)

(1,183,700)

7,833,880

$ 6,650,180 $

22,971

l3>800

9,110

(47,280)

(1,399)

31,9B4
804,439

E36.423

835,024

767.961.

?68,3071

(668,307)

(668,307) $

22,971

13,800

9,110

49,94fl

95,E2l

111.984
1,374,439

7,780

l,4?4,203

1,590,024

70292,961

(I,B52,007)

(1,852,007)

7,833,880

5>9B 1,873 S

22,971

13,800

9,109

49,658

95,S3E_

S3,l45
922,320

7,780

?83,245

300,000

1,378,783

76.776,205

2,638,175

300,000

300.000

2,938,175

7,833,880

10,772,053

1

282

2S3

58,839
452,119

510,958

(300,000)

211,241

(6>483,244]

4.490.1B2

300,000

300,000

4,790,1 B2

S 4,790,182

3,782,795
300,000
695.000

3,100,000
500,000

412,131

115,916
350.000

1,516,213

10,772,055

(358,800)
(303,185)

$ 10,110,070
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WALL TOWNSHIP BOAfiD OF EDUCATION
SPECIAL EEVENUE FUND

BUDGETARY COMPAKISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE EISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

EXHIBIT C-2

REVENUES
lutergoveramental

Stats

Federal

Local Sources

Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

Original

Budeet

$ 70,000

1,060.000

1,130,000

Adjustments

$ 2,152 $
422,672

27,713

452,537

Final

Badeet

72,152 $

1,482,672

27,713

1,582,537

Actual

59,802

1,2?9,317

23,588

1,382,707

Variance Final

Budget ta Actual

$ (12.350)
(183,355)

(4,125)

(199,830)

3EXPENDmJ5ES
Instruction

Salaries ofTeachers

Tuition" Odier Purchased Services

Purchased Professional and Technical Services

General Supplies

Other Objects

Total Instruction.

Support Services

Salaries of Teachers

Personal Services"Employee Benefits

Purchased Professional/Techmcal Svc

Ofher Purchased Services

Supplies and Materials

Total Support Services

Facilities Acquisition and Construction

Services

Instructional Equipmsnt

Total Facilities Acquisition and

Construc.tion S&rvices

250,000

810,000

18,000

1.078.000

45,000

7,000

52,000

(43,954)
810,000

(810,000)
182,276

13,089

151,411

51,168

19,308

182,327

12,901
23,422

289,126

206,046

810,000

200,276
13,089

1,229,411

51,168

19,308

227,327

19,901
23,422

341,126

166,824

810,000

156,219
11,388

1,144,431

37,038

15,596

153,770

10,229
9,643

226,276

39,222

44,057
1,701

84,980

14,130

3,712

73,557

9,672
13,779

114,850

12,000 12,000 12,000

12,000 12,000 12,000

Total Expenditures 1,130,000 452,537 1,582,537 1,382,707 199,830

Excess (DeiSciency) of Revenues and Oflier

Fmaucing Sources Over/(Under) Expenditures

Fund Balance, Begianing of Year

Fund Balance, End of Year
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EXHIBIT C-3

WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION
REQUJREO SUPPLE3MENTARY INFORMATION

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
NOTES TO THE HEQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2018

Poi-mal budgetary mtegration into fhe accountmg system is employed as a management control device during the year. For

governmental funds there are no substantial differences between the budgetary basis of accounting and accounting principles

generally accepted in fhe United States of America, with the exception of the legally mandated rev&nue recognition of certain

state aid payments for budgetary purposes only a&d the treatment of enc'umbrances m fhe special revenue fund as described

below. Encumbrance accounting is also employed as an extension of formal budgetary integration of fee governmental fund

types. Unencumbered appropriations lapse at fiscal year end,

The accoaatmg records offhe Special Revenue Fund are maintained on the grant accoimtmg budgetary basis. The grant

accounting budgetary bosis differs from GAAP in feat the grant accounting budgetary basis recognizes encumbrances as

expenditures and also recognizes the related revenues, whereas fee GAAP basis does not. Sufficient supplemental records

are maintained to allow for the presentation of GAAP basis financial reports.

The following presents a reconciliation of the General and Special Revenue Funds from fee budgetary basis of accounting

as presented in the Budgetary Comparison Schedule - General Fund and Special R.eveaus Fund to the GAAP basis of

accountiag as presented m. the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes inFund Balance - Governmental Funds.

Special
General Revenue

Fund Fund

Sources/Infiows of Resources

Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "revenue"

from the budgetary comparison schedule

Difference - Budget to GAAP:

Grant accoimtmg budgetaiy basis differs fi'om GAAP in. that

encumbrances are recoguized as expenditures, and the related

revenue is recognized.

Encumbrances, June 30,2017

Encumbrances, June 30, 2018

State Aid payments recognized for GAAP purposes, not

recognized for Budgetary statements (2016/2017 State Aid)

State Aid payments recognized for budgetary purposes, not

recognized for GAAP statements (2017/2018 State Aid)

(C-l) $ 79,414,380 (C-2) $ 1,382,707

19,742
(22,890)

625,027

(661,985)

Total revenues as reported on the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures

and Changes in. Fund Balances - Governmental Funds. (B"2) $_ 79,377,422 $ 1,379,559

Uses/Outflows of Resources

Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "total outflows" from the

budgetary comparisoa schedule

Differences - Budget to GAAP

Encumbrances for supplies and equipment ordered but

not received are reported in the year the order is placed for

budgetary purposes, but in the year the supplies are received

for fmancial reporting purposes,

Encumbrances, June 30,2017

Encumbrances, June 30, 2018

Total expenditures as reported on the Statement of Revenues,

Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds

(C-l) $ 76,776,205 (C-2) $ 1,382,707

19,742

.(22,890)

(B-2) $ 76,776,205 $ 1,379,559
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - PART HI

PENSION INFORMATION
AND

POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS INFORMATION



EXHTOriL-l

WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

SCHEDULE OF THE DISTRICT'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILHY

Public Employees Retirement System

Last Five Fiscal Years*

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

District's Propordon of the Net Position

Liability (Asset)

District's Proportionate Share of the Net

Pension Liability (Asset)

District's Covered-Employee Payroll

District's Proportionate Share of the Net

Pension Liability (Asset) as a Percentage
of its Covered-Employee PayioII

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a
<o Percentage offhe Total Pension

Liability

0.12318% 0.12626% 0.11787% 0.11812% 0.11213%

28,675,613 $ 37,394,830 $ 26,461,623 $22,114,767 $21,430,356

8,226,051 $ 8,549,704 $ 8,383,906 $ 8,019,520 $ 8,070,828

349%

48.10%

437%

40.14%

316%

47.93%

276% 266%

52.08% 48.72%

* The amounts presented for each fiscal year were detemuaed as of the previous fiscal year-ead.

This schedule is presented to illustrate die requirement to show information for 10 yeais in accordance with GASB StatemeatNo. 68. However, i.mtU a fiiU 10-year tread is compiled, file Distucfc wffl only present infomiation for

fliose years for which information is available.



EXHIBETL-2

WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY BWOKMATION

SCHEDIJLE OF DISTRICT CONTRIBimONS

SPublic Employees Retirement System

Last Five Fiscal Years

2918 2017 2016 2015 2014

Confractaally Required Contribution

Couteibutions in K.eladon to tlie

Coatractually Requiied Coutribution

Contribution Deficiency (Excess)

District's Covered-EmpIoyes Payroll

Contributions as a Percentage of

Covered-Employse Payroll

1,141,182 $ 1,121,683 $ 1,013,449 $ 973,741 $ 845,865

_1,141,182 _1,121,683. 1,013,449 973,741 845,865

$ 8.226,051 $ 8,549,704 $ 8.383,906 $ 8,019,520 $ 8,070,828

14% 13% 12% 12% 10%

Tbis schedule is pieseated to illustrate the requirement to show infonnation for 10 years in accordance wi&GASB Statement No. 68. However, until a fiill 10-year trend is compiled, ttie District wffl only present infomiation for

those years for which information is available.



EXHIBIT L-3

WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION
KEQUHtED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

SCHEDULE OF THE DISTRICT'S PROPOE.TIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY

Teachers Pension and Annuity Fund

Last five Fiscal Years*

2818 Z017 201C 2015 2014

Distdcfs Proportion offhs Net Position
LiabUity (Asset)

District's Proportionate Share offhe Net
Pension Liability (Asset)

State's Proportionate Share of&e Net Pension
Liability (Asset) Associated with the District

Total

District's Covered-Employee Payroll

District's Proportionate Share offfaeNet
Pension Liability (Asset) as a Percentage

<0 of its Coveied-Employee Payroll
Cd

Plan. Fiduciary Net Position as a
Percentage of ihe Total Pension
Liability

0% 0% 0%

199,684,015 $ 222,510^3CL 1 177,24U22_

199,684,015 $ 222,510,730_ $ 177^241,722_

29,422,617 $ 29,685,953 $ 29,563,236

0%

25.41%

0%

22.33%

0%

28.71%

0% 0%

141,063,164 $137,997,158

141,063,164 $137,997,158

28,637,933 S 27,789,670

0%

33.64%

0%

33.76%

* Tlie amounts presented far each fiscal year were deteimined as of the previous fiscal year-ead.

This schedule is presented, to illustrate fha requirement to show infeimation for 10 years m accordance widi GASB Statement No. 68. However, until a fall 1 0~year trend is compiled, the District -will only present ia&rmation for tiiose years for

which mformation is available.



EXHIBIT L-4

WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

SCHEDULE OF DISTRICT'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF NET PENSION LIABILITY
AND SCHEDULE OF DISTRICT CONTRIBUTIONS

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY mFORMATION
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Change of Benefit Terms: None.

Change of Assumptions: Assumptions used in calculating the net pension liability and statutorily

required employer contribution are presented in Note 5D.
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EXHIBIT L-5

WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORAMTION

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE DISTRICT'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF
TOTAL OPEB LIABDJTY

Postemployment Health Benefit Plan

Last One Fiscal Year*

2018

Total OPEB Liability

Service Cost $ 7,828,298

Interest on Total OPEB Liability 5,525,91-7

Changes of Assumptions (22,989,673.0)
Gross Benefit Payments (4,565,617)

Coutribution from the Member 168J17

Net Change in Total OPEB LiabUity (14,03^95,8)

Total OPEB Liability - Begitining 188,046,247

Total OPEB Liability - Ending $ 174,013,289

District's Proportionate Share ofOPEB Liability $

State's Proportionate Share ofOPEB Liability 174,013,289

Total OPEB Liability - Ending $ 174,013,289

District's Covered-Employee Payroll $ 37,648,668

District's Proportionate Share offhe

Total OPEB Liability as a Percentage of its

Covered-Employee Payroll ,0%

Note: No assets are accumulated in a trust feat meets the criteria m paragraph 4 of GASB 75. ,

*The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as offhe previous fiscal year end-.

This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show mformation for 10 years m accordance with GASB

Statement No. 75. However, until a full 10-year trend is compiled, Ae District will only present infonnation. for fhose

years for which mfonnation is available.
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EXHIBIT L-6

WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE DISTRICT'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE OPEB LIABILITY
AND SCHEDULE OF DISTRICT PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE OPEB LIABIUTY

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2018

Changes in Benefit Terms: None.

Changes of Assumptions Assumptions used in calculating the OPEB Liability

are presented in Note 5.
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GENERAL FUND
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WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION
SPECIAL, 3REYENUE FUND

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF EEVENUES AND EXPENDFmEtES
BUDGETARY BASIS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2018

EXHiBrrE-i

REVENUES
Intergovemmeatal

State
Federal

Other

Titteffl
Title! HfleIEA Title IBE Immisrant Title rv:

IDEA IDEA Temporary Total
Part Part B Emergency Exhibit
[-Basic Preschool Imoact Aid E"la Totals

279,745 $ 78,125 $ 20,347 $ 814
$ 59,802 $ 59,802

7,523 $ 865,958 $ 32,930 $ 13,875 1,299,317
23,588 23,588

Total Revenues 279,745 $ 78,125 $ 20,347 $ 814 $ 7,523 $ 865,958 $ 32,930 $ 13,875 $ 83,390 $ 1,382,707

EXPENDITURES
Instruction

Salaries of Teachers

Tuition - Ofher Purchased Services
General Supplies

Other Objects

Total Instruction

99,656 $ 54,945 $ 12,223

111,921 7,189

211,577 54,945 19,412_

$ 810.000
6,951

297

7.248 810,000

2,006 $ 13,875

2,006 13,87_5_

$ 166,824
810,000

14.277 156,219
11,091 11,388

25,368 1,144,431

Support Services
Salaries ofTeacheis

Personal Svcs. -Emp. Benefits

Purchased Prof & Tech Svcs

Otiier Purchased Services

Supplies and Materials

36,282
10,400
13,820

7,666

4,203
17,000

1,977

935
756

58

275
50,362
5,596

30,924 41,664
4,358

37,038
15,596

153,770
10,229
9,643

Total Support Services 68,168 23,180 935 814 275 55,958 30,924 46,022 226,276

Facilities Acquisition and Construction

Services

lastructional Equipment 12,000 12,000

Total Facilities Acquisition and
Construction Services 12,000 12,000.

Total Expenditures 279,745 $ 78,125 $ 20,347 $ 814 7,523 $ 865,958 $ 32,930 $ 13,875 $ 83,390 $ 1,382,707



WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AN& EXPENDITURES
BUDGETARY BASIS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED .TONE 30,2018

EXHEBFT E-la

REVENUES
Intergovernmental

State
Ottier

Exam. &

Class.

Chap.193

Snecch
Nonpublic

Nursitii

NonpubUc
TeacUioolt

Aid

Chap.192

Nonpublic

Transnortafinn

Chap.192
NonpuMic

Compcasatory
Education

Services

6,916 £ 7,143 $ 4,758 £ 8,645 S 5,423 S 6,230 $ 7,972 S

Nonpublic Noapublic

Security Tcchnotoi

8,357 3 4,358

Toteil

Local Exhibit
Grants E-.la

£ 59,802
23,538 23,588

Total Revenues

EXFENDmJKES
Instruction

General Supplies
Other Objects

6,916 S 7,143 S 4,758 S 8,645 S 5,423

$ 5,423

6,230 I 7,972 S 8,357 I

8357

4.35B £ 23,588 S 33.390

497 3 14,277
11,091 11,091

Total Instruction 5,423 8,357 11,5S8 25,368

Support Services

Purchased Prof & Technical Svcs
Other Purchased Swvices

6,916 I 7,143 4,758 £ 8,645 6,230 S 7,972

S 4,358

Total Support Services

Facilities Acquisidon and Constmctioti

Services

Instructional Equipment

6,916 7,143 4,758 8,645 6,230 7,972 4.358

12,000

46,022

12,000

Total Facilities Acquisition aad Construction

Services 12,000 12,000

Total Expenditures 6,916 S 7.143 S 4,758 S 8,645 £ 5,423 £ 6,230 S 7,972 S 8,357 $ 4,358 S 23,58S S S3.390



EXHIBIT E-2

WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

PRESCHOOL EDUCATION PROGRAM AID
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES " BUDGETARY BASIS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2018

NOT APPLICABLE
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EXfflBFF F-l
WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PROJECT EXPENDITURES

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2018

Year

2014
2014
2014
2015
2015
2016
2016

HVAC-WestBelmar

Emergency Gen.erators-Vaiious Schools

Front Entrance Modification-Varicms Schools

Security Upgrades-Various Schools

Roof Replacement" Various Schools

Phone System- Various Schools

Public Address System - Various Schools

Appropriation

^ 144,606
408,649
434,712
644,000
734,000
458,300

1,933,000

Expenditures to Date

Prior Year Current Year

$ 141,606
386,150
400,335
631,276
498,206
249,765 $ 199,369

1.776.990 117.351

Balance

June 30.2018

$ 3,000
22,499
34,377
12,724

235,794
9,166

38,659

Fund Balance, Budgetary "Basis

Less: Unrealized SDA Grants

Fund Balance, GAAP Basis

Reconciliation of Fund Balance

Restricted
Year-End Encumbrances

Available for Capital Projects

Total Fund Balance- Restricted

for Capital Projects

$ 4,757,267 $ 4,084,328 $ 316,720 $ 356,219

356,219

_(_l59,889)

$ 196,330

47,826
148,504

$ 196,330

1-00



EXHIBIT F"2

WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PROJECT EXPENDFTURES AND CHANGES IN FIMD BALANCE
BUDGETARY BASIS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2018

Expenditures and Other Fmancmg Uses

Expenditures

Construction Services

Total Expenditures

316,720

316,720

Deficiency of Revenues and Otto Financing Sources Over Expenditures
and Other Pinancing Uses

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year

Fund Balance, End of Year

Reconciliation to Governmental Fund Statements (GAAP):

Fund Balance per Goverapiental Funds (Budgetary)

Less: Unearned SDA Grant Revenue Not Recognized on GAAP Basis

Fund Balance per Governmental Funds (GAAP)

(316,720)

672,939

356,219

356,219
(159,889)

196,330
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EXHIBIT F-2a

WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION
CAPITAL PROJECTS FCTND

SCHEDULE OF PROJECT REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, PROJECT BALANCE
AND PROJECT STATUS BUDGETARY BASIS

HVAC- WEST BELMAR
FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2018

Revenues and Other Hnancing Sources

State - Regular Operating District Grant

Local Sources - Transfer from Capital Outlay

Total Revenues and Other Pinancmg Sources

Expenditures and Other Iiiaancing Uses

Expenditures

Purchased Professional aud Technical Services

Construction Services

Total Expenditures

Excess Revenues Over Expenditures

Additional Project Information:

Project Number

FEC Grant Date

Bond Authorization Date

Proceeds Issued

Origmal Authorized Cost
Revised Authorized Cost

Percentage Increase Over Original
Authorized Cost

Percentage Completion

Prior
year

$ 57,842
86,764

144,606

141,606

141,606

$ 3,000

Current
Year

3

$_„ 3
5420-080-14-1006-G04

1/6/2014
N/A
N/A

$ 234,000
144,606

0%
98%

2014/15

Totals

; 57,842
86,764

144,606

141,606

141,606

> 3,000

Revised

Authorized
Cost

$ 57,842
86,764

144,606

144,60.6

144,606
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EXHIBIT F-2b

WALL TOWNSHIP BOAKD OF EDUCATION
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

SCHEDm^E OF PROJECT REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, PROJECT BALANCE
AND PROJECT STATUS BUDGETARY BASIS

EMERGENCY GENERATORS
FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Revenues and Other Financing Sources

State - Regular Operating District Grants

Local Sources - Transfer from Capital Outlay

Total Revenues and Ofher Fmancing Sources

Expenditures and Other Financing Uses

Expenditures
Purchased Professional and Techmcal Services

Construction Services

Total Expenditures

Excess Revenues Over Expenditures

Prior
Year

$ 163,457
245,192

408,649

Current

Year Totals

$ 163,457
245,192

408,649

Revised

Authorized
Cost

$ 163,457
245,192

408,649

386,150

386,150

22,499 $

386,150 408,649

386,150 408,649

22,499 $

Original Revised

Authorized Cost Authorized Cost

Additional Project Information:

Project Number Primary School

Allenwood Blementary School

Central Elementary School

Old Mill Elementary School
West Belmar Elementaiy School

FEC Grant Date

Bond Authorization Date

Proceeds Issued

Original Authorized Cost
Revised Authorized Cost

Percentage Increase Over Original
Authorized Cost

Percentage Completion
Origiaal Target Completion Date

5420-078-14-1004-G04 $

5420-060-1^1001-004
5420-Q70-14-1002-G04

5420-077-14-1003-G04

5420-080-14-1005-G04

1/6/2013
N/A
N/A

$ 1,024,000
408,649

0%
94%

2014/15

204,800
204,800
204,800
204,800
204,800

1,024,000

$ . 66,000

87,883
87,883
69,000
97,883

$ 408,649
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EXHIBIT F-Zc

WALL TOWNSHIP BOAED OF EDUCATION
CAm-AL PROJECTS FUND

SCHEDULE OF PROJECT REVENUES, EXPENDITUKES, PROJECT BALANCE
AND PROJECT STATUS BUDGETARY BASIS

FRONT DOORMODmCATION
FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JtfNE 30, 2018

Prior
Year

Revenues and Other Financing Sources

State - Regular Operating Dish'ict Grants

Local Sources - Transfer irom Capital Outlay
173,878
260,834

Current

Year

Revised

Authorized
Totals Cost

173,878 $
260,834

173,878
260,834

Total Revenues and Other Financing Sources

Expenditures and Other Fioanciag Uses

Expenditures

Pumtiased Professional and Technical Services

Construction Services

Total Expenditures

Excess Revenues Over Expenditures

434,712 434,712 434,712

42,835
357,500

400,335

$ 34,377 $

42,835
357,500

400,335

S 34,377 3

66,102
368,610

434,712

Original
Anfliorized Cost

Revised

Autiiorized Cost

Additional Project Information:
Project Number Wall Intennediate School

West Belmar Elsmentary Scliool

Old Mill Elementary School
Central Elementary Sciiool

AUenwood Elementary School
Primary School

Wall Township High School

5420-075-14-1021-G04 $
5420-080-14-103 8-G04
5420-077-14-1029-G04
5420-070-144 020-G04
5420-060-14-1014-G04
5420.078-14-1030-G04
5420-050-14-1009-G04

94,000 $
37,500
75,000
75,000

103,750
15,000
75,000

475,250 $

83,365
37,085
67,169
67,836
90,234
14,187
74,836

434,712

FEC Grant Date
Bond Authorization Date
Proceeds Issued

Original Authorized Cost
Revised Aufhorized Cost

Percentage Increase Over Origmal

Authorized Cost
Percentage Completion

Original Target Completion Date

7/10/2014
N/A
N/A

475,250
434,712

0%
92%

2014/15
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EXHIBIT F-2d

WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

SCHEDULE OF PROJECT REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, PROJECT BALANCE
AND PROJECT STATUS BUDGETARY BASIS

SECURITY UPGRADES
FROM INCEPTION AND FOR TEBE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Revenues and Other Financing Sources

State - Regular Operating District Grants

Local Sources - Transfer from Capital Outlay

Total Revenues and Other Financing Sources

Expenditures and Other Financing Uses

Expenditures

Purchased Professional and Technical Services

Construction Services

Total Expenditures

Excess/(Deficiency) Revemies Over Expenditures

Additional Project Information;
Project Number Wall Intermediate School

West Belmar Elementary School

Old Mill Elementary School
Central Elementary School

AUenwood Elementary School

Primaiy School

Wall Township High School

FEC Grant Date
Bond Authorization Date
Proceeds Issued

Original Authorized Cost
Revised Authorized Cost

Percentage Increase Over Origmal

Authorized Cost
Percentage Completion

Prior

Year

$ 257,600
386,400

644,000

50,667
580,609

631,276

$ 12,724

Current

Year

1/16/2014
N/A
N/A

$ 644,000
644,000

0%
98%

2014/15

Totals

$ 257,600 3
386,400

644,000

50,667
580,609

631,276

$ 12,724 ;

Original
Authorized Cost

$ 126,000
87,000
71,000
88,000
78,000
34,000

160,000

$ 644,000

Revised

Authorized
Cost

i 257,600
386,400

644,000

54,500
589,500

644,000
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WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

SCHEDULE OF PROJECT REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, PROJECT BALANCE
AND PROJECT STATUS BUDGETARY BASIS

ROOF REPLACEMENTS
FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE PISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

EXHIBIT F-2e

Revenues and Other Financing Sources

State - Regular Operatmg Distnct Grants

Local Sources " Transfer from Capital Outlay

Total Revenues and Other Financing Sources

Expenditures and Other Fmancing Uses

Expenditures

Purchased Professional and Techmcal Services

Construction Services

Total Expeuditures

Excess/(Deficiency) Revenues Over Expenditures

Prior

Year

$ 293,600
440,400

734,000

Current

Year Totals

$ 293,600
440,400

734,000

Revised

Authorized

Cost

$ 293,600
440,400

734,000

57>126
441,080

498,206

$ 235,794 $

57,126
441,080

498,206

$ 235,794 $
Original

Authorized Cost

147,214
586,786

734,000

Additional Project Information:
Project Number

WestBelmar Elementary School
Central Elementary School

AIlenwood Elementary School

Primary School

69,000
390,000
75,000

200,000

$ 734.000

FEC Grant Date
Bond Au.fhoriza.tion Date

Proceeds Issued

Original Authorized Cost
Revised Authorized Cost

Percentage Increase Over Original

Authorized Cost

Percentage Completion.

Original Target Completion Date

1/16/2014
N/A
N/A

; 734,000
734,000

0%
68%

2014/15
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WALL TOWNSmP BOARD OF EDUCATION
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

SCHEDULE OF PROJECT REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, PROJECT BALANCE
AND PROJECT STATUS BUDGETARY BASIS

PHONE SYSTEM
FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

EXHIBIT P-2f

Revenues and Other Financing Sources

State - Regular Operatmg District Grants

Local Sources - Transfer from Capital Outlay

Total Revenues and Other Financmg Sources

Prior
Year

$ 183,320
274,980

458,300

Current

Year Totals

$ 183,320
274,980

458,300

Revised
Authorized

Cost

$ 183,320
274,980

458,300

Expenditures and Other Financing Uses

Expenditures

Purchased Professional and Technical Services

Construction Services

Total Expenditures

Excess Revenues Over Expenditures

249,765 $

249,765

199,369

199,369

449,134

449,134

9,166 $

Original
Authorized Cost

458,300

458,300

Additional Project Information:

Project Number

Wall Intermediate School

West Belmar Elementary School

Old Mill Elementary School
Central Elementary School

Allenwood Elementary School

Primary School
Wall Township ffigh School

$ 110,000
35,000
49,500
49,000
44,000

6,300
164,500

$ 458,300

FEC Grant Date
Bond Authorization Date

Proceeds Issued

Original Aufcorized Cost
Revised Authorized Cost

Percentage Increase Over Original

Authorized Cost
Percentage Completion

Origmal Target Completion Date

Revised Target Completion Date

1/6/2014
N/A
N/A
458,300
458,300

0%
98%

2016/17
2018/19
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EXHIBH'F-2g

WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

SCHEDULE OF PROJECT REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, PROJECT BALANCE
AM» PROJECT STATUS BUDGETARY BASIS

PUBLIC ADDRESS SYSTEM
FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2018

Revenues and Other .Financing Sources

State - Regular Operating District Grants

Local Sources - Transfer from Capital Outlay

Total Revenues and Odier Financing Sources

Expenditures aad Other Financing Uses

Expenditures

Construction Services

Total Expeaditares

Excess Revenues Over Expenditures

Prior

Year

Current

Yea? Totals

Revised
Authorized

Cost-

$ 773,200
1,159,800

1,933,000

1,776,990 $

1,776,990

$ 156,010 $

117,351

117,351

(117,351)

$ 773,200 $
1,159,800

1,933,000

1,894,341

1,894,341

$ 38,659 $
Original

Authorized Cost

773,200
1.159,800

1.933,000

1,933,000

1,933,000

Additional Project Information:
Project Number

Wall Intermediate School

West Belmar Elementary School

Old Mill Elementary School
Central Elementary School

Allenwood Elementary School

Wall TownsMp High School

473,000
150,000
210,000
210,000
188,000
702,000

$ 1,933,000

PEG Grant Date
Bond Aufhoriza.tion Date

Proceeds Issued

Original Authorized Cost
Revised Autitiorized Cost

Percentage Increase Over Original

Au&orized Cost
Percentage Completion

Original Target Completion Date
Revised Target Completion Date

1/6/2014
N/A
N/A

1,933,000
1,933,000

0%
98%

2016/17
2018/19
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PROPRIETARY FUNDS



WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION
ENTERPRISE ETJNDS - NON MAJOR

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
AS OF JUNE 30,2018

EXHIBIT G-l

ASSETS

Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Accounts Receivable

Total Current Assets

Total Assets

Before and
After School

Programs

107,038
6,881

113,919

113,919

LIABDJTIES
Accounts Payable

Unearned Revenue

Total Liabilities

NET POSITION

Unrestricted

Total Net Position

5,1

666
,120

5,786

108,1

$ 108,1

,133

,133

109



WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION
ENTERPRISE FUNDS - NON-MAJOR

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN NET POSITION

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2018

EXHIBIT G-2

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for Services

Program Fees

Total Operating Revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries and Employee Benefits

Purchased Property Services

Supplies and Materials

Other Purchased Services

Total Operating Expenses

Operating Income/Chauge in Net Position

Total Net Position, Beginning of Year

Total Net Position, End of Year

Before and
After School

Programs

448,023

448,023

315,093
76,286
7,123

18,159

416,661

31,362

76,771

108,133
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EXHIBIT G-3
WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION

ENTERPRISE FUNDS - NON MAJOR
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR E1SDED Jt? 30,2018

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATJDW ACTTVTTIES
Receipts from Customers

Payments to Employees Salaries and Benefits

Payments to Suppliers for Goods and Services

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Before and
After School

Programs

448,277
(314,427)
(101,568)

32,282

Net Increase in Cash aud Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beguming of Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Provided
by Operating Activities

Operating Income

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income to
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities
Change m Assets and Liabilities

(Increase)/Decrease m Accounts Receivable

Increase/(Decrease) m Accounts Payable

Increase/(Decrease) iti Unearned Revenue

Total Adjusfanents

Net Cash. Provided by Operating Activities

32,282

74,756

107,038

31,362

(4,294)
666

4,548

920

32,282
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FIDUCIARY FUNDS



EXHIBIT H-l

WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION
FIDUCIARY FUTOS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF HDUCIARY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
AS OF JUNE 30,2018

ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Total Assets

Student
Activity Payroll

$ 274,384 $ 90,286 $

Total
Aeency Funds

364,670

$ 274,384 $ 90,286 $ 364,670

LIABILITIES

Payroll Deductions and Withholdings
Flexible Spending (Sect. 125) Plan
Due to Student Groups

Total Liabilities

$ 274,384

77,500 $
12,786

$ 274,384 $ 90,286 $

77,500
12,786

274,384

364,670

112



EXHIBFTH-2

WALL TOWNSHIP BOAKD OF EDUCATION
COMBmiNG STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2018

NOT APPLICABLE

FINANCIAL STATEMENT IS PRESENTED ON EXHIBIT B-8
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EXHIBFT H-3

ELEMENTARY SCHOOL
WaU Central

Total Elementary School

MIDDLE SCHOOL
Wall Intermediate School
Athletic Account

Total Middle School

HIGH SCHOOL
Wall ffigh School
Athletic Account

Total High School

Total All Schools

WALL TOWNSHIP BOASB OF EDUCATION
STUDENT ACTIVITY AGENCY FUND

SCHEDULE OF RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2018

Balance,

July 1,
2017

$ 4,003

4,003

38,009
5,601

43,610

208,963
2,522

211,485

$ 259,098

Cash

Receipts

$ 2,639

2,639

330,356
17,929

348,285

455,989
120,482

576,471

$ 927,395

Cash

Disbursements

$ 1,583 ;

1,583

315,352
18,527

333,879

459,908
116,739

576,647

$ 912,109

Balance,

June 30,
2018

$ 5,059

5,059

53,013
5,003

58,016

205,044
6,265

211,309

$ 274,384

114



EXHIBIT H-4
WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION

PAYROLL AGENCY FUND
SCHEDULE OF RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2018

ASSETS
Cash

Cash Held by Trustee

Total Assets

Balance,

July 1,
2017

$ 58,944 ;
4,109

$ 63,053 :

Cash
Receipts

$ 50,538,335

$ 50,538,335

Cash

Disbursements

$ 50,506,993
4,109

$ 50,511,102

Balance,

June 30,

2018

$ 90,286

$ 90,286

LIABILITIES
Payroll Deductions and Wifhholdings

Accrued Salaries and Wages

Flexible Spending (Sect. 125) Account

Total Liabilities

58,944 ;

4,109

$ 21,900,777 $
28,566,685

70,873

21,882,221

28,566,685
62,196

77,500

12,786

63,053 $ 50,538,335 $ 50,511,102 $ 90,286
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EXHIBIT I"l

WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION
SCHEDULE OF SERIAL BONDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2018

Issue

Pension Refunding Bonds

School Refunding Bonds

Date of

Issue

?/3/2012 3

4/22/2015

Amount of

Issue

i 3,790,000

17,515,000

Annual Maturities

Date

7/15/2018
7/15/2019
7/15/2020
7/15/2021
7/15/2022
7/15/2023
7/15/2024
7/15/2025
7/15/2026
7/15/2027

7/15/2018
7/15/2019
7/15/2020
7/15/2021
7/15/2022
7/15/2023

Amount

$ 395,000

410,000

430,000

85,000

90,000

95,000

100,000

105,000

105,000

110,000

2,020,000
2,115,000

2,230,000

2,350,000

2,370,000

2,410,000

Interest

Rate

2.440 %

4.202

4.202

4.202

4.202

4.202

4.202

4.202

4.202

4.202

4.000

4.000

5.000

5.000

5.000

5.000

Totals

Balance,

July 1,2017

$ 2,315,000 $

15,425,000

$ 17,740,000 $

Paid by Budget Appropriation $^

Paid

390,000

1,930,000

2,320,000

2,320,000

Balance,

June 30,2018

$ 1,925,000

13,495,000

$ 15,420,000



EXmBIT 1-2

2015 School Buses (3)
2014 School Buses (3)
2016 School Buses (2)
2015 School Bus

Various Equipment
2016 School Buses (4)
2017 School Buses (4)

WALL TOWNSmP BOARD OF EDUCATION
SCHEDULE OF OBLIGATIONS UNDER CAPFTAL LEASES

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2018

Issue

Amount of

Xt-ease

$ 266,760
173,868
120,698
84,666
70,000

267,000
300,000

$ 1,282,992

Interest

Hate

2.350%
2.000%

2.380%
2.380%
2.493%
2.110%
2.150%

Balance,

July 1. 2017

$ 54,576
35,472
49,221
34,527
42,099

158,906

$ 374,801

Paid by Budget Appropriation

Issued

$300,000

$300,000

Retired

$ 54,576
35,472
24,321
17,061
13,689
51,867
61,670

$258,656

$258,656

Balance,

June 30. 2018

$ 24,900
17,466
28,410

107,039
238,330

$ 416,145



WALL TOWNSfflP BOARD OF EDUCATION .
DEBT SERVICE FUND

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

EXHIBIT 1-3

REVENUES
Local Sources

Local Tax Levy

State Sources

Debt Service Aid - Type H

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Regular Debt Service
Principal
Interest

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Bxpenditures

Fund- Balance, Begmning of Year

Fund Balance, End of Year

Variance

Original Final "Final Budget
Budget Adlustments Budeet Actual to Actual

2,324,431

743,411

3,067,842

$ 2,324,431 $ 2,324,431

743,411 743,411

3,067,842 3,067,842_

2,320,000
750,055

3,070,055

(2»213)

2,213

2,320,000
750,055

3,070,055

(2,213)

2,213

2,320,000
750,055

3,070,055

.(2,213;

2,213

$
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STATISTICAL SECTION

This part of the Wall Township Board of Education's comprehensive annual financial report

presents detailed mformation as a context for understanding what the mformation in the financial

statements, note disclosures, and required supplementary mformation says about the government s

overall financial health.

Contents Exhibits

Financial Trends

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand
how the government's financial performance and well-being have changed

over time. J-l to J-5

Revenue Capacity

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the govem-

ment's most significant local revenue source, the property tax. J-6 to J-9

Debt Capacity

These schedules present mformation to help the reader assess the afforda-

bility of the government's current levels of outstanding debt and the

government's ability to issue additional debt in the future. J-10 to J-13

Demographic and Economic Information

These schedules offer demograpliic and eccmomic indicators to help the
reader understand the environment within which the government's fman-

cial activities take place. J-14 and J-15

Operating Information

These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader

understand how the mformation, in the government's financial report

relates to the services the government provides and fhe activities it performs. J-16 to J"20

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the

comprehensive ammal financial reports for tiie relevant year.



EXHoar j-i

Governmental Activities
Net Investment ia Capital Assets
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total Governmental Activities Net Position

Eusiness-Type Activities

Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted
Uarestricted

Total Business-Type Activities NetPosition

District-Wide
Net Investment in Capital Assets

Restricted
Unrestricted

Total District Net Position

WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION
NETrOSmoN BY COMPONENT

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(Unaudited)

(accrual basis q/occoun&ig)

2009

$ 4,636,074
36,034

(5,774,026).
_$ J^,10L?1,81

S 161,364

125,316
£ 286,680

$ 4.797,438
36,034

--C5,64S,710)_
£ (815,2381

2010

$ 4,692,837
1

(3,773,176)
S 919,662

$ 137,373

300,982
$ 438,355

$ 4,830,210
1

(3,472,194)
$ 1,358,017

2011
(Restated)

S 5,020,977
900,001

(4,124,667)..

$ 1,796,311

S 115,315

343,426
$ 458J41

$ 5,136,292
900,001

(3,781,241)
$ 2,235,052

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

2012
(Restated)

$ 10,479,420
3,543,636

(3,817,074)
£ 10,205,982

S 144,719

190,941
$ 335,660

S 10,624,139
3,543,636

_(3^526,133)_
$ 10,541,642

2013

$ 12,332,608
4,452,232

(2,778,148).
$ 14,006,692

$ 136,138

74,313
$ 210,451

£ 12,468,746
4,452,232

.(2,703,835).

S 14,217,143

2014
(Restated)

S 13,242,009
4^12,842

(23,633,552)_
$ (6,078.701']

3 L24,473

28.543
$ 153,016

$ 13,366,482
4,312,842

(23,S05,009)_
S 05,925,685^

2015

$ 16,176,888
4,409,297

(24,643,354)
$ (4,Q57,169)_

$ 110,091

22,394
S 132,485

$ 16,286,979
4,409,297

(24,620,960).
$ (3,924,684)

Z016

S 17,202.958
5,712,617

(25,626,679),
.$_(2,7U,l04)_

$ 96,696

96,832
$ 193,528

S 17,299,654
5,712,617

(25,529,8471
£ (2,517,576)

2017
(Restated)

$20,341,432
6,045,607

C28^05,105)_
$ (1,818,066)

I 109,259

181,057
S 290,316

$20,450.691
6.045,607

(28,024,048).
$ (1,527,7501

2018

$ 22,614,140
7,879,125

(28,363,547).
$ 2,129,718

$ 94,376

210,122
S 304,498

3 22,708,516
7,879,125

(28,153,4251.
£ 2,434,216

Note I-Net Position at Juiie 30,2011 is restated to reflect the iroplemmtation of GA5B Statement No. 63/Tinancial Reporting of Defened Outflows of Res

and GASB Statement No. 65, "Items Previously Reported m Assets and Liabilities".

Note 2 - Net Position at June 30, 2014 is restated to reflect the implementation of GASB Statement No. 68, "Accountiag and Financial Reporting for Pensions".

Source: District's financial statemeats



WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION
CHANCES IN NET POSmON

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(Unaudited)

(aca-ual basis ofaccwntmg)

EXHIBIT J-2

Expenses

Govermneatal Activities

Instruction

Regular

Special Education
Vocational - Tuition

Other Instruction

School Sponsored Activities And Athletics

Support Services:

TuitioK
Student and fastruction Related Services

General Admmistcalioa
School Adminisbation
Plant Operations and Maintenance
Student Transportation
Business/Cential and Ofher Support Services

Charter Schools

Interest On Long-Tenn Debt

Total Governmental Activities Expenses

Busitiess-Type Activities:

Food Service

After School Prep Enterprise Fund
Total Busmess-Type Activities Expense

Total District Expenses

2009 2010 2011
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

24,916,852
9,974,490

567.7GO
962,885

1,354,983

S 25,585,769
10,707,746

461,999
1.089,638
1,501,331

S 24.533.774

10,187.341
559,918

1,045.098
1,257,907

S 23,679,968
10,601.160

527,268
941,861

1,203,233

$ 26.404.404

11,222,939
647.315

1,196,910
1,300,140

$ 26,S86,83S

11,694,226
654,740

1,141,619
1,279.499

S 31,427,530
13,806,763

600,106
1.393,728

1,601,878 i

$ 33,698,651
15.035.647

590,722
1,609,390
1,788,657

$ 37,630.745
17,072,291

593,542
1,651,336

2,036,227

£ 39,377.966
18,001,939

631,973
1,804,832

2,157,394

7.677.886
1,759,045
3,406,781

7.198,339
4.589,563

1.826.970

1,462,363

65.697,917

1,736,234

1,736,234

S 67.434,151

7.089,360

1.626,202

3,735.812

7,241,122
4.814,104

1,720,850

22,291
1.588,257

67JS4,481

1.624.853

1,624,853
$ 68.809,334

7,461,253
1,898,407
4,218.653

6,958,237
4,572,641
1,735,668

24,208
1,485,207

65,938,312

1.662.029
8,128

1.670,157

$ 67,608,469

7,976,619
2.407.85S

3.911,563
6,812,914
4.357,476
2>068,36fi

35,105
1.390,293

65.913,684

1.643,042
4.923

1,647,965
£ 67,561,649

8.303,915
2,326,711
3,725,116
6.380,777
5,074,791
1.485,789

1.188,740

69,257,547

1,554.034
3,525

1,557,559
S 70,815,106

S,S09,4G9
2,045.764
3,913,365
7,207,497
4,999,220
' 1,620.047

1,075.778

71,328,062

I.4B3.915
8,636

1,492,551

$ 72,820,613

9.205,306
2,368,038

4.530,340

7,079,295
4.904,733

1.642.036

913,993
79,473,746

1,469,775
14,002

I.4S3.777

$ 80,957,523

9,982,279
2,199,742
4,729,551

7,452.065
5.036,208
1.582,559

866,935
84,572,406

1.484,453

303,791

1,788,244
S 86.360.650

11,073.493
2,374.618
5.172,594
8,476,832

5.644,337
1,428.365

413,056
93.567,486

1,489,665
383,074

1,872,739
$ 95,440,225

11,454,012
2,367,353

5.383.8IS
8,213,055

5,869,426
1.857,613

418,974
97,538,355

1.507,486

416,661
1,924,147

S 99,462,502

Program Revenues

Governmental Activities:

Charges For Sendces:
--In^&Action ^Tuition)- ' • ~ ••S

PupiLTiansportation
Rentals

Operating Grants And Contriibutions
Capital Grants And Coufributions

Total Governmental ActivitiKi Program Revenues

41,626 "

12,245
9,542,944

9.596,215

$ !- 95,^-W :

400
12,190 •

11.387,092

11,495,351

E • '133,908' '

1?.695--

7,705,274
462,141

8,321,018

S - 113,705-

12,153
10.183.257

618,546
10,927,661

$ 247,878

16,005
11,336.418

11,600,301

$ '-^,S55

• '20.300

10.619,298

10,987,953

S 411,303

25,552
17,563,405

766,032
18,766,292

$ 411,075

44.570
21,150,066

35,109
21,640,820

S 534,055

111,727
27,095,553

817,496
28,558,831

$ 620.035

109.346
32.776,510

I3S,688
33.644,579



WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION
CHANGES IN NET POSITION

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(Unaudited)

(accrual basis of accounting)

EXHIBIT J-2

Business-Type Activities:

Charges For Services

Food Service

After School Prep Programs
Operating Grants And Coiriribufions
Capital Grants And Contributions

Total Business Type Activities Program Revenues

Total District Program Revenues

Net (Expense)/Revenue
Govemmeaial Activities

Business-Type Activities
Total District-Wide Net Expense

General Revenues and Other Changes in Net Position

Govenunentel Activities:

Properly Taxes Levied For General Purposes, Net

Taxes Levied For Debt Service

State Sources

Investment Eannmgs

MisceSlaneous Income

Total Govemmental Activities

2009

S 1,472,706

190,468

1,663.174

S 11,259,389

$ C56,l01,702)
(73,0601

$ (56,174,762)

£ 52,222,685
2,291,353

1.073,795

2S.700

57,208
55,671,741

2010

$ 1,560.057

215,632

1,775,689

$ 13,271,040

$ (55,689,130)
150,836

S (55,538,294)_

$ 54,311,592
2,269.044

981.529

10,293
138,252

57,710.710

2011

5 1.476,526

213,031

1,689,557

£ 10,010,575

$ (57,617,294)
19,400

$ (57,597,S?4)

$ 55,717,349
2.452,623

480,933
12,160
71,500

58,734,565

Fiscal Year End;

2012

$ 1,286.694
10,775

228,166

1,525,635

$ 12,453,296

$ (54,986,023)
(122,330)

£ (55,108,353)

S 57,154,069
2,465,751

457,961
461

230,558
60.308,800

sd June 30,

2013

S 1.193.478
4,475

234,397

1,432,350

S 13,032,651

$ (57,657,246)
(125,209)

S (57,782.455)

$ 58,296.691
2,476.947

475,930
845

207,543
61,457,956

2014

$ 1,176.974
15,100

243,042

1,435,116

$ 12,423,069

£ (60,340,109)
(57,435)_

S (60,397,544)

£ 58.578.533
2,450.941

491,611

163,987
61,685,072

2015

£ 1,213,004
19.030

231.162

1,463.246

$ 20,229.538

$ (60,707,454)
(20,531),

£ (60,727,985)

£ 59,750.104
2,406,906

496,096

75,880

62,728.986

2016

$ 1,243,504
334.296
271.487

1,849.287

£ 23,4?OJ07

£(62.931.586)
61,043

S f62,870,543)

£ 60,945.106
2,471,421

497,916

363,208
64,277.651

2017

S 1.238,939
404,372
282,717

1,946,028

$ 30,504,859

$ (65,008,655)
73,289

S (64,935,366)

£ 62,797.547
2,319,371

460,086
7,995

265,021
65,850,020

2018

$ 1,226,757
448,023

.263,549

1,938,329

$ 35,582,908

S (63,893,776)
14,182

$ (63,879,594)

$ 64,053,498
2,324,431

461,720
41.107

960,804
67,841,560

Business-Type Activities;

Investment Earnings

Miscellaneaus

Total Business-Type Activities

Total District-Wide

Change in Net Position

Govenunental Activities
BTismess-Type Activities

-Total District

2.075 839 986 33

2,075
$ 55.673,816

(429,961)
.(70,?&i)^ •

S (500.9^:.

839
£ 57.711,549

2,021,580
151.675. .

S 2,173,255

986
$ 58,735,551 :

1,117,271
20,38(P.-;-.-i--?

$ 1,137,657-'_'- . :

33
E 60,308.833

5,322,777
•_^\ (t32;2?7}-'
E...' .5.200:480.'

S 61,457,956

3.800,710
. „ S3.V3Q9)
S-.-3,^501,

$ 61,685,072

1,344.963
(57,4351

$ 1,287,528

$ 62,728.986

2.021.53Z
(20,531)

$ 2,001,001

S 64,277,651 3

1.346,065
^.K^i'. t-^1,043 _ .

S 1,407,108 3

; 65,850,020

841,365
73:289

. 914,654

$ 67,841,560

3.947,784
14,182

$ 3,961,966

Source: District's financial statements



EXHIBIT 3-3
WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION

FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
LAST TEN NSCAL YEARS

(Unnudited)
(modijied accrual basis ofaccounling)

General Fund

Reserved
Ucreserved

Nonspendable

Restricted
Committed
Assigned
Unassigned

Total General Fund

All Other Governmental Funds
Reserved

Ucreserved

Restricted
Assigned

Total AU Other Governmental Funds

2009

$ 151,629
1,214,179

$ 1,365,808

$ 31,876
36.033

£ . 67,909

2010

$ 715,926
2,324,203

•$ 3,040,129

2011

$ 5,047
1,498,501

522,240
1,547,98$

965,959

S 4,539,733

$

2012

$ 69,903
3,743,636

1,735,441
742,020

$ 6,291,000

s ---

Fiscal Year Ended June30,

2013

$ 6,277,447

420,SS8
639,060

$ 7,337,395

$ 57,096

$ 57,096

2014

£ 5,581,124

481,259
.777,632

$ 6,840,015

$ 614,029

$ 614.029

2015

S 4,777,176

380,336
756,726

$ 5,914,238

$ 230,621

$ 230,621

2016

$ 4,349,605 ;
473,561
250,573
838,479

$ 5,912,218 ;

S 1,618,425 ;

$ 1,618,425 :

2017

? 5.688,945 :
554,785
H3,52l
8S 1,602

E 7,208,853 !

[ 388,575 ;

E 388,575 :

2018

E 8,377,795
412,131
465,916
854,228

E 10,110,070

E 196,330

E 196^30

Beginning -wifh Fiscal Year 2011, the District implemented GASB Statement No. 54, "Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions". The Statement provides more
clearly defined fund balance categories to make the nature and extent of the constraints placed on a govemmeufs fund balance more transparent. This Statement established fund
balance classifications that comprise a hierarchy based primarily on fee extent to which a government is bound to observe constraints imposed upon fhe use offhe resources reported
in governmental funds. Reclassification of prior year fimd balance amounts to comply wifh Statement No, 54 is not required.

Source: District's financial statements



WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDTJCATION
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERISMEJWAL FUNBS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(Unaudited)

(modified accrual basis of accounting)

EXHIBIT J-4

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

Revenues

Tax Levy
Tuition Charges
Interest Earnings

Transportation

Rental Fees

Miscellaneous

State Sources

Federal Sources

Total Revenue

Expenditures

Instmction

Regular lastmction
Special Education Instruction

Vocational Education - Tuition

Ofher lastroction

School Sponsored Activities and Athletics

Support Services;

Student and Instruction Related Services

General Admmistratioa
School Administration

Plant Operations and Maintenance

Student Transportation

Busiaess/Cenfral and Ofher Support Services

Charter Schools

Capital OuHay
Debt Service:

Principal
Interest and Otiher Charges
Bond Issuance Costs

Payments to Escrow Agent
Total Expeuditares

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures

2009

$ 54,514,03S
41,026
26,700

12,245
57,208

9,413,655
1,203,083

65,267,955

23,470,744
9,974,490

567,760
962,885

1,354,983

7,651,206

1,746,013
3,548,513

7,089,301
4,588,496
1,823,712

974,519

2,078.532

. 1,633,354

67,464,508

(2,196,553)

2010

$ 56,580,636
95,669
10,293

400
12,190

138,252
10,301,744
2,066,877

69,206,061

24,164,327
10,707,746

461,999
1,089,638
1,501,331

7,070,492

1,612,823
3.689,329

7,125,476
4,596,486
1,717,505

22,291
268,419

2,148,256
1,582,727

67,758,845

1,447,216

2011

$ 58,169,972
133,908
12,160

19,695
542,601

7,200,310
976,937

67,055,583

22,643,230
10,000,663

559,918
1,019,174
1,231,551

7,259,672

1,867,390
4,149,223

6,755,201
4,478,553
1,700,434

24,208
146,712

2,231,750
1,488,300

65,555,979

1,499,604

2012

$ 59,619,820
113,705

461

12,153
236,891

9,387,851
1,865,580

71,236,461

24,046,276
10,735,197

527,268
958,176

1,220,598

7,960,582
1,396,685
3,976,702

6,871,107
4,180,808
2,091,182

35,105
1,776,062

2,314,307
1,395,139

69,485,194

1,751,267

2013

$ 60,773,638
247,878

845

16,005
236,497

10,547^80
1,236,114

73,058,257_

26,636,286
11,314,962

647,315
1,209,783
1,311,222

8.220,607

1,190,212
3,764,603

6,408,965
4,871,035
1,498,608

1,299,310

2.425,617
1,241,559

72.040,084

1,018,173

2014

$ 61,029,474
348,355

20,300
164.451

9,658,196
1,452,249

72,673,025

26,785,953
11,689,276

654,740
1,140,986
1,278,933

8,666,001
1,041,049
3,911,335

7,191,146
4,788,364
1,619,340

913,464

2,289,989
1,083,524

73,054,100

(38I,075)_

2015

$ 62,157,010
411,303

25,552
95,127

11,437,055
1,294,798

75,420.845

27,611,387
12,393,841

600,106
1^15,187
1,430.623

8,780.042

1,229,571
4,158,822

6,985 J 88
4,616,572
1,619,747

2,894,328

2,391,273
1,008,707

188,580
387,316

77,511,290

(2,090,445)

2016

$ 63,416,527
411,075

44,570
386,498

11,781,724
1,320,511

77:360,905,

28,330,042
12,971,052

590,722
1,341,752

1,535,470

9,224,273
1.010,506
4,193,626

7,212,942
4,647,740

. 1,520,373

310,619

2,730,213
692,791

76,312,121

1,048,784

2017

$65,116,918
534,055

7,995

111,727
275,944

13,704,580
1,270,302

81,021,521_

29,244,160
13,786,105

593,542
1,266,809
1,621,365

9,390,598
1,090,756
4,208,259
7,634,816
4,914,773
1,351,770

2,531,137

2,494,964
825,682

80,954,736

66,785

2018

$ 66,377,929
620,035
41,107

109,346
992,999

14,474,825
1,335,270

83,951,511

29,999,268
14,233,956

631,973
1,360,592
1,686,985

9,415.559
1,074,753
4,250,464
7,249,392
5,008,659
1,597,477

1,700,822

2,578,656
753,983

81,542,539_

2,408.972



EXHIBIT J-4
WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEAKS

(Unaudited)
(modtfied accrual basis of accounting)

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Capital Leases (Non-Budgeted)
Proceeds From Refunding

Payments To Escrow Agent

Original Issue Premiums

Transfers In

Transfers Out

Total Other Finaacmg Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balances

Debt Service as a Percentage of

Noncapital Expenditures

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

$ 487,752 $ 159,196 $ 440,628
3,790,000

(3,704,682)

$ 205,364
17,515,000

(19,335,000)
2,395,896

1,633
(1,633)

487,752

$ (1,708,801)

31,876
(31,876).
159,196

$ 1,606,412 $ 1,499,604

$ 834,347
(834,347)

$ 1,751,267 ;

85,318

£ 1,103,491 ;

592,789
0592,789)
440,628

$ • 59,553

826,800
(826,800)
781,260

$ (1,309,185)

S 337,000

1,434,780
-.(1,434>780)_

337,000

$ 300,000

300,000

1,385,784 $ 66,785 $ 2,708,972

5.58% 5.53% 5.69% 5.48% 5.18% 4.68% 4.56% 4.50% 4.23% 4.17%

* Noncapital expenditures are total expenditures less capital outlay.

Source: District's financial statements



EXHIBIT J-5

WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION
GENERAL FUND OTHER LOCAL KEVENUE BY SOURCE

LAST TEN YEARS
(Unaudited)

M
en

Fiscal Year
Ended

June 30,

2009

2010

2011

2012

2013

2014

2015

2016

2017

2018

Tuition

$ 41,026

95,669

133,908

113,705

247,878

348,355

411,303

411,075

534,055

620,035

Interest Prior Year
on Demand Payables

Reimbursements Investments Response Cancelled Tra_nsportation

$ 25,020

10,293

12,160

461

845

77>647

7,995 $ 23,246 $ 74,708

41,107 16,164 759,106

400

Grant Proceeds
Insurance for Prior Year

153,536

114,212

llaneous E-Rate

37,578

127,943

71,500

160,924

54,007

163,987

75,880

61,004 $49,790

52,855

185,534

Total

$ 115,869

246,495

699,404

356,877

472,271

532,642

512,735

818,853

918,798

1,731,292

Source: District's faiancial statements



EXHIBIT 3-6
WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION

ASSESSED VALUE AND ACTUAL VALUE OF TAXABLE PROPERTY
LAST TEN YEARS

(Unaudited)

Total

Estimated Actual Direct

Calendar
Year

2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018

Vacant Land

S 89.393,400
85,801,600

80,704,900
71.263,300

68.210,500
67,764^00
65J85.400
85,540,500

86,395,800
87,939,400

Residential

$2,938,583.000
2,876,681.100

2,866,808,600
2,845,399,400

2,830,109,100
2,819,263,000

2,817,681.600
4,505,855.990

4.498,740,990
4,505.584.900

Farm Reg.

$ 32.679.300
32.461,900
30:777.100
32.001.000

30.958,400
31,125,700

32.138,900
46.534.000

44,629,300
41^43,000

Qfann

$ 956,400

854,600
859,900
806,500
765,200
764.900
760,300

Cotmnereial

$ 662,787,500
649,955,000
627,511,000
618.225,600
611,628,500
609,691,300
607,903.100

1,014,262,509
1,014.418.800

1,056,984,200

Indusfaial

S 135,949,000
136,093.000
134,I60,2DD
144,209,000
141,333,200
141,331,000
139.006.100
240,?69,300
240,639,200
256,938,000

Apartment

$ 23.177.800
23,177,800
22,877,800
22,877,000
22,142,800
21,839,600
24,981,100
46,891.700
46.891.700
46,891,700

Total Assessed

Value

$ 3.883,526,400
3,804.170,400

3,762,839,600
3,733,975,300
3,705.237,100

3,691,874,800
3,687.702,700
5,940.819,190
5.932,480,690
5,996.441,500

Public
Utilities

$ 5,583.269
5,846,022

6,012,493
5,942,434
5.864,768

5,325,309
5.150,110
7,953,969
8,063.235

7,824.535

Net Valuation

Taxable

33,889,109.669
3,810,016,422

3,768,852,093
3.739,919,334

3,711,101,868

3,697^00,108
3,692,852,810
5,948,773,159
5.940.543.925
6,004,266,035

(County
Equalized) Value

$ 6,677,126,189
6.247.611,102

6,199.670,684

6,107.506,199
5,684.897,675

5,614,372.406

5,602,708,447
5,924,070,513
6,U8,451,633
6,156.959,538

Tax Rate"

£ 1.428
1.506

1.564

1.610

1.641

1.666
1.700
l.OSO
1.107
LI23

Source: County Abstract of Ratables

a Taxrates are per 3100

N/A - Not Available



EXHIEFT j-7

WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION
DrRECT AND OVERLAPPING PROPERTY TAX RATES

LAST TEN YEARS
(Unaudited)

(rate per $100 of assessed value)

Calendar
Year

2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018

1oM

$ 2.522 ;

2.664

2.752

2.819

2.793

2.825

2.888

1.813

1.847

1.884

School

District

$ 1.428
1.506

1.564

1.610

1.641

1.666

1.700

1.080
1.107

1.123

Mynicinal

$ 0.5S4
0,632
0.655

0.672

0.691
0,708

0.722

0.448

0.453

0.459

Count

$ 0.450 $
0.466

0.455

0.470

0.411

0.403

0.416

0.253

0.254

0.256

Otber

0.060

0.060

0.078

0.067

0.050

0.048

0.050

0.032

0.033

0.046

Source: Township Finance Of&ce

Note- The Township had a revaluation that took effect in 2016
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Source: Mimicipal Tax Assessor

WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION
PRINCIPAL PROPERTY TAXPAYERS,

CCBBENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO
(Unaudited)

EXHIBIT 3-S

2018 2009

Taxpayer

Mack Cali Corp. Mack Call Realty Corp.

Honzoa Blue Cross Blue Shield
State St Bank C/o XFNG Jotei Leshak
Wall Herald
Androse Assoc. ofAUaire, I.LC

Sea Girt IP C/o Sher Partners
Whafs Your Raeqyet, Bic.

Levkota Wall Plaza Assoc.
1330 Campus Parkway, LLC
SpriugLake Gardens, Inc.

Taxable
Assessed

Value

S 43,300,200

39,962,900
36,142,900
33,880,200
26,069,800
25,258,900
25,199.000
19.750,000
16,655,700
15,243,700

$ 281,463.300

% of Total
District Net

Assessed Value

0.722%

0.666%
0.603%
0.565%
0.435%
0.421%
0.420%
0.329%
0.278%
0.254%
4.694%

Taxpayer

Wall Herald Corporation
CoGamercial Realty & Resources Coip.
Horizon Blue Cross Blue Shield '
Levicom Wall Plaza
State St Bank C/0 NING
What's Your Racquet, Inc.

Oakshire Group
TKG Management
Xadmdual
Jersey N1 Industriai, LLC

Taxable
Assessed

Value

$ 37,123,500
29,540,200
19,621,700
18,304,400
17,600,000
15,923,400
14,976,600
14,650,700
13,923,300
13,900,000

$ 195,563,800

% of Total
District Net

Assessed Value

0.956%
0.761%
0.505%
0.471%
0.453%
0.410%
0.386%
0.377%
0.359%
0.358%

5.036%



EXHIBIT J-9
WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION

PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

(Unaudited)

Fiscal

Year

Ended
June 30,

2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018

Taxes Levied

for the Fiscal
Year

$ 54,514,038
56,580,636
58,169,972
59,619,820
60,773,638
61,029,474
62,157,010
63,416,527
65,116,918
66,377,929

Collected within the Fiscal Year

offhe Levy

Amount

$ 54,514,038
56,580,636
55,822,475
59,619,820
58,909,170
61,029,474
62,157,010
63,416,527
65,116,918
66,377,929

Percentage

of Levy

100.00%
100.00%
95.96%

100.00%
96.93%

100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%

Collections in

Subsequent

Years

$ 2,347,497

1,864,468

Source: District financial records
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EXHIBIT J-10
WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION
RATIOS OF OUTSTANDING DEBT BY TYPE

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(Uaaudited)

Governmental Activities

Fiscal
.Year

Ended

June 30,

2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018

General Obligation
Bonds

$ 36,125,000
34,410,000
32,610,000
30,715,000
28,825,000
26,660,000
22,575,000
19,985,000
17,740,000
15,420,000

Capital
Leases/Lease

Purchase

Agreements

$ 1,593,982
1,319,922

888,172
468,865

33,248
348,887
427,978
624,765
374,801
416,145

Total District

$ 37,718,982
35,729,922
33,498,172
31,183,865
28,858,248
27,008,887
23,002,978
20,609,765
18,114,801
15,836,145

Populatioti

26,142
26,167
26,111
26,081
26,070
26,006
26,014
26,038
25,981
25,981 Est.

Per Capita

$ 1,443
1,365
1,283
1,196
1,107
1,039

884
792
697
610

Source: District records
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EXHIBIT J-ll

WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION
RATIOS OF NET GENERAL BONDED DEBT OUTSTANDING

LAST TEN FISCAL YEASS
(Unaudited)

General Bonded Debt Outstanding

Fiscal

Year

Ended
June 30,

2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014.

2015
2016
2017
2018

General
Obligation Bonds

$ 36,125,000
34,410,000
32,610,000
30,715>000
28,825,000
26,660,000
22,575,000
19,985,000
17,740,000
15,420,000

Deductions

Net General
Bonded Debt
Outstanding

$ 36,125,000
34,410,000
32,610,000
30,715,000
28,825,000
26,660,000
22,575,0.00

19,985,000
17,740,000
15,420,000

Percentage of
Actual Taxable

Value" of

Property

0.54%

0.55%

0.53%

0.50%

0.51%

0.47%
0.40%

0.34%

0.29%

0.25%

Per Capita

$ 1,382
1,315
1,249
1,178
1,106
1,025

868
768
683
594

Source: District records

Notes:
a See Exhibit J-6 for property tax data,

b See Exhibit J-14 for population data.
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EXHIBIT J-12
WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION

DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVTTIES DEBT
AS OF DECEMBER 31,2017

(Unaudifed)

Net Debt

Mimicipal Debt: (1)
Wall Township Board of Education (as of June 30, 2018) $ 15,420,000
Township of Wall 33,390,628

48,810,628

Overiappmg Debt Apportioned to die Municipality:
Monmouth County:

County ofMomnouA(A) 24,610,645

24,610,645

Total Direct and Overlapping Debt $ 73,421,273

Source:

(1) Township's 2017 Annual Debt Statement

(A) The debt for this entity was apportioned to the Township by dividing the municipality's 2017
equalized value by the total 2017 equalized value for Monmouth County.
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WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION
LEGAL DEBT MAKGIN INFOKMATION

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(Unaudited)

EX3EfflBrrj-13

Legal Debt Margin Calculation for Fiscal Year 2018

Equalized Valuation Basis

2017
2016
2015

Average Equalized Valuation Of Taxable Property

Debt Limit (4 % of Average Bciualization Value)
Total Net Debt Applicable to Limit

Legal Debt Margin

$ 6,120,353,399
5,916,116,544

5,708,641,355
S 17,745,146,298

$ 5,915,048,766

236,601.931
15,420,000

$ 221,181,951

Debt Limit

TotalNel Debt Applicable To Limit

Legal Debt Margin
h->

co
03 TotalNet Debt Applicable to the Umit

as a Percentage of Debt Limit

2009

12.12%

2010

$ 267,480,885

29,965,000

2011

£260,484,556

28,405,000

2012

£254,181,622 ;

26,760,000

2013

I - $

25,035,000

2014

230,43B,3&7 ;

23,230,000

2015

H 223,407,044 3

19>SIO,OOQ,

2016

; 223,373,044

19,985,000_

2017

S 229,784,067

17,740,000

201 S

$ 236.601,951

15,420,000

$ 259,449,192

31,450,000

$ 227.999.192 $ 237,515,883 $232,079,556 $227,421,622 S (25,035,000). .$ 207,208,397 $ 203,897,044 $ 203,388,044._ $ 212,044,067 _ £ _,221,181,951_

11.20% 10.90% 10.53% ifDTViW 10.08% 8.73% 8.95% 7.72% 6.52%

Source: Annual Debt Statements



EXHIBIT J-14
WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION

DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

(Unaudited)

Year

2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018

Source: New Jersey State Department of Education

(E) - Estimated

Population

26,142
26,167
26,111
26,081
26,070
26,006
26,014
26,038
25,981
25,981 (E)

County Per

Capita Personal

Income

$ 57,666
57,740
60,789
63,025
63,707
66,682
69,839
71,237
71,237 (S)
71,237 (E)

Unemployment
Rate

8.00%

8.00%

8.10%
8.00%

8.40%

7.00%
5.37%

4.90%

4.30%

3.90%
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WALL TOWNSHIP BOAIU) OF EDUCATION
PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS,

CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO
(Unaudited)

EXHIBIT J-15

2018

Employer

Percentage of

Total Municipal
Employees Employment

Wall Township Board of Education

NJNatuialGasCo.

Horizon/Blue Shield
Wedgewood

Air Cruisers

Cablevision ofMonmoufh

Township of Wall
Adam Spence Company

NOT AVAILABLE

2009

Percentage of

Total Municipal
Employees Employment

NOT AVAILABLE

0.00% 0.00%

N/A-Not Available

Source: Township of Wall
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EXHIBIT J-16
WALL TOWNSHIP BOASD Otr EDUCATION

FULL-TIME EQUIVALENT DISTRICT EMPLOYEES BY PUNCTION/PROGRAM
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

(Ungudited)

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
Funcfton/ProOTam

Instruction

Regular
Special Education
Other Special Education
Other Instruction

Support Services;
Student and Instruction Related Services

General Administration

School Admmistrative Sennces

Other Administrative Services
Central Services

AdminisSrative Information Teclmology
Plant Operations And Maintenance

Pupil Transportation

Total

Source: District Personnel Records

453

128
7

11
19
9
6

60
78

771

453

75
7

11
19
9
6

113
78

77 L

394
1

76
6

10
9
9
5

87
87

684

2S8
73
52

158

87
4

31

9
5

S7
66

829

256.5
90.0

53.0

158.0

90.0

4.0

31.0

8.0

6.0

86.5

66.9

850

260.0

145,5

157.0

91.5

4.0

30.0

8.0

5.0

88.0

66.0

855.0

275.0

161.0

155.0

104.5
6.0

30.0

7,0

6.0

99.0

67.6

?1U

274,1
156.3

164.0

98.8

6.0

30.0

7.0

6.0

103.9
66.1

912.2

270.5

160.8

194.0

121.6
6.0

31.0

7.0

6.0

98.6
63.5

959.0

267.5
167.9

199.0

110.0
6,0

31.6

7.0

6.0

100.3

62.8

938.1
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EXKIBFT j-i7
WALL TOWNSmP BOAHD OF EDUCATION

OPERATfflG STATISTICS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

(Unnudited)

PupiI/Teachcr Ratio

Fiscal Year Enrollment

2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018

Sources:

Note:

4,313.0

4,265.5
4,112.0

3,956.0

3,820,5

3,715.5

3,648.5

3.606.0

3.460.0

3.410.0

District Ricords

Operating

Expenditures

£ 62,778,103
63,761,976

(51,689,217

67^24,895
S7,310,213
68,757,123

70,641.086

72,578,498
75>l02,&53

76,509,078

Cost Per

Pupil"

$ U.556
14.948

15.002

17,018

17.618
18,508

] 9,362

20,127
21.706

22,437

a Enrollment based on annual October district count

Percentage

Change

-1.83%

2.70%

0.36%

13.44%

3.52%

5.05%

4.61%
3.95%

7.84%

3.37%

Teaching

Staff

362,00

379.00

365.00

3S2.00

384.59

402,29
400.00
400.00

418.00

419.00

Elementary

1:10.4

1:11.8

1:11.2

1:11.2
1:09.3

1;08:4
1:08:9
1:08;9
1:08:7
1;08;4

Middle School

1:11.5

1:12
1:11.4

1:12.5

1:09,6

1:09:3
!:09:0
1:03:8
1:OS;1
1:07:7

Senior High
School

I;1L6
1:12.2

1:11.8

1:12.6
1:11.1

1:09:3
1:08:8
1:09:3
1;08.0

1:08.0

Average Daily

EnroIlmentlADE)

4,297.9
4;Z43.4

4,066.5

3,936.9

3,849.0

3,629.0

3,572.0

3,5BS.l

3,454.2
3.393.5

Average Daily

Attendance

(ADA)

4,111.3

4,066.2

3,872.5

3,767.1

3,676.0

3.508.0

3.454.0

3,475.0

3,435.7

3.326.2

% Change in

Average Daily

Enrollment

0.31%

-1.27%
-4.17%
-3.19%

-2.23%
-5.72%

-1.57%

0.45%
"3.73%

-1.61%

Student Attendance

Percentage

95.66%
95.82%

55.23%

95.69%

95.51%

96.67%

96.70%
96.85%

99.46%

97.87%

b Operating expenditures equal total expenditures less debt service and capital outlay.
a Cost pcsr pupil represents operating expenditures divided by enrollment



WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION
SCHOOL BUILDING 1DWOKMATION

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(Unaudited)

EXHDUTJ-18

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
District Building
Elemenfi

AUenwood
Square Feet

Capacity (students)
Enrollment

Central

Square Feet
Capacity (students)
Enrollment

Old Mill
Square Feet

Capacity (students)
Emolknent

West Belmar
Square Feet
Capacity (students)
Enrollment

Middle SchQol
Intermediate

Square Feet
Capacity (students)
Bnrollment

Hieh5chool

Square Feet

Capacity (students)
Enrollment'

Square Feet

Capacity (students)
EnroUment

49,920
521
466

56,110
596
618

56,440
560
507

39.360
276
231

49,920
521
436

56,110
596
608

56,440
560
490

39,360
276
216

49,920
521
409

56,110
596
558

56,440
560
485

39.360
276
214

49.920
521
401

56,110
596
533

56.440

560
456

39,360
276
232

49,920
521
387

56,110
596
495

56,440
560
434

39,360
276
221

49,920

521
359

56,110
596
506

56,440
560
434

39,360
276
212

49,920
521
348

56,110
596
507

56,440
560
420

39,360
276
199

49,920
521
348

56,110
596
504

56.440

560
402

39.360
276
203

49,920
521
380

56,110
596
522

.56.440
560
404

39.360
276
186

49,920
521
391

56,110
596
526

56,440
560
381

39,360
276
181

126,000
1,009
1,005

186,340

1,394
r^'ss''

5,970

60
70

126,000
1,009

1,055

186,340
1,394
1,371

5.970
60
70

126,000
1,009
1,045

186.340

1,394
.1,3 IS

5,970

60
47

126,000
1,009
1,038

186:340
1,394

1,224

5,970
60
48

126,000
1,009

990

186.340

1,394
. 1:220

5,970

60
50

126,000
1,009

940

186.340

1,394
U97

5,970

69
36

126,000
1,009

921

186,340
1:394

• 1,184

5,970
60
50

126.000

1,009
887

186,340
1,394
1,190

5,970

60
55

126,000

1,009
811

186,340
1,394

1,100.

5.970

60
57

126,000
1,009

787

186,340
1,394

1,094

5,970
60
50



EXHBHT J-18
WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION

SCHOOL BUILOmG DWOBMATION
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

CUnaudited)

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

03
®

Other

Superintendent s Building

Square Feet-2,880

Business Office

Square Feet-5,760
Technology Building

Square Feat-1,069
Tech. Storage Barn

Square Fest- 1.296
Maintenance Building

Square Feet-4,756

Red Storage Barn
Square Feet-960

Special Service Bldg. 1
Square Feet-2,000

Special Service BIdg. 2

Square Feet-1,104
District Storage Bldg.

Square Feet-5,000

Garage Apt
Square Feet - 2,030

18th Ave. Field

Square feet-1,800

Number of Schools at June 30, 2018

Elementary = 4
Middle ScKoGl" I - '

Senior High School = 1
Other =sl

2017 2018

Source: District Records



WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION
GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF REQUIRED MAINTENANCE FOR SCHOOL FACIUTIES
LAST TEN YEARS

(Unaudited)

EXHIBIT J-19

School Facilities
Wall High School
AUenwood School
Central Elementary
Watt Intermediate
Old Mill
Primary
West Belmar

Total School Facilities

Proiect#fs)

050
060
070
075
077
078
080

2009

161,647
57,719
84,721

150,904
39,811
20,717
34,029

201fl

118,926
52,364
29,529

125,729
38,841

8,981
33,555

mi

174,714
38,650
45,986
71,190
54,720
22,545
34,623

2012

665,666
42,581
62,692

114,269
39,695
20,040
31,764

2013

222,767
16,597
27,239
28,520
25,210

1,374
20,897

2014

147,150
60,219
59,643
82,433
54,979
28,113
59,345

201S

77,780
35,542
48,246
89,364
47,601
28,745
31,011

2016

102,842
35,969
49,712
45,122
39,956
16,272
31,551

2017

136,799
29,623
51,100

108,071
187,116

6,157
31,747

2018

87^65
39,077
54,929

196,273
38,219
2,166

11,395

$ 549,548 $ 407,925 $ 442,428 $ 976,707 $ 342,604 $ 491,882 $ 358,289 $ 321,424 $ 550,613 $ 429,324

Source: District Records



WALL TOVmSfflP BOAKD OF EDUCATION
INSURANCE SCHEBULE

JUNE 30,2018
(Unaudifed)

EXHIBIT J-20

Coverage Deductible

School Package Policy

School Excess Liability Joint Insurance Fund

Property Blanket Bldg. & Contents
Program Blanket Limit

Comprehensive General Liability

Comprehensive Crime Coverage

Money & Securities

Workers Compensation

Computers & Schedule Equipment
School Excess Liability Joint Insurance Fund

Data Processing Equipment

Valuable Papers

Miscellaneous Eq'uipmen.t

Business Income

Extra Expense

Boiler & Machiaery - School Excess Joint Insurance Fuad

Property Damage

Umbrella Excess Liability

School Excess - Umbrella Policy

Liability Fund - Fireman's Fund

School Board Legal Liability - Ace USA

, Directors & Of&cers Policy

Public Official Bond" Pablo D. Canela

Public Official Bond - Brian J. Smyth

Automobile & Trucks

School Excess Liability Joint Insurance Fund

Source: District records

109,837,638
500,000,000

5,000,000

500,000
2,500,000
5,000,000

5,000

100,000
None

1,000
1,000
N/L

Within Policy
Blanket Limit
Wifhin Policy
Blanket Limit
Within Policy
Blanket Limit

100,000,000
Blanket Limit

50,000,000

100,000,000
Blanket Limit

5,000,000
50,000,000

5,000,000

350,000

350,000

5,000,000

5,000

5,000

5,000

5,000

5,000

5,000

None

None

10,000

None

None

Comp./Coll

1,000/1,000
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CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
REGISTERED MUNICIPAL ACCOUNTANTS

EXfflBFTK-l

DIETERP. LERCH, CFA, RMA, PSA

GARY J. VINCT, CPA. RMA, PSA

GARY W. HIGGINS, CPA, RMA, PSA

3ERRREY C. BUSS, CPA.BMA. PSA

PAUL J. LERCH, CPA. EMA, PSA

DONNAL. TAPHET. CFA, PSA

TtHJUS 5. CONSONI. CPA, PSA

ANDSBW D. PABENTE, CPA, EMA, PSA

EUZABETHA. SfflCK, CPA, RMA. PSA

&OBERT W. HAAQ, CPA, PSA

DEBORAH K. LERCH, CPA, PSA

RALPH M. PICONE, OPA, SMA, PSA

&EBRAGOUE.CPA

CMDY JANACEK, CPA, RMA

MARKSACO,CPA

SHERYL M. LEIDIG, CPA, PSA

ROBERT LERCH.CEA

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS

BASED ON ANAUDTT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

INDEPENDENT AlTPrTOR'S REPORT

Honorable President and Members
offhe Board of Education.
Wall Township Board of Education
Wall-Township, New Jersey

We have audited^ in accordance with the auditmg standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the
standards applicable to fmancial audits contamed in Government Auditma Standards issued by the Comptroller General
of the United States and audit requirements prescribed by the Office of School Finance, Department of Education, State
of New Jersey, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-fype activities, each major fund, and
the aggregate remaining fund information of the Wall Township Board of Education as of and for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2018 and the related notes to the fmancial statements, which collectively comprise fhe Wall Township Board of
Education's basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated January 18,2019,

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In plannmg and performing our audit of the fmancial statements, we considered the Wall Township Board of Education's
internal control over fmaacial reporting (internal control) to determine fhe audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the fmancial statements but not for the pm'pose of expressing
an opinion on Ae effectiveness of the Wall Township Board of Education's internal control. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Wall Township Board of Education's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of perfonnmg fheir assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements

on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, ill internal control, such that
there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or
detected and corrected on a timely basis. A sienificant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combmation of deficiencies, in
internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged

witli governance.

17-17 ROUTE 208 • FAIR LAWN, NJ 07410 • TELEPHONE GOD 791-7100 • FACSIMILE (201) 791-3035
WWW.LVHCPA.COM
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Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of ids section and was
not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies.
Given these luuitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be
material weaknesses. However, material wealcaesses may exist fhat have not been identified.

Compliance and Other ^Matters

As part of obtammg reasonable assurance about whether the Wall Township Board of Education's financial statements
are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, aon.compliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination
offmancial statement amounts. However, providing an opmion on compUance with those provisions was not an objective
of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliaace or other matters feat are required to be reported under Government Auditmg Standards and audit
requirements as prescribed by the Office of School Finance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey.

However, we noted certain matters that are not required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards that we
reported to management of the Wall Township Board of Education in a separate report entitled, "Auditor's Management
Report on Administrative Findings - Financial, Compliance and Perfonnance" dated January 18,2019.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results
of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Wall Township Board of Education's internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed m accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the Wall Township Board of Education's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this
communication is not suitable for any otiier purpose.

^il<q^m,LLP
LERCH, VINCI & fflGGINS, LLP
Certified Public Accountants

)lic School Accountants

y^ima L. Japhet
. Public School Accountant

PSA Number CS002314
Fair Lawn, New Jersey
January 18,2019
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LERCH,VINCI & HIGGINS.LLP
CERTmED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS EXHEBFT K-2
REGISTERED MUNICIPAL ACCOUNTANTS

DSTER P. LE&CH, CPA, RMA, PSA EUXABBTHA, SHICK. CFA, RMA, PSA

GARYJ,VINCr,CPA,KMA,P5A - - ROBERT W.HAAG,CE1A,PSA

GARYW, fflOOiNS, CPA, SMA, PSA . D^OEAH K. LEROH. CPA, PSA

3EEE?REYC.BUSS,CPA,EMA,PSA RALPHM.HCONE,CEA,~RMA.PSA

PAULJ.LERCH.CPA,"RMA,PSA DEBRAGOLI£,CPA

DDNNAL. JAPEiET, CTA, PSA CINDY TANACEK. CPA.EMA

JUUUSB.CONSONI,CPA,r'SA MAEKSACO,CPA

ANDBEW D. PAEENTE. CFA, EMA, PSA SHERYL M. LEIDIG, CEA., PSA

ROBERT LER.CH.CPA

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL AND STATE PROGRAM;
REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE; AND REPORT

ON THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDrTORES OF FEDERAL AWARDS REQUIRED BY THE
U.S. TXNIFORM GUIDANCE AND SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE AS

REQUIRED BY NEW JERSEY 0MB CIRCULAR 15-08

INDEPENDENT AUMTOR?S REPORT

Honorable President and Members
offhe Board of Education

Wall Township Board of Education
Wall Township, New Jersey

Report ou Compliance for Each Major Federal and State Program

We have audited the Wall Township Board of Education's compliance witii the types of compliance requirements
described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget COMB1) Compliance Supplement and the New Jersey 0MB
Circular 15-08 State Aid/Grant Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of the Wall
TcmnsMp Board of Education's major federal and state programs for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018. The Wall
Township Board of Education's major federal and state programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results
section of the accompanymg scliedule of findings and questioned costs.

Managements Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with fee requirements of federal and state statutes, regulations, and the terms
and conditions of its federal awards and state financial assistance applicable to its federal and state programs.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express aa opinion on compliance for each of the Wall Township Board of Education's major
federal and state programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted
oui audit of compliance m accordance with auditmg standards generally accepted in the United States of America; fhe
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditmg Standards, issued by tiie Comptroller General
offbe United States; audit requirements as prescribed by fhe Office of School Finance, Department of Education, State of
New Jersey; Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Admmistrative Requirements. Cost Principles,
and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance^ and New Jersey 0MB Circular 15-08, Sinele Audit
Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants. State Grants and State Aid. Those standards, U.S. Uniform Guidance and New
Jersey Circular require fhat we plaa and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompUance
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major
federal or state program occitrred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Wall Township Board
of Education's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in

17-17 ROUTB 208 • FAIR LAWN. NJ 07410 • TELEPHONE C20D 791-7100 • PACSIMDJE (201) 791-3035
WWW1VHCPA.COM
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We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal and state
program. However, our audit does not provide a legal detemiination of the Wall Township Board of Education's
compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal and State Program

In our opmion, the Wall Township Board of Education complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above fhat could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal and state programs
for fhe fiscal year ended June 30,2018.

Other Matters

The results of our auditing procedures disclosed an instance of noncompliance, which is required to be reported m
accordance with the U.S. Uniform Guidance and. New Jersey 0MB Circular 15-08 which is described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 2018-001. Our opinion on each major federal and state
program is not modified witb respect to this matter.

The Wall Township Board of Education's response to the noncompliance frnding identified in our audit is described in
t1ie accompanying schedule .offmdings and questioned costs. The Wall Township Board of Education's response was
not subjected to the auditing procedures applied ia tfae audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express no opinion on
the response.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the Wall Township Board of Education is responsible for establishing and mamtaining effective internal
control over compliance with tiie types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our
audit of compliance, we considered the Wall Township Board ofEducationi>s internal control over compliance with the
types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal and state program to determine
the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance
for each major federal and state program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the
U.S. Unifona Guidance and New Jersey 0MB Ckcular 15-08, but not for the purpose of expressing an opuuon on the
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on fhe effectiveness offhe
Wall Township Board of Education's internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance does
not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing tiieir assigned jEunctions, to prevent, or detect
and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal or state program on a timely basis. A
material weakness m mteraal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, m internal control
over compliance, such that fhere is a reasonable possibility &at material noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal or state program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A sigaificant
deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal or state program that is less severe than a material
weakness m internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal coutrol over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in intemal control over compliance fhat we
consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the U.S. Uniform Guidance and New
Jersey 0MB Circular 15-08. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.
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Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by the U.S. Uniform Guidance and Schedule of
Expenditures of State Financial Assistance Required by New Jersey 0MB Circular 15-08

We have audited the fmancial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fmi.d, and
fhe aggregate remaining fund information of the Wall Township Board of Education, as of and for the fiscal year ended Jme
30, 2018 and the related notes to the fmancial statements, which collectively comprise the Board of Education's basic
financial statements. We issued our report fhereon dated January 18, 2019, which contamed untnodified opirdons on Aose
financial statements. Our audit was conducted for ttie purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements fhat
collectively comprise the basic financial statements. The accompanymg sch.ed.ule of expendibires of federal awards as
required by the U.S. Uniform Guidance and schedule of expenditures of state fmancial assistance as required by New Jersey
0MB Circular 15-08 are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic fmancial statements. The mformation has been. subjected to the
auditmg procedures applied m fhe audit of fhe fmancial statements and certam additional procedures, includmg comparing
and reconciling such information directly to fhe underlying accountmg and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted m the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards
and schedule of expenditires of state financial assistance are faurly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic
fmaacial statements as a whole.

\\

LERCH, VINCI & HtGGINS, LLP
Certified Public Accountants

liblic School Accountants

femaL. Japhet
Public School Accountant
PSANumberCS002314

Fair Lawn, New Jersey
January 18,2019



WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWABDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,1018

Fedcral/GrnnfoB'/Fass-riiruugli Grantor/
ProE'ram Title

U.S- Department ofEducafion

Passed-tlirougli State Department of Education
ScedaLSfii'egue.Euiid;

Federal
CFDA

Nu [tit!

Grant or State
Project Number

Grant
Pcrioii

Award
Amount

Balance
JuIvl.2Ql'

Casb
Adjustment-
Carry over

Adjushnent-
Carryuver

Dcferi-ed Revenge

BudIgelary
nditures

Balance, June 30,3018

NCLBTiUcI
ESEATiUd
NCLBTitlcIIA
ESEATitbJIA
MCLB Title DI
ESEA Tille III
NCLB Title m
ESEA Title IH -ImnugTant
ESHA Title JV

Temporaiy Emergency Impact Aid

roEAPartB-Bnsfc
IDBA Part B Basic
IDEA Part B Basic
BEA Part B, Preschool

IDEA fast B. Preschool

Special Education IDEA Quster

S4.010A
S4,OIOA
B4.367
34.3CT
B4.365
E4.3G5
B4J65
84.365
34.424

S4.398C

84.027
34.027
84.027
84.173

B4.173

S010A1G0030
SQ10A17D030
S367A160029
S3G7A170029
S365A 150030
S3G5A170030
S365A160B30
5365AI70030
S424AI70031

S?38C]8005

H027A160100
H027A150100
H027A170100
H173AI60I14
HJ73A170U4

NCLB5420-17
ESEA5420-18
NCLBS420-17
ESEA5420-IE
NCLB5420-16

ESEA5420-18
NCLB5420.I7
ESEA54ZO-18
ESEA5420-18

N/A

•IDEA542016
1DEA542015
1DBA342017
IDEA54ZOI6
IDEAi42017

7/1/16-G/30/17 ;
7/1/17-G/30/1B
7/1H6-6/30/17
7/VI7-6/30/1S
7/1/15-G/30/16
T/1/17-6QO/1S
7/1/16.GOO/17
7/1/17-6/30/18
7/1/I7-6/30/IB

7/1/17-GOO/18

7/I/I6-6/30/17
7/1/14-6/30/15
7/1/17.6/30/13
7/1/1G.G/30/17
7/1/17-6/30HB

E 309,511 :
314,499

35.06B
E0.44fi
15,775
11,595
17,043

1.351
10.000

13,875

E5G.509
874.910
836,m
49,957

49,656

E (61.750) S

(G,36S)

19B

(8,393)

(167,696)
10,361

[157,335)

61,750 S
158.E72

G,36S
75,446

17.575
a,oi9

2,951

167.6&6

772,120

20,405

960,221

4G,42G $

(4G,426)
9,128

(9,128)

(15,276)
15,276

73,611

(73,611)
13,921

(19,92.1)

(46,42S)
46.426 I
(9,128)
9.I2S

15,176
(15,276)

(73,611)

73,611
(19,921)
19,921

279,745

78.125

20,347

814
7,523

13,875

865.958

32,930

B98,SBB

Total Special Revenue Fund

Unearned Due to

Ss£""£ Ssaatss.

(202,053) S

(14,]2B)

(9,296)

(1.351)
(7,OW)

81,130

11.449

6^24

537
2,477

(13,875)

(133,379)

(49,i72)
(137,551)

10,361
44,541

(120,873)

{2.679)

(2,772)

(Si4)
(4,372)

(13,875)

(S3.838)

(435303)

U5. Department of Agriculture

Passed-tlu'uugliStatcBeparlmentol'Edncatian

Enterprise Fund:

Food Distribution Program
(Non-Cash Assiatroce} 10.555 181NJ304H109 N/A

National School Limch Piogrim;
(CffihAssistimce} 10.555 I71NJ304N109 N/A

National School Lunch PlOETOm
(Cash Assistance) 10-555 181NJ304N109 N/A

Scliool Breakfast Program 10.553 I71NJ304M10? N/A
School Breakfast Program 10,553 181NJ304N109 WA

Total National School Lunch Progrnm Cluster

ILS. Department of Health and Human Ssrvictss
Passed-thruugh State Department of Education

Medical Assistance Program (SEMI) 93.778 1805NJ5MAP N/A

Total Medical Assistance Program (SEMI) CInsler

Total General Fund

Tolal Fedwal FinaDiaai Awards

7/1/17-6/30/18

7/1/16-6/30/17

7/V17-G/30/1B
7/I/1M/30/17
7/1/17-1300/18

47^93

212,783

19B,036
14,4Z5
10,9SO

0.773}

(727)

47,393

9.773

189,633
727

10,235

7/3/17-6/30/18 47.70S

257,871

45,776

193,036

10,980

254.7S2

(8,343)

(695)

(9,03E)

I.G17

S 1,60I,BI7 $ 573 $ (444,341) I W,972_ S 10,753

The Notes Lo Itus Schedules oE'Fcderal Awards md Slale Rnandnl Assislmce are an Inlcgral Part Dfthe Statement



WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EOUCAT10N
SCHEBULEOFEXFliNOlTURESOFSTATB FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 3B, 2018

FcdcrnlfCnltiniriPnSfr-Thrnugh Gi
Slfltc Gfdl] (on/Pro Spini Tifl?

State Department BfEducallon
Gmcral Tundj
Transporialum Aid
Trtnsporiution Aid
NonpublieTtnasptutnlion Aid
NoflpubHc TtUTisporintion Aid

Tolal Traiupoitallon Aitl Cluslcr

RclUTOid Ailiustmuit _Bnlnncc,Junc3U,M18
Cnsli amtectoiy In FriorYtiiT (Accounts Bntnmed
•^ycd SSOSaSttttSSS Grnnnr Ordcn. Riialinblc) Itcvaiui!

SpccinlE^ucillifl]
Spiscinl Eiliusnliim
ScmrilyAnl
SuurilyAid
AdJuslnenlA'd
AdJurimnilAa
Fnt&saionnlLuit
FroftaionnlLun
PARCCRiiidim
FARCCRcadinc
Per Pupil Oiowlii.

Categprical Aid
iCaleBoricnlAH

linsCommitniiyAid
liflfl OammurutyAid
,s Aid
iE Aid
Aid

Per Pupil Oiswlli Aid

SlalcAid.publfc-CkBlcr

EniTdordinmyAld
Emaordmnry Aid

I
I

Lead TS&IB far Scbools /ui>

IW55.fl3'l-5l:?<H']
17-^95-034-5 ia.<W\<

02103190
(Q1031SO

IM95-C3'1-S120-014
H-49S-OM-5UOW1
18-495-031-SUa-OB9
17-495.03'1-S 120-039
IM95-034-5I50.0K5
17-4gS-nM-51Sfl-065
;E-W5-034-S 150-101
17-495434-SI5MDI
13-495-034-5120-038
17-43501-S 120-093
I8^95^34-S;2CH)5r?
17-495-034-S];'0-097

lB-inO.OM-3120.473
17-)D0.03'l-Sl2tM73

u^s-ow-siw-w

VV}'1-613W13
7/1/1 Moom
wn-wwia
7/]/K-600fl7

•nvn-saotis

vwfi^awn
f/l/17-B3WlS
vvie-ei3wi7
7/]fl7-6QO/lB
7/l/lW)OBfl7

vm-ww
T/l/i G-saof i7
Vvn-eisons
vms-Gaoin
7/1/17-600/18
v\na^!3wn

7/1/I7-WB/I3
7/1/16-6/30/17

vvn-eaww

769.076
769.D7G
39/H6
30,143

2,1 M,i n
2;3M,49B

311^37
341,937

15,712
15.712
35,100
3S.100
35.09S
3S/195
3S/195
35,n95

S 691 ^il
nflta

WA.SW)

(32,n3i

Cl/tTO)

ww
0,302)

3,2-14,303
2S^?
308,923
aa.m
11,195
1.47E

31,711
3,303

31,707

3,302
31.707
-3,311

ZSWAU

W9W6

3W16

808.152

2,1^,152

341,93,7

15,'? 12

35,100

35W5

3S,095

S (74,255)

[39,076]

[1J333U

ww
(»,ou)

(1,SH)

(3^8S>

O^BS)

t3;i3E)

GAAP Cumulnlivi!

AnouiHs Total
Rcedvublc Exiicndll!

769,076

3!W6

SOE,152

2/184,; 52

3111.937

15,7] 2

35.100

3S.09S

35,095

U7fl 1,870 l.BTO

On Bdnim'AFPeiuitin Syslun Conlritulion
Ott BdiaTTPAF Pension Syalwn Conlribulion
Non.CimlribuuiTlni.

On BclBdfWAFFcinion Syslan Ccnlribulion

Long T"m Group EisabiUiy
On BclialFTPAF Pension System Contribulion
^oilKcUicmeiitMcdieBl

Btinibuisnl TPAFSocini Security CatiltiinHSiu
Rcimburecd TPAF Eodnl &ccurilyConlribulioi

W-ityS-034-WM-OtKj

IB-<19M134-iCCT-007

ia-495.oM-5ro4.oo7

1S.KS0.034.50M.TO1
w-ww^-soM-acQ
iT-495^3'l-S09'<-un3

Vim-6QWia

7/1/17-600/1 E

vvn-mms

vnn-sBww
7/1/17-fiOOflB
7/vi 6-wwm

4^96^45

I M ,362

E.687

7JWVSZ
2,270,032
2.097.123

4,23634; -' 4,296^.15

1(14,262 104,263

SftV! E,CT7

;,8<IZ,2S8
2,160/117

2,E42^S8
2^70,032 (109,615)

WWS,

104,262

SfiVl

2^42^58
2^70^32

ItlalGci il^unrf
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EXBBBrTK-5
WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULES Of EXPENDmjRES OF
FEDERAL AWARDS A]S[D STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2018

NOTE 1 GENERAL

The accompanymg schedules present the activity of all federal and state financial assistance programs of the Wall Township
Board of Education. The Board of Education is defmed m Note 1(A) to the Board's financial statements. All federal
fmancial assistance received directly from federal agencies, as well as federal awards and state fmancial assistance passed
fhrougti other government agencies is included on the schedule of expenditures of federal awards and state fmancial
assistance.

NOTE 2 BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The accompanying schedules are prepared and presented using tlie budgetary basis of accounting with the exception' of
programs recorded in the food service fund, which are presented using the accrual basis of accountmg. These basis of
accounting are described m Notes 1(C) to the Board's financial statements. The mformation in these schedules is presented
in accordance wifh the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements. Cost Prmciples. and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (U.S. Uniform Guidance) and New Jersey 0MB
Circular 15-08, "Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants. State Grants, and State Aid". Therefore, some
amounts presented m these schedules may differ &om the amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, fhe fmancial
statements.

NOTES RELATIONSHIP TO FE4ANCIAL STATEMENTS

The fmaacial statements present the general fuad and special revenue fund on a GAAP basis. Budgetary comparison
statements or schedules (RSI) are presented for the general fund and special revenue fund to demonstrate fimance-related
legal compUaace in whicli certain revenue is permitted by law or grant agreement to be recognized in the audit year, whereas
for GAAP repoitmg, revenue is not recognized until tiie subsequent year or when expenditures have been made.

The general fund is presented in the accompanying schedules on a modified accrual basis with the exception of the revenue
recognition of the delayed state aid payments in fhe current budget year, which, is mandated pursuant to N.J.S.A. 18A:22-
44.2. For GAAP purposes, those payments are not recognized until the subsequent year due to the state deferral and
recording of certain state aid payments in the subsequent year. The special revenue fund is presented m the accompanying
schedules on the grant accounting budgetary basis which recognizes encumbrances as expenditures and also recognizes the
related revenues, which may include the delayed state aid payments, whereas the GAAP basis does not. The special revenue
fund also recognizes the delayed state aid payments m the current budget year, consistent with NJ.S A. 18A:22-44.2.

The net adjustment to reconcile from the budgetary basis to the GAAP basis is a decrease of $36,958 for the general fund
and a decrease of $3,148 for the special revenue fund. See fhe Notes to Required Supplementmy Infonnation for a
reconciliation of the budgetary basis to the modified accrual basis ofaccountmg for the general and special revenue funds.
Awards and fmancial assistance revenues are reported m the Board's fmancial statements on a GAAP basis as presented as

follows:

Federal State Total

General Fund

Special Revenue Fund

Capital Projects Fund
Debt Service Fund
Food Service Fund

47,708 $
1,287,562

254,792

. 13,544,924 $

59,802
126,688
743,411

8,757

; 13,592,632

1,347,364
126,688
743,411
263,549

Total Piuancial Assistance $ 1,590,062 $ 14,483,582 $ _16,p7_3,644
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EXfflBFTK-S
WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULES OF EXPENDITURES OF
FEDERAL AWARDS AND STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2018

NOTE 4 RELATIONSHIP TO FEDERAL AND STATE FINANCIAL REPORTS

Amounts reported in flie accompanying schedules may not necessarily agree wifh the amounts reported m Ihe related federal
and state fmancial reports due to timing differences between fhe District's fiscal year and grant program years.

NOTES OTHER INFORMATION

Revenues and expeaditires reported under the Food Distribution Program as non-cash assistance represent current year

value received and current year distributions, respectively. TPAF Social Security contributions in the amount of $2,270,032
represents tiie amount reimbursed by the State for the employer's share of social security contributions for TPAF members
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018. The amount reported as TPAF, Pension System Contributions in the amount of
$4,400,607, TPAF Post-Retu-ement Medical Benefits Contributions in the amount of $2,842,258 and TPAF Long-Temi
Disability Insurance m the amount of $8,687 represents the amount paid by the State on behalf of the District for fhe fiscal
year ended June 30,2018.

NOTE 6 ON-BEHALF PROGRAMS NOT SUBJECT TO STATE SINGLE AUDIT

On-behalf State Programs for TPAP Pension, Post-Retirement Medical Benefits and Long-Term Disability Insurance
Contributions payments are not subject to a State single audit and, therefore, are excluded from major program
determination. The Schedule of State Fmancial Assistance provides a reconciliation of State financial assistance reported in
the District's financial statements and the amount subject to State smgle audit and major program determination.

NOTE 7 DE MBNTEMIS INDIRECT COST RATE

The District has not elected to use the 10 percent de mimmis mdkect cost rate allowed under the Uniform Guidance.
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EXHIBIT K-6
WALL TOWNSmP BOARD OF EDUCATION

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2018

f art I-Summary of Auditor's Results

Financial Statement Sectio_n

Type of auditor's report issued:

Internal conti'ol over financial reporting:

1) Material wealaiess(es) identified?

2) Were significant deficiency(ies) identified that were
not considered to be material weaknesses?

Noucompliance material to fhe basic financial

statements noted?

Federal Awards Section

Internal Control over compliance;

1) Material weakness(es) identified?

2) Were significant deficiency(ies) identified fhat were
not considered to be material weaknesses?

Type of auditor s report on compliance for major programs:

Any audit fmdings disclosed fhat are required to be reported

in accordance with 2 CFR200 Section .516(a) of Uniform Guidance

Identification of major programs:

CFDA Numberfs) FAIN Numberfs)

84.010A S010A170030

10.555

10.553

181NJ304N109

181NJ304N109

Unmodified

yes

yes

yes

yes

yes

Unmodrfied

yes

X no

X none reported

X no

X no

X_none reported

X none

Name of Federal Proeram or Cluster

Title I

National School Lunch Program

School Breakfast Program

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and
Type B Programs

Auditee qualified as lcm-risk auditee?

$ 750,000

• X yes no
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EXfflBIT K-6
WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION

SCHEDULE OF FESDmGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Part I-Summary of Auditor's Results
State Awards Section

Internal Control over compliance:

1) Material wealcness(es) identified?

2) Were significant deficiency(ies) idendfied fhat were
not considered to be material weaknesses?

Type of auditor's report on compliance for major programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported
in accordance with NJ. 0MB Cu-cular 15-08, os amended?

Identification of major programs:

yes X no

yes X none reported

Unmodified

X yes none

State Grant/Proiect Number Cs)

495-034-5094-003

495-034-5120-089

495-034-5120-084

495-034-5150-085

495-034-5120-098

495-034-5120-097

495-034-5120-101

495-034-5120-014

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and

Type B Programs

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

Name of State Proeram

Reimbursed TPAF Social Security Contributions

Special Education Categorical Aid

Security Aid

Adjustment Aid

PARCC Readiness Aid

Per Pupil Growth Aid

Professional Learning Community Aid

Transportatioa Aid

$ 750,000

yes X no
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EXfflBTTK-7
WALL TOWNSmP BOARD OF EDUCATION

SCHEDULE OF FDSDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDEB JUNE 30,2018

Part 2 - Schedule of Financial Statement Findings

This section identifies the significant deficiencies, material weaknesses, fraud, illegal acts, violations of provisions of
contracts and grant agreements and abuse related to fhe financial statements m accordance with. Government Auditing
Standards.

There are none.
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EXHIBrT K-7
WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION

SCHEDULE; OF FINDINGS ANf) QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2018

Part 3 - Schedule of Federal and State Award Findings and Questioned Costs

This section identifies the significant deficiencies, material weaknesses, and mstances of noncompliance, including
questioned costs, related to the audit of major federal and state programs, as required by U.S. Uniform Guidance and
New Jersey OMB's Circular 15-08.

CURRENT YEAR FEDERAL AWARDS

There are none.
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EXHIBIT K-7
WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2018

Part 3 - Schedule of Federal and State Award Findings and Questioned Costs

This section identifies the significant deficiencies, material weaknesses, and instances of noncompliance, including
questioned costs, related to tibie audit of major federal and state programs, as required by U.S. Uniform Guidance and
New Jersey OMB's Circular 15-08.

CURRENT YEAR STATE AWARDS

Findms 2018-001:

Our audit of the District Report of Transported Resident Students (DRTRS) revealed that in certain instances,
special transportation needs were not specified in students' Individualized Education Plan (IEP).

Information on the State Proeram;

Transportation Aid.

Criteria or specific requirement

N.J. Department of Education ~ Specific Grant Compliance for Transportation Aid

Condition:

See Finding 2018-001.

Questioned Costs:

Unknown.

Context:

In four (4) instances, transportation needs were not indicated as a special need in stident's Individualized
Educational Plan (IEP).

Effect

Possible reduction in State aid.

Cause:

Unknown.

Recommendation:

latemal controls be enhanced to ensure the District Report of Transported Resident Students is in agreement with
supporting documentation.

View of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Action:

Management Iias reviewed this finding and has indicated it will review and revise its procedures to ensure
corrective action has been taken.
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EXHmTK-8

WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2018

This section identifies the status of prior-year findings related to the basic financial statements and federal and state
awards that are required to be reported in accordance with Chapter 6.12 of Government Auditing Standards^ U.S. 0MB
Uniform Guidance andNew Jersey OMB's Circular 15-08.

STATUS OF PMOR YEAR FINDINGS

Fmdins 2017-001:

Our audit of the general ledger account balances revealed certain adjusting journal entries were required to
reconcile the Board records to agree with subsidiary records and supporting documentation. We noted fhe
followmg:

• Prior year accounts receivable related to the Special Revenue Fund in the amount of $7,158 was posted to
the General Fund in error.

• The State aid debit/credit memo m the amount of $11,936 to adjust for the prior year balances m the Special
Revenue fund due to the State was not posted.

• Prior year Federal receivable in the amount of $80,000 and the payment of $348,036 from the; \ease escrow
proceeds in conjunction with flie lease of buses were not properly accounted for in the general ledger.

• Prior year Federal receivable in the amount of $35,278 was posted to tiie incorrect general ledger account.
• State aid debit/credit memos in the amount of $133,304 were not properly paste to the general ledger.
• Prior year prepaid insurance proceeds in the amount of $125,525 were not properly applied to the current

year budget.

Current Status

Corrective action has been taken.

Fiudiue 2017-002

Our audit noted that the District has not submitted reimbursement from the NJ School Development
Authority for uncollected grant funds for certam capital projects which appear to be substantially complete.

Current Status

Corrective action has been taken.
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